g
@ =—

north lake tahoe

Chamber | CVB | Resort Association

Agenda and Meeting Notice

THE NORTH LAKE TAHOE RESORT ASSOCIATION BOARD OF DIRECTORS

2013
Board Members

Wally Auerbach
Auerbach Engineering

Eric Brandt
Tahoe TV

Phil GilanFarr
(Chair)
CB’s Pizza & Grill

Kali Kopley (Vice-
Chair)
Uncorked/Petra/Soupa

Alex Mourelatos
Mourelatos Lakeshore
Resort

Valli Murnane
(Secretary)
Tahoe XCountry

Ron Parson
(Immediate Past
Chair)
Granlibakken

Bill Rock

(Treasurer)
Northstar

Eric Sather
Resort at Squaw Creek

Andy Wirth
Squaw Valley/Alpine
Meadows

Jennifer Merchant
Placer County

Kristi Boosman
TRPA
(Ex-officio)

Wednesday April 3, 2013 — 8:30 am — 11 am
Tahoe City Public Utilities District

NLTRA Mission
“To promote fourism and benefit business through efforts that enhance the economic,
environmental, recreational and cultural climate of the area.”

Meeting Ground Rules
Be Prepared, Engage in Active Listening, Be Respectful of Others, No Surprises, It is
OK to Disagree, Acknowledge Comments, but Do Not Repeat Comments

ITEMS MAY NOT BE HEARD IN THE ORDER THEY ARE LISTED

A. CALL TO ORDER - ESTABLISH QUORUM — Chair

B. AGENDA AMENDMENTS AND APPROVAL - MOTION
1. Agenda Additions and/or Deletions
2. Approval of Agenda

C. PUBLIC FORUM

Any person wishing to address the Board of Directors on items of interest to the Resort
Association not listed on the agenda may do so at this time. Itis requested that
comments be limited to three minutes, since no action may be taken by the Board on
items addressed under Public Forum.

D. REPORTS & ACTION ITEMS (2 hrs 10 minutes) 8:35 — 10:45
Organization (45 minutes)

3. Master Plan Update and Approval of using $5,000 of Marketing
Reserves for funding Dean Runyan Economic Benefit of Tourism
Study — MOTION Sandy Evans Hall (5 minutes)

4. Finance Committee Recommendations — Bill Rock/Lisa de Roulet (15
minutes)

1. Audit RFP MOTION
2. Employee Manual MOTION
3. Visitor Center Issues and Potential Policy Development

5. Proposed Changes to TOT Ordinance to include change in sunset
dates, appeal process, definitions of what is taxable and what
constitutes receipt, and record keeping terms. — Jerry Gamez, Placer
County Director of Administrator Services (25 minutes)



Marketing (20 minutes)

6. Special Event Grant Funding Recormmmendations, Round Two — MOTION Judy
Laverty (5 minutes)

7. MTRIP Update — Andy Chapman (& minutes)
8. Ironman Foundation Contribution Update (5 minutes)

9. Lake Tahoe Sports Organizing Committee/X Games Bid Update — Andy Chapman (5
minutes)

Transportation/Infrastructure (25 minutes)
10. Resort Triangle Transportation Vision Coalition update — Ron Treabess (5 minutes)
11. Free Skier Shuttle Report — Ron Treabess (5 minutes)
12. Integrated Work Pian MOTION — Ron Treabess (15 minutes)

Membership (10 minutes)
13. Membership Sales, Activities and Events —~ Deanna Frumenti (56 minutes)

14. Marketing Grant for TCDA — Deanna Frumenti MOTION (5 minutes)

Visitor Information (10 minutes)
15. Visitor Center Proposal for Kings Beach — Emily Detwiler MOTION (10 minutes)

Special Presentation (20 minutes)
16. Kings Beach Commercial Core Improvement Plan — Dan LaPlante (20 minutes)

E. DIRECTORS’ COMMENTS (5 minutes) 10:45 — 10:50

F. CONSENT CALENDAR — MOTIONS (5 min) 10:50 — 10:55
All items {in bold) listed under the consent calendar-motions are considered to be routine andfor have
been or will be reviewed by committee, and will be approved by one motion. There will be no separate
discussion of these iterns unless a Board member or staff person requests a specific item be removed
from the consent calendar for separate consideration. Any item removed will be considered after the
motion and vote to approve the remainder of consent calendar-motions.

17. Board Meeting Minutes — February 6, 2013
All committee meeting briefs are provided for informational purposes only. Minutes are available at
www.nltra.org

18. Joint Infrastructure/Transportation Committee — March 25, 2013

19. Marketing Committee — March 28, 2013

20. Business Association and Chamber Collaborative — March 13, 2013

21. Lodging Committee — March 7, 2013

22. Conference Sales Directors Commitiee — No meeting in March

23. Finance Committee — March 28, 2013

24. Executive Committee Report — March 29, 2013

25. Financial Reports for February, 2013

1. Financial Analysis — Project Updates

The following reports are provided on a monthly basis by staff and can be pulled for discussion by any
board member

26. Conference Sales Reports

27. Infrastructure/Transportation Activity Report — March

G. MEETING REVIEW AND STAFF DIRECTION (5 minutes) 10:55- 11:00




H. CLOSED SESSION (If necessary)
.  RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION

J.  ADJOURNMENT

This meeting site is wheelchair accessible. Posted and e-mailed, , 2013




g2
@ =

north lake tahoe

Chamber | CVB | Resort Association

Staff Report for Board

Subject: Funding for Master Plan Study: Dean Runyan, Economic Impact of Tourism
From: Sandy Evans Hall

Decision Considerations:

B At last board meeting it was reported that there was a split of funding for this
study between Marketing and Infrastructure and Research and Planning

B Supervisor Montgomery tabled the request and met with us asking that we
provide more funding from Marketing for this study

B In 2008 funding for the studies was provided from the Marketing Reserves in the
amount of $16,000

B Jennifer Montgomery and Jennifer Merchant agreed that an additional $5,000
from the Marketing Reserve account would be more equitable, thus reducing the
amount of infrastructure request to $6,000.

B The $5,000 in Marketing Reserves would be replenished upon receiving the first
TOT payment for the new fiscal year.

Strategic Plan/Master Plan Alignment: By 2016 (ongoing), the organization will
have built trust, confidence and leadership with key partners through
accountability, transparency, and frequent and consistent communication following
a key partner communication plan.

Staff Recommendation: Approve taking $5,000 from Marketing Reserves for funding
the Dean Runyan Economic Impact of Tourism study for the Master Plan Review.




= % v
@ m
E—

north lake tahoe

Chamber | CVB | Resort Association

To: Board of Directors
From: Lisade Roulet
Subject: Results of Request for Proposal for Audit and Tax 2013-2015

Date:  April 3, 2013

At the January Finance Committee meeting, Staff was directed send out Requests for
Proposal for the NLTRA’s audit and tax engagements for the next three years. The
Gilbert Associates engagement ended with the audit and tax filings for the June 2012
fiscal year.

In February, we mailed out nine Requests for Proposal for audit and tax services for the
years 2013-2015. Of the nine requests, we received responses from six of the firms. We
did not receive a response from Sitkoff O’Neil, Straley & Perdue, and Sonnenberg &
Company. The quotes for services are listed below from least expensive to most
expensive.

PROPOSED COMBINED TAX AND AUDIT FEES BY FIRM AND AUDIT/TAX YEAR

Gilbert

Associates
Audit/Tax Year| Bullard Macy | Kohn Colodny |{current provider)| McClintock |Barnard Vogler| Grant Thornton
2013 $ 14,000 | $ 16,000 | $ 17,550 | $ 18,000 | $ 20,000 | $ 21,300
2014 % 14,600 | § 16,000 | $ 17,550 | § 18,500 | $ 21,000( $ 22,500
2015 $ 15,100 | § 16,000 | $ 17,550 | § 19,000 | $ 22,000 | $ 23,700

While there is an almost 50% cost differential between the lowest and highest proposal,
there were concerns with the two lowest cost providers, so they were eliminated from
consideration. The two highest bids were also eliminated from consideration. The
benefits and drawbacks of the remaining two firms, Gilbert Associates and McClintock
Accountancy were discussed by Committee members.

RECOMMENDATION:

The Finance Committee recommends that the Board of Directors approves awarding the
2013-2015 audit and tax engagement to the McClintock Accountancy Corporation.

g -1-1



NORTH LAKE TAHOE RESORT ASSOCIATION

EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK

January 2013

4-2-1




ARTICLE 1
INTRODUCTION AND GENERAL TERMS

11  About the North Lake Tahoe Resort Association

The North Lake Tahoe Resort Association (“NLTRA”) is a public non-profit corporation
created to promote, enhance, reinvigorate, coordinate, and direct tourism for the economic
betterment of the North Lake Tahoe Region. The corporation has integrated the Chamber of
Commerce and Convention and Visitors Bureau functions as part of the Resort Association.

1.2  Purpose of the Handbook

This Employee Handbook is intended to explain the terms and conditions of employment for all
full-time, part-time, and seasonal employees of the NLTRA. You are to thoroughly familiarize
yourself with the contents of this handbook and retain it for future use. This handbook is not
a contract and does not create or imply an employment contract between you and the
NLTRA. It is an explanation of general information, policies and procedures, as they exist on
the date of publication. All information contained in this handbook is designed to serve as
guidelines rather than absolute rules, and exceptions may be made on the basis of particular
circumstances. Further, the NLTRA reserves the right to modify, revoke, suspend, terminate or
change in whole or in part any of the published or unpublished policies or practices of the
NLTRA at any time with or without notice and without having to give cause or justification to
any employee. This handbook summarizes the policies and practices in effect at the time of
publication, and supersedes all previously issued handbooks and any policy or benefit
statements or memoranda that are inconsistent with the policies described herein. From fime
to time, you may receive updated information concerning changes in policy.

Written employment confracts between the NLTRA and some individuals may supersede some
of the provisions of this handbook, except the at-will employment provisions, which may only
be superseded by the Board of Directors. Please contact your supervisor or CFO with any
questions concerning this handbook or the policies and procedures set forth herein.

1.3 Term of Employment

NLTRA personnel are employed on an at-will basis. Employment at-will may be
terminated with or without cause and with or without notice at any time by the employee or
NLTRA. No minimum term of employment is guaranteed or implied; nothing in this handbook,
or in any document or statement, shall limit the right to terminate employment at-will. No
manager, supervisor, or employee of NLTRA has any authority to enter into an agreement for
employment for any specified period of time or to make an agreement for employment on other
than at-will terms. Only the Board of Directors of NLTRA has the authority to make any such

agreement, which is binding only if it is in writing.

January 2013 Page 2

Y- 22



1.4 Entire Agreement and Revisions to Handbook

NLTRA reserves the right to revise, modify, delete, or add to any and all policies,
procedures, work rules, or benefits stated in this handbook or in any other document, except
for the policy of at-will employment. However, any changes must be in writing and signed by
the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the NLTRA. Any written changes to this handbook
will be distributed to all employees, so they will be aware of the new policies or procedures.
No oral statements or representations can in any way alter the provisions of this handbook.
This handbook sets forth the entire agreement between employees and the NLTRA, as to the
duration of employment and the terms and conditions of employment. Nothing in this
employee handbook or in any other personnel document, including benefit plan descriptions,
creates, or is intended to create a promise or representation of continued employment for any

employee.
1.5 Equal Employment Opportunity

NLTRA is an equal opportunity employer and makes employment decisions on the
basis of merit, desiring to have the best available persans in every job. NLTRA policy prohibits
unlawful discrimination based on race, color, religion, sex (including pregnancy, childbirth, or
related medical conditions), gender identity, national origin, ancestry, citizenship, age, physical
or mental disability, legally protected medical condition or information, genetic information,
family care status, military caregiver status, veteran status, marital status, domestic partner
status, sexual orientation, or any other basis protected by local, state, or federal laws. It also
prohibits unlawful discrimination based on the perception that anyone has any of those
characteristics, or is associated with a person who has or is perceived as having any of those
characteristics. All such discrimination is unlawful and prohibited. When necessary, the
Company also makes reasonable accommodations for disabled employees and for pregnant
employees who request an accommodation, {with the advice of their health care providers], for

pregnancy, childbirth, or related medical conditions

NLTRA is committed to compliance with all applicable laws providing equal employment
opportunities. This commitment applies fo all persons involved in the operations of NL.TRA
and prohibits unlawful discrimination by any employee of NLTRA, including supervisors and
co-workers. This commitment also applies to all areas of employment, including recruitment,
hiring, training, promotion, compensation, benefits and disciplinary action. To comply with
applicable laws ensuring equal employment opportunities to qualified individuals with a
disability, NLTRA will make reasonable accommodations for the known physical or mental
limitations of an otherwise qualified individual with a disability who is an applicant or an
employee unless undue hardship would result.

Any applicant or employee who requires an accommodation in order to perform the
essential functions of the job should contact CFO and request such an accommodation. The
individual with the disability should specify what accommodation he or she needs to perform
the job. NLTRA will then conduct an investigation to identify the barriers that interfere with the
equal opportunity of the applicant or employee to perform his or her job. NLTRA will identify

January 2013 Page 3

L{f&-ﬂ 3



possible accommodations, if any, that will help eliminate the limitation. If the accommodation
is reasonable and wili not impose an undue hardship, NLTRA will make the accommodation.

If an employee believes they have been subjected to any form of unlawful
discrimination, they should submit a written complaint to their supervisor or the individual with
personnel oversight responsibilities. The complaint should be specific and should include the
names of the individuals involved and the names of any witnesses. NLTRA will immediately
undertake a thorough and objective investigation and attempt to resolve the situation. If
NLTRA determines that unlawful discrimination has occurred, effective remedial action will be
taken commensurate with the severity of the offense. Appropriate action also will be taken to
deter any future discrimination. NLTRA will not retaliate against any individual for filing a
complaint and will not knowingly permit retaliation by management employees or co-workers.

1.6 Harassment Policy

NLTRA is committed to providing a work environment free of unlawful harassment.
NLTRA policy prohibits harassment based on race, color, religion, sex (including pregnancy,
childbirth, or related medical conditions), gender identity, national origin, ancestty, citizenship,
age, physical or mental disability, legally protected medical condition or information, genetic
information, family care status, military caregiver status, veteran status, marital status,
domestic partner status, sexual orientation or any other basis protected by federal, state or
local law or ordinance or regulation. All such harassment is unlawful and prohibited.
NLTRA’s anti-harassment policy applies to all persons involved in the operation of NLTRA and
prohibits unlawful harassment or perceived harassment by any employee of NLTRA, including
supervisors and co-workers. Similarly, NLTRA will not tolerate harassment by its employees of
non-employees with whom NLTRA has a business, service or professional relationship.
Prohibited unlawful harassment or perceived harassment includes, but is not limited to, the

following behavior:

= Verbal conduct such as epithets, derogatory jokes or comments, slurs or unwanted sexual
advances, invitations or comments; _

. Visual displays such as derogatory or sexually oriented posters, photography, cartoons,
drawings, or gestures;

« Physical conduct including assault, unwanted touching, intentionally blocking normal
movement or interfering with work because of sex, race or any other protected basis;

« Threats and demands to submit to sexual requests as a condition of continued
employment, or to avoid some other loss, and offers of employment benefits in return for

sexual favors; and
« Retaliation for reporting or threatening to report harassment.

If an employee believes they have been unlawfully harassed, they should submit a
written complaint to their supervisor or any other NLTRA supervisor or manager, as soon as
possible after the incident. The complaint should include details of the incident or incidents,
names of the individuals involved, and names of any witnesses. Supervisors will refer all

January 2013 Page 4

4-2-4



harassment complaints to CFO, or the Executive Director. NLTRA will immediately undertake
a thorough and objective investigation of the harassment allegations.

If the NLTRA determines that unlawful harassment has occurred, effective remedial
action will be taken in accordance with the circumstances involved. Any employee determined
by the NLTRA to be responsible for unlawful harassment will be subject to appropriate
disciplinary action, up to and including termination. A NLTRA representative will advise all
parties concerned of the results of the investigation. The NLTRA will not retaliate against any
individual for filing a complaint and will not tolerate or permit retaliation by management,
employees or co-workers. The NLTRA encourages all employees to report any incidents of
harassment forbidden by this policy immediately so that complaints can be quickly and fairly
resolved. The Federal Equal Employment Opportunity Commission and the California
Department of Fair Employment and Housing investigate and prosecute complaints of
prohibited harassment in employment. If an individual thinks they have been harassed or have
been retaliated against for resisting or complaining, complaints may be filed with the California
Department of Fair Employment and Housing or the Equal Employment Opportunily

Commission.

ARTICLE 2
POLICIES AND PRACTICES

2.1 Employee Classifications

a. Exempt Employees

Exempt employees are those employees who are exempt from the ovetrtime provisions
of California and federal law. Exemptions are hased on certain criteria, including the
type of work performed, the structure of compensation, and the presence of
administrative or managerial authority. This classification typically includes
management personnel. Exempt employees are paid a certain amount per pay period,
rather than paid according to the number of hours worked, and are, therefore, not
eligible for overtime pay. Exerpt employees are eligible for benefits described in Article
5 as full-time year-round (FTYR) employees.

b. Non-Exempt Employees (“Hourly” Employees)

These are employees who are not exempt from the overtime provisions of California
and federal law. Non-exempt employees are paid for time worked in excess of eight (8)
and less than twelve (12) hours per day, or in excess of forty (40) hours per week, and
for the first eight (8) hours on the seventh consecutive workday in a workweek, at a rate
of one and one-half times their regular hourly pay rate. Non-exempt employees who
work in excess of twelve (12) hours in a workday or in excess of eight (8) hours on the
seventh consecutive workday of a workweek are paid at twice their regular hourly pay
rate. NLTRA’s non-exempt employees are further divided into several categories:

January 2013 Page 5

4-2-8



» Full-time Year-Round Employees (FTYR) are those who are scheduled for and do
work an average of at least sixty-four (64} hours per biweekly payroli throughout
either of the six-month periods: January through June or July through December. If
an employee averages less than thirty-two (32) hours in either of the above six-
month periods, then the employee category changes to Regular part-time and the
employee loses eligibility for all benefits described in Article 5. When an employee
first becomes eligible for benefits, their average hours worked per week during the
first qualifying six-month period will be prorated and calculated at the end of that
term. Full-time year round employees are eligible for benefits described in Article 5.
The thirty-two (32) hour minimum may be changed at any time at the discretion of
NLTRA management; employees will be given notice of such a change one (1)
month in advance. '

» Regular Part-Time Employees are those who are scheduled for and work less than
thirty-two (32) hours per week, but not less than twenty-four (24) hours. Regular
part-time employees are not eligible for any employee benefits described in Article
51—-5.11.

« Seasonal Employees are employed as needed due to seasonal demand, and are
neither guaranteed, nor required, to work a certain minimum number of hours per
week. Seasonal employees are not eligible for any employee benefits described in

Article 5.1 = 5.11.

2.2 Work Schedule

NLTRA'’s hours of operation vary between departments and may also vary as dictated
by the season of the year and customer demand. The business offices of the Convention and
Visitors Bureau, Marketing, Infrastructure and Visitor Support, Membership Services and
Administration are normally open between the hours of 8:30 AM and 5:00 PM, Monday through
Friday. The Tahoe City Visitor Center is open 7 days a week and all holidays excluding
Christmas Day.  Other Visitor Center location hours will vary by season and demand.
Employees may change or trade scheduled shifts, only if the resulting work schedules will
result in no overtime being accrued by any employee involved, and only with prior written
approval of a supervisor of manager.

2.3 Meal and Rest Periods

NLTRA provides all full-time employees who work more than five (5) hours in a day with
a thirty (30) minute, uninterrupted meal period starting no later than the end of the fifth hour of
work, to be taken approximately in the middle of the workday, but taken so as not to leave an
employee’s department with low or no staffing. This period is unpaid and must be taken away
from an employee's workstation. Employees must sign out on their time cards or the time
clock and set their phones to provide voicemail. NLTRA provides employees who work more
than ten (10) hours in a day with a second unpaid thirty (30) minute, uninterrupted meal period
starting no later than the end of the tenth hour of work. Employees who work no more than six
(6) hours in a day may waive the first meal period. Employees who work no more than twelve
(12) hours in a day may waive the second meal period if they took their first meal period.

January 2013 Page 6

Y-l



Employees are entitled, encouraged, and expected to take all meal periods provided under this
policy and not waived. During meal periods, the Company will relieve employees of all duty
and will not exercise control over employees’ activities. Overtime for working through lunch is

not allowed or authorized.

NLTRA authorizes and permits nonexempt employees working at least three and one-
half (3.5) hours in a day to take a ten (10) minute, off-duty paid rest period for each four (4)
hours worked or major fraction thereof. The ten (10) minutes do not include the reasonable
time it takes to walk to and from a break area. Employees who work up to six (6) hours in a
day may take a second rest period. Employees who work more than ten (10) hours in a day
may take a third rest period. Employees should take their rest periods in the middle of each
work period to the extent it is practicable to do so, and not combine them with meal periods or
skip them to leave work early. When taking a break, an employee’s phone should be set fo
provide voicemail, but the employee should not sign out on his or her time card or use the time
clock. Rest periods should be taken so as not to leave an employee’s department with little or

no staffing.
2.4 Timekeeping Requirements

All non-exempt employees are required to use a time clock to record time worked for
payroll purposes, or fill out a time sheet when no clock is available. All time cards must be
kept in the areas designated for that purpose, and must not be kept anywhere else, including

employee desks.

All exempt employees are required to fill out a bi-weekly timesheet.

2.5 Payment of Wages

All employees of NLTRA are paid every other Friday for work performed during the
previous two-week pay period. Pay periods commence every other Monday and conclude
every other Sunday. If a regular payday falls on a banking holiday, employees will be paid on
the last day worked before the holiday. By law, NLTRA is required to deduct, where
applicable, federal income tax withholding amounts, Social Security taxes, and California state
taxes. Any garnishments required by law, 401(k) plan deductions, family insurance payments,
and other employee-authorized deductions will also be deducted from employee paychecks.

NLTRA offers automatic payroll deposit for all employees. To begin automatic payroll
deposit, you must complete a form (included in the packet of information given to each new
employee and also available from CFO) and return it to CFO at least ten (10) days before the
pay period for which you would like the service to begin. You should carefully monitor your

payroll deposit statements.

To stop automatic payroll deposit, complete the form available from CFO and return it at
lcast 10 days before the pay period for which you would like the service to end. You will

January 2013 Page 7

4-27



receive a regular payroll check on the first pay period after the receipt of the form, provided it is
received no later than ten (10) days before the end of the pay period.

Employees should report lost or missing paychecks immediately, so that a stop-
payment order may be made. A replacement check will then be issued. Any transaction or
service fees charged for the stop-payment order will be deducted from the employee’s next

paycheck.

NLTRA does not permit advances against paychecks.

2.6  Reporting to Work Pay

NLTRA will pay hourly employees for half of the regularly scheduled workday, if
employees report to work as scheduled but no work is available. An employee will be paid for
a minimum of two (2) hours at the regular rate of pay, if called into work for a mandatory staff
meeting or similar activity on their scheduled day off. NLTRA will not pay employees for
reporting to work, if an interruption of work occurs because of the failure of any or all public
utilities or an interruption of work occurs because of natural causes or other circumstances

beyond NLTRA's power to control.

2.7 Overtime

Hourly employees may be required fo work overtime as necessary. NLTRA will attempt
to distribute overtime evenly and accommodate individual schedules. All overtime work must

be previously approved in writing by a supervisor or Director.

2.8 Telecommuting Policy

It is a fundamental policy of the NLTRA that the duties of each employee are best
performed at their designated work location - at the main office or a visitor information center
location. However, based on specific circumstances and consistent with adopted NLTRA
policy, the NLTRA Executive Director may consider and approve an Employee Telecommuting
Agreement with an employee whose job and responsibilities is identified as eligible for
consideration under the policy. Any such agreement shall be considered in consuitation with
the employee’s immediate supervisor. Telecommuting is a work arrangement in which some
or all of the work is performed at a non-NLTRA location, such as at a home office or office
space near the home. Any Telecommuting Agreement must be in the best interests of the
NLTRA. An employee can not be required to telecommute. Jobs and responsibilities within
the NLTRA that lend themselves to telecommuting are those that entail working alone or
working with equipment which can be kept and used at an alternative work site suitable for
telecommuting. Examples: Outside sales and word processing. Members of the NLTRA
Management Team are not eligible to discharge any of their responsibilities under a

Telecommuting Agreement.

January 2013 Page 8

4-2-8




2.9 Open-Door Policy

Suggestions for improving NLTRA are always welcome. Complaints, questions and
suggestions are of interest to NLTRA, whether pertaining to your job, your working conditions,
the treatment you are receiving, or NLTRA in general. We ask you to first discuss your
concerns with your immediate supervisor, following these steps:

1) As soon as possible, but not later than a week after the occurrence, bring the
situation fo the attention of your immediate supervisor, who will then investigate and
provide a solution or explanation.

2) If the problem persists, you may describe it in writing and present it to the CFO, who
will investigate and provide a solution or explanation. We encourage you to bring
the matter to CFO as soon as possible after you believe that your immediate
supervisor has failed to resolve it.

3) If the problem is not resolved, or if the problem concems a member of the Human
Resources Department, you may present the problem in writing fo the Executive
Director, who will attempt to reach a final resolution.

While an important step, this process cannot guarantee that every problem will be
resolved to your satisfaction. However, NLTRA values your observations and you should feel
free to raise issues of concern, in good faith, without the fear of retaliation.

2.10 Whistleblower Policy

General
The North Lake Tahoe Resort Association’s Standards of Conduct, as set forth in the

adopted Employee Handbook requires employses to observe high standards of business and
personal ethics in the conduct of their duties and responsibilities. NLTRA employees are
required to act with honesty and integrity in fuffilling their responsibilities, as well as to comply

with all applicable laws and regulations.

Reporting Responsibility
It is the responsibility of all employees to comply with the Standards of Conduct and
other all other provisions of the adopted NLTRA Employee Handbook and to report violations

or suspected violations in accordance with this Whistleblower Policy.

No Retaliation
No employee who in good faith reports a violation of the Standards of Conduct or other

provisions of the NLTRA Employee Handbook shall suffer harassment, retaliation, or adverse
employment consequence. An employee who retaliates against someone  who has reported
a violation in good faith is subject to discipline, up to and including termination of employment.
This Whistleblower Policy is intended to encourage and enable employees and others to raise
serious concerns within the organization prior to seeking a resolution outside the organization.

Reporting Violations

January 2013 Page 9

4-2-9




The process for reporting violations or suspected violations of the Standards of Conduct
or other provisions of the Employee Handbook shall be similar to the process described in the
Open Door Policy section of the Handbook (Section 2.8); specifically, the Whistieblower
reporting process shall include these steps:

1) As soon as possible, bring the violation or suspected violation to the attention of your
immediate supervisor, who will then investigate, consulting with appropriate NLTRA
management as may be necessary, and respond to the employee with the actions that will
be taken based on the complaint.

2) If the employee is not comfortable speaking with his/fher supervisor, or if he/she is not
satisfied with the supervisor's response, the employee can speak to the CFO or fo the
NLTRA Executive Director. That person will then investigate and take action as appropriate.
Supervisors or NLTRA managers are required to report suspected violations of the
Standards of Conduct or other provisions of the Employee Handbook to the organization’s
designated Compliance Officer.

3) If the original reporting party is not satisfied or comfortable with the response of his/her
supervisor or NLTRA management, the employee should contact the designated

Compliance Officer directly.

Compliance Officer
The Organization’s designated Compliance Officer shall be responsible for assisting the

Executive Director and CFO in investigating and resolving any reported violation or suspected
violation of the Standards of Conduct or other provisions of the NLTRA Employee Handbook.
If the complaint involves the Executive Director or Human Resources, the Compliance Officer
shall investigate and work to resolve the complaint, acting independently and reporting to
members of the NLTRA Executive Committee. The Compliance Officer has been designated

to be the Board Secretary by the Board of Directors.

Acting in Good Faith
Anyone filing a complaint concerning a violation or suspected violation of the Standards

of Conduct or other provisions of the Employee Handbook must be acting in good faith and
have reasonable grounds for believing the information disclosed indicates a violation. Any
allegations that prove not to be substantiated and which prove to have been made maliciously
or knowingly to be false will be viewed and addressed as a serious disciplinary offense.

Confidentiality
Violations or suspected violations may be submitted on a confidential basis by the

complainant. Reports of violations or suspected violations will be kept confidential to the
extent possible, consistent with the need to conduct an adequate investigation and reach a

resolution of the matter.
2.11 Progressive Discipline and Involuntary Termination

Violation of NLTRA policies and rules may warrant disciplinary action. NLTRA has
established a system of progressive discipline that includes verbal warnings, written warnings,

January 2013 Page 10

q-3-10



and suspension. The system is not formal and NLTRA may, in its sole discretion, use
whatever form of discipline is deemed appropriate under the circumstances, up to and
including termination of employment. NLTRA's policy of progressive discipline in no way limits
or alters the at-will employment relationship.

2.12 Voluntary Termination

Voluntary termination results when an employee voluntarily resigns his or her
employment, or fails to report to work for three (3) consecutively scheduled workdays without

notice to, and/or approval by, his or her supervisor

2.13 Return of NLTRA Property

Upon conclusion of employment, employees are required to immediately return to the NLTRA
all NLTRA property that they have been issued and/or have in their possession. This includes
such items as keys, NLTRA files and documents, and electronic equipment such as cell

phones, pagers, and computers.

ARTICLE 3
STANDARDS OF CONDUCT

3.1 Prohibited Conduct

The following conduct is prohibited and will not be tolerated by NLTRA. This list of
prohibited conduct is illustrative only. Any type of conduct which threatens security, personal
safety, employee welfare, and NLTRA's operations - may also be prohibited.

« Theft of funds or goods belonging to NLTRA, fellow employees, or members of the
public; '

« Commitment or involvement in any act of untawful harassment of another individual,

+ Use or being under the influence of alcohol or controlled substances during business
hours;

» Acceptance of money or gifts from any NLTRA member for special services not

provided to members generally,
s Unauthorized sale or distribution of leads, lists, tapes, videos, etc. purchased by NLTRA

or created by any NLTRA employees in the course of their work;
»  Conviction of a crime whether or not related to job performance;
« Conviction of any of the prohibited activities described in Section 4.1(a).

This statement of prohibited conduct does not alter NLTRA’s policy of at-will
employment. Either you or NLTRA remain free to terminate the employment relationship at any
time, with or without reason or advance notice.

January 2013 Page 11

4-g-a1




3.2 Fraud

The NLTRA and its employees must, at all times, comply with all applicable faws and
regulations. The NLTRA will not condone the activities of employees who achieve results
through violation of the law or unethical business dealings. This includes any payment for
illegal acts, indirect contributions, rebates andfor bribery. The NLTRA does not permit any
activity that fails to stand the closest possible public scrutiny. All business conduct should be
well above the minimum standards required by law.

Employees may not receive payment or compensation of any kind, except as authorized
under NLTRA remuneration policies. The NLTRA strictly prohibits the acceptance of kickbacks
and secret commissions from suppliers or others. Any breach of this rule will result in
immediate termination and prosecution to the fullest extent of the law.

Employees should avoid investing in or acquiring a financial interest for their own
accounts in any business organization that has a contractual relationship with the NLTRA or
that provides goods or services, or both, to the NLTRA if such investment or interest could
influence or create the impression of influencing their decisions in the performance of their

duties on behalf of the NLTRA.

The NLTRA expects that employees will perform their duties conscientiously, honestly,
in a businesslike manner, in accordance with the best interests of the NLTRA. Employees
must not use their position or the knowledge gained as a result of their position for private or
personal advantage. Regardless of the circumstances, if an employee senses that a course of
action they have pursued, are presently pursuing, or are contemplating pursuing may involve
them in a conflict of interest with their employer, they should immediately communicate all the
facts to their supervisor or NLTRA management.

Employees who have access to NLTRA funds in any form must follow the prescribed
procedures for recording, handling, and protecting money. If an employee becomes aware of
any evidence of fraud or dishonesty, they should immediately advise their supetrvisor or
NLTRA management so that the NLTRA can promptly investigate further.

When an employee’s position requires spending NLTRA funds or incurring any reimbursable
personal expenses, that individual must use good judgment on the NLTRA’s behalf to ensure
that all expenditures are appropriate and are to the benefit of the NLTRA. NLTRA funds and
all other assets of the NLTRA are for NLTRA purposes only and not for personal benefit. This
includes the personal use of NLTRA assets, such as computers, tablets, cell phones, smart

phones and personal organizers..

3.3  Punctuality and Attendance

As an employee of NLTRA, you are expected to be punctual and regular in attendance.
Employees are expected to report to work as scheduled, on time, and prepared to start work.
Employees also are expected to remain at work for their entire work schedule, except for meal

January 2013 Page 12

Y-a-1



periods or when required to leave on authorized NLTRA business. Late arrival, early
departure, or other unanticipated and unapproved absences from scheduled hours are

disruptive and should be avoided.

If you are unable to report for work on any particular day, you should, under all but the
most extenuating circumstances, call your supervisor at least one hour before the time you are
scheduled to begin working for that day. In all cases of absence or tardiness, employees must
provide their supervisor with an honest reason or explanation. Employees also must inform
their supervisor of the expected duration of any absence. Excessive absenteeism or tardiness,

whether excused or not, will not be tolerated.

If you fail to report for work without any notification to your supervisor and your absence
continues for a period of three days, NLTRA will consider that you have abandoned your

employment.

3.4 Inclement Weather

. Inclement weather rarely warrants closing our offices during normal hours of operation,
and employees should be present during all required hours. However, each.employee needs
to make a personal judgment pertaining to hisfher safety in traveling to and from work,
understanding that any absence puts a greater burden on those employees who come to work
despite difficult weather conditions. Loss of work time due to inclement weather will be
charged against the employee’s accrued PTO. Management retains the sole discretion to call
the functional equivalent of a “snow day” should dangerous weather conditions or the loss of
electrical power at the office be known far enough in advance that ail employees can be

notified not to travel to work that day.

3.5 Dress Code

Employees are expected to maintain good personal hygiene and wear clothing that is
neat, clean, professional, and appropriate for the nature of our business and the type of work
performed. Beachwear, short shorts, sweats, and suggestive attire are not permitted for any
employees. Jeans and casual dress are permitted in the office, but are unacceptable for
community meetings, site inspections, or sales calls. In these instances, professional business

attire is required.

3.6 ’Customer Relations

The NLTRA strives to provide the highest standards of visitor, customer, and member
service and hospitality, consistent with the goals of the NLTRA. Employees are
representatives of the community as well as the NLTRA, and are expected to be polite,
courteous, prompt, and attentive to every person, with whom they come in contact, including
co-workers. The NLTRA requires all employees to maintain a pleasant and professional
demeanor when on the phone or dealing with the public in person. The phone should always
be answered in a professional manner. Clear, grammatical language should be used at all

January 2013 Page 13

q-2-43



times, both verbally and in writing, avoiding slang or jargon. Prompt return of emails and
phone calls is important and should always be returned within 24 hours, unless an employee is

out of the office due to illness or vacation.

3.7 Confidentiality

Each employee is responsible for safeguarding confidential information obtained during
employment. In the course of your work, you may have access to confidential information
regarding NLTRA, its members, its customers, or perhaps even fellow employees. You have
responsibility to prevent and aveid revealing or divulging any such information unless it is
necessary for you to do so in the performance of your duties. Access to confidential
information should be restricted to those with a legitimate need to have the information. Any
breach of this policy will not be tolerated, and legal action may be taken by NLTRA.,

3.8 Business Conduct and Ethics

No employee may accept or solicit a gift or gratuity from any customer, vendor, supplier,
or other person doing business with NLTRA. Accepting such gifts or gratuity may give the
appearance of influencing business decisions, transactions or service. An employee's
department manager must approve any exceptions to this prohibition in advance, in writing.

ARTICLE 4
OPERATIONAL CONSIDERATIONS

4,1 Computers and Other Electronic Media

a. Computer Policy

The NLTRA computers are networked. Viruses, contamination, and deletion of
files are serious concerns. As a result, employees are not permitted to do the
following without prior approval from their supervisor:

Copy files from any removable media onto any NL.TRA computer;

Modify the network or any network software;

Modify the desktop or any software on an individual computer;

Copy information from the Resort Association Network database;

Download files of any type from the Internet to the network, uniess work

related.

b. Internet policy

NLTRA employees with legitimate business nheeds to do so may use NLTRA
computers to access the Internct. Internet access and use should be restricted
to such legitimate business use, and the Internet should be not accessed or used
for purposes other than those directly related to the business of NLTRA.

January 2013 Page 14

¥-2-14




Employees using the Internet for personal use, including viewing or accessing
inappropriate websites, chat rooms, or any other facet of the Internet, may be
subject to disciplinary action, up o and including termination..

c. Social Media Policy

Employees post at their own risk and are personally and legally responsible for
their postings and online comments. NLTRA will not assume any liability or risk
for an employee’s posting online. The following are illustrative of the types of
relevant laws implicated by blogging, but are not intended to be comprehensive:
privacy, libel, defamation, harassment, copyright, data theft, disclosure of
material non-public information, and disclosure of confidential or trade secret

information.

When participating in a site, if the post in any way identifies the NLTRA or
discusses the NLTRA or its business, an employee must identify himself or
herself as a NLTRA employee, speak in the first person, and make it clear that
what is being said is representative of the employees personal views and
opinions and does not necessarily reflect the views and opinions of the NLTRA.
[At a minimum, an employee’s personal posting should include the following
standard disclaimer language, ‘I am an employee of the NLTRA. The views
expressed are mine alone and do not necessarily reflect the positions, strategies,
or opinions of the NLTRA".] In no way may employees represent or suggest that
their opinions or positions are endorsed by the NLTRA or any of its managers or
employees. In addition, employees should not re-publish postings or statements
of other NLTRA employees without making the same disclaimer that the views
expressed are of an employee of the NLTRA and do not reftect the positions,
strategies or opinions of the NLTRA.

Managers and executives should exercise particular care when posting online to
ensure their published personal thoughts are not misunderstood to be
expressions of official NLTRA positions.

Employees must always be in compliance with the NLTRA's policies regarding
non-disclosure of proprietary, confidentiat and personal information, especially on
social media websites. Accordingly, employees are prohibited from revealing, or
making any reference to, any proprietary or confidential information, trade
secrets, or other information covered by such policy. Even vague or disguised
references to such information could violate the NLTRA policies and applicable
laws. Employees also must respect copyright and fair use laws when posting.
Additionally, never identify a NLTRA client, partner, vendor, supplier or affiliate by
name, and never discuss the confidential information of a NLTRA client, partner,

vendor, supplier or affiliate online.

January 2013 Page 15

4-a-is



e.

January 2013

Employees are prohibited from using NLTRA logos, trademarks or other
intellectual property or adding a link to the NLTRA’s website without the NLTRA's
written permission. The Company menitors the use of its name, copyrights,
trademarks, website, and other information on the Internet. Employees likewise
may hot post any content that is harassing, discriminatory, defamatory,
threatening, disparaging, libelous or otherwise illegal or injurious. Moreover,
non-NLTRA blogs must never be used for internal business-related
communications between fellow employees.

Non-NLTRA postings may generate media interest or coverage. If a member of
the media contacts an employee about a NLTRA-related posting or online
comment published by the employee, or requests NLTRA information of any
kind, contact Human Resources.

Failure to adhere to Company policies regarding blogging and online postings will
be considered grounds for discipline, including immediate termination. Such
violations can also lead to serious legal ramifications for offending individuals, as
they can be held personally liable for any post that is defamatory, proprietary,
discriminatory, harassing, obscene or which violates any other law.

Ownership of Electronic Communications

All information created by any employee using any means of electronic
communication is the property of NLTRA and remains the property of NLTRA.
Personal passwords may be used for purposes of security, but the use of a
personal password does not affect NLTRA's ownership of electronic information.
NLTRA may override all personal passwords, if necessary, for any reason.
NLTRA reserves the right to access and review electronic files, messages, mail,
records of Internet use, and other digital archives, and to monitor the use of
electronic communications as necessary to ensure that no misuse or violation of

NLTRA policy or any law occurs.
Cell Phones and Smartphones

Cell phones or smariphones may be furnished to certain employees in

connection with their duties. Employees who are issued cell phones or

smartphones by the NLTRA should make all long-distance telephone calls while

traveling from their cell phone or smartphone. Employees need to limit personatl

use of cell phones and smartphones in the same way they need to limit perscnal

use of their office telephone. Employees that have excessive cell phone or

smartphone usage for personal calls will be subject to disciplinary action, up to
and including termination.

The NLTRA requires the safe use of its cell phones by employees while
conducting business. Employees should not use the cell phones while driving

Page 16

Y. -1




because of safety concerns, but should instead pull to the side of the road to
make or receive telephone calls. If unable to pull over or stop prior to receiving a
call, employees should utilize a hands-free device when safe to do so, keep the
business conversation brief, and immediately locate a safe area to park. Special
care should be taken in situations where there is heavy traffic, inclement
weather, or the employee is driving in an unfamiliar area. Employees must
adhere to all federal, state, and local rules and regulations regarding the use of
mobile devices while driving The NLTRA does not permit employees to drive
while using a hand-held cell phone or smartphone. Under no circumstances are
employees allowed to use text devices to type or review text messages for work
purposes while operating a motor vehicle or for personal purposes while
operating a motor vehicle during work hours or on NLTRA business.

E-mail and Voicemail

Telephones, computers, tablets, cell phones, smart phones and related software
and all other electronic forms of communications are efficient and valuable
business tools. They also may be the property of NLTRA. Employees do not
have a personal privacy right to any information received, created in, sent over,
or stored in the NLTRA's telephone systems, communication systems, and/or
computer systems. All NLTRA communications systems and both incoming and
outgoing information are subject to monitoring. In short, none of these systems is
considered to be confidential, nor should they be used to meet an employee's
own personal needs. If an employee receives a message that is not addressed to
him/her, he/she is not authorized to read or use information contained in that

message.

Brief and occasional personal use of e-mail is acceptable as long as it is not
excessive or inappropriate, does not occur during work time, does not violate any
of the prohibitions listed in the Use of Computers and Internet Policy, and does
not result in expenses to the NLTRA. Management reserves the exclusive right fo
determine whether any use is inappropriate, excessive, and/or violates this

policy.

4.2 Health and Safety

All employees are responsible for their own safety, as well as that of others in the
workplace. To help maintain a safe workplace, everyone must be safety-conscious at
all times. In compliance with California law, and to promote the safety of the workplace,
NLTRA maintains an Injury and lliness Prevention Program. The Injury and lliness
Prevention Program is available for review by employees in the office of CFO. NLTRA
strives to maintain the highest standards and the safest work environment.

January 2013

Page 17

Y-2-11



4.3  Smoking

Smoking is not allowed in any enclosed area on NLTRA premises.

4.4 Housekeeping

All employees are expected to keep their work areas clean and organized.
People using common areas, such as lunchrooms or restrooms, are expected to keep
them sanitary. Please clean up after meals, wash your own dishes, and dispose of

trash properly.

4.5 Parking

Employees may park their vehicles in designated areas. The areas designated
for employee parking may be changed from time to time, especially during winter and
summer. Please consult with your supervisor for the latest information concerning
designated parking areas. NLTRA is not responsible for any towing fees, loss or
damage to employee vehicles or vehicle contents while vehicles are parked at NLTRA

office premises.
4.6 Drug & Aicohol-Free Workplace

NLTRA is committed to providing a drug and alcohol-free environment for our
employees. Employees are prohibited from being under the influence of drugs, alcohol
or other substances during work time. When you are working, NLTRA expects you to
have 100% of your capabilities. Our drug and alcohol policy applies to all employees
and is strictly enforced. Employees will be asked to submit to a drug and alcohol screen
if the NLTRA has reasonable suspicion that you are under the influence of alcohol or
drugs while on the job or that you are in violation of the Drug and Alcohol policy.

ARTICLE 5
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

5.1 Holidays

Full-time year-round employees (FTYR) rece:ve seven (7) paid holidays: New
Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, July 4™ | abor Day, Thanksgiving Day, and
Christmas Day. When a holiday falls on a Saturday or Sunday, it is usually observed on
the preceding Friday or the following Monday. However, NLTRA may close on another
day or grant compensating time off instead of closing. Holiday observance will be

announced in advance.

The Visitor Information Center remains open on holidays. All full-time, year-
round employees who volunteer or are required to work on a holiday will receive pay for

January 2013 Page 18

Y-2-18



the holiday for hours worked and be eligible to bank eight hours for an alternative day
off, subject to management approval.

5.2  Paid Time Off (PTO)

Full-time year-round (FTYR) employees are eligible fo accrue “Paid Time Off”
(PTO) that may be used for vacation, sick time, floating holidays or personal time.
Accrual rates begin after the completion of two 64-hour biweekly payroll periods
following the employee's hire date. PTO will accrue for each biweekly pay period that
the employee is compensated for a minimum of 64 hours. Eligible employees accrue

PTO at the following rates:

0-5 years 18 days per year
1.5 days/month
.69 days/biweekly pay period

6-10 years 23 days per year
1.92 days/month
.88 days/biweekly pay period

11 plus years 28 days per year
2.33 days/month

1.08 days/biweekly pay period

Approval from management is required to ensure there is not a conflict with business
needs or other employees’ scheduling. Management expects employees to take some of their
PTO during the slow business periods. Business periods vary by department; there may be
slow time periods when PTO time is not allowed due to high business levels. A Time Off
Request form must be completed and submitted fo the CFO two weeks prior to the time off
requested, with the exception of sick time. Employees are encouraged to take PTO time in the
year it is accrued. PTO stops accruing after two times the annual rate. PTO will not be paid in
advance of accrual without the express written consent from the CFO, and employees cannot
work and earn a regular paycheck while they are collecting pay for time off. Employees do not
receive pay in lieu of PTO except upon termination of employment from the NLTRA. Upon
termination, employees will be paid any unused PTO in accordance with applicable state taw.
FTYR employees must work or receive payroll a minimum of 84 hours per bi-weekly pay

period in order to accrue PTO in that pay period.

5.3 Paid Family Leave Benefits

The NLTRA provides for paid family leave in accordance with California State law under
the “Paid Family Leave’ program (PFL) administered by the Employment Development
Department (EDD). The PFL program is a compenent of the California State Disability
Insurance program (SDI) and, as such, employees covered by SDI are covered for this benefit.
This disability compensation is extended to individuals that require time off from work to care

January 2013 Page 19

Y-2.-19




for a seriously ill child, spouse, parent, domestic partner, to bond with a new child or child in
connection with an adoption or foster care placement. Information regarding the PFL program
is available from Human Resources or directlty from the EDD website at
www,edd.ca.gov/disability or by calling 8§77-238-4373.

When an employee applies for PFL benefits, the Human Resources Department will
determine if the employee has any accrued buf unused vacation [PTQ] time available. If the
employee has accrued but unused vacation time [PTO) available, then the employee will be
required to use up to two (2) weeks of such time before becoming eligible for PFFL benefits.

Please note that employees taking time off work to care for a child, spouse, parent, or
domestic partner with a serious health condition or to bond with a new child under the Paid
Family Leave program are not guaranteed job reinstatement. Employees should maintain
regular contact with CFO while on leave, so that return-to-work status can be monitored.
When an employee is ready to return to work, it is important to contact CFO to determine what

positions, if any, are available.

5.4 Leaves of Abhsence

NLTRA may grant leaves of absence to employees under certain circumstances for up
to ninety (90) days. Employees should request any leave in writing at least thirty (30) days in
advance. During the leave period, employees should remain in contact with their supervisor
and provide prompt notice of any change in the anticipated return date. An employee who fails
to return to work at the agreed upon end of the leave period without communicating with one's
supervisor or Human Resources will be deemed to have abandoned his or her employment
and the employment will terminate as of the end of that leave period.. Upon return from a
leave of absence, an employee will resume all aspects of the employment status that existed
prior to the start of the leave. Employees on leave of absence will not be paid, although
accrued vacation or sick leave, if appropriate, as described in Article 5.3, may be used.
Vacation time and sick leave will not accrue during a leave of absence. Employee insurance
coverage may be in full or partial effect during the leave of absence, at the discretion of

NLTRA management.
5.5 Pregnancy Disability Leave

NLTRA recognizes that employees may be unable to work for temporary but extended
periods of time due to pregnancy, childbirth, or related medical conditions (Pregnancy-
Disability). Accordingly, for any employee who is disabled on account of pregnancy, childbirth,
or related medical conditions, NLTRA provides Pregnancy-Disability leave for the period of
actual disability, up to a maximum of four months.] Pregnancy-Disability leave may be taken
intermittently, or on a reduced-hours schedule, as medically advisable, before or after birth, or
during any period of time the employee is physically unable to work because of pregnancy,
childbirth or -related medical conditions. All leave taken in connection with a specific
pregnancy counts toward computing the four-month period. The NLTRA will continue o pay
the premium for health insurance coverage while an employee is on leave for pregnancy

January 2013 Page 20

Y-2-20




disability to the same extent and under the same terms and conditions as would apply had the
employee not taken leave. Employees disabled by pregnancy, childbirth, or related medical
conditions are entitled to State Disability Insurance (SDI) to the same extent as for all other
disabilities. Generally SDI will pay for four weeks before delivery and six to eight weeks after
delivery (depending on whether there was a cesarean section), but will extend a woman's
eligibility upon certification from her doctor that she is still disabled.

An employee is entitled to a reasonable accommodation for pregnancy, childbirth, or
related medical conditions if she so requests and provides NLTRA with medical certification
from her health care provider. In addition to other forms of reasonable accommodation, a
pregnant employee is entitled to transfer temporarily to a less strenuous or hazardous position
or to less hazardous or strenuous duties if she so requests, the transfer request is supported
by proper medical certification, and the transfer can be reasonably accommodated.

Whenever possible, NLTRA requests that an employee provide at least thirty (30) days
advance notice of the date for which the pregnancy disability leave is sought or transfer begins
and the estimated duration of the leave. If thirty (30) days advance is not possible due to a
change in circumstances or a medical emergency, notice should be provided as soon as is
practical. Leave may be modified as changing medical conditions dictate.

Any request for a Pregnancy-Disability leave must be supported by medical certification
from a health care provider, which shall provide the following information: (a) the date on which
the employee became disabled due to pregnancy; (b} the probable duration of the period or
periods of disability; and (c) an explanatory statement that, due to the disability, the employee
is unable to work at all or is unable to perform any one or more of the essential functions of her
position without undue risk to herself, her pregnancy, or to other persons. In the case of a
Pregnancy-Disability transfer, the medical certification shall provide the following information:
(a) the date on which the need to transfer became medically advisable; (b) the probable
duration of the period or periods of the need to transfer; and (c) an explanatory statement that,
due to the employee’s pregnancy, the transfer is medically advisable. Upon expiration of the
time period for the leave or transfer estimated by the health care provider, NLTRA may require
the employee to provide another medical certification if additional time is requested for leave or

transfer.

Unless NLTRA and the employee have already agreed upon the employees return date,
an employee who has taken a Pregnancy-Disability leave or transfer must notify Human
Resources at least two business days before her scheduled return te work or, as applicable,
transfer back to her former position. An employee who timely returns to work at the expiration
of her Pregnancy-Disability leave will be reinstated to her former position, or a comparable
position, whenever possible and consistent with applicable taw. If, for any reason the same
position is no longer available, NLTRA will offer a position that is comparable in terms of pay,
location, job content, and promotional opportunities, unless no comparable position exists. An
employee who fails to return to work at the agreed upon end of the leave period without
communicating with one’s supervisor or Human Resources will be deemed fo have abandoned
her employment and the employment will terminate as of the end of that leave period.

January 2013 Page 21

4-2-21



Each employee who has taken a Pregnancy-Disability leave or transfer must be released
by her doctor to return to work. The release should be in writing and submitted to the [Human
Resources Manager] on or before the employees return from a Pregnancy-Disability leave or

transfer.
5.6 Bereavement Leave

NLTRA grants leaves of absence to employees in the event of the death of the
employee’s current spouse, child, parent, legal guardian, brother, sister, grandparent, or
grandchild. An employee with such a death in the family may take up to three (3} consecutive
scheduled workdays off with pay, with the approval of NLTRA. The employee's supervisor

may approve additional unpaid time off.

5.7 Military Leave

Employees who wish to serve in the military and take military leave should contact the
CFO for information about their rights before and after such leave. You are entitled to
reinstatement upon completion of military service, provided you return or apply for
reinstatement within the time allowed by law.

5.8  Jury Duty

Jury duty is a community obligation and your responsibility as a citizen. If called, you
must provide a copy of the jury summons to your supetvisor at least one week in advance of
jury service. FTYR employees are granted a maximum of 15 days of paid jury duty per year.
All other employees will be compensated for lost pay in accordance with state law.

5.9 Insurance

NLTRA offers a comprehensive medical insurance plan to full-time year-round
employees after three (3) months of employment as a (FTYR) employee. [f an employee
changes from full-time to part-time status, medical insurance benefits will be terminated. To
reinstate medical benefits, the employee must complete ninely (90) days of full-ime
employment as outlined in Article 2.1b. All employees are required to contribute to the cost
of premiums for themselves and optional dependents in amounts determined by NLTRA.
Details about medical insurance coverage and rates are available in a separate publication
distributed by the CFO NLTRA reserves the right to modify or change the medical insurance

pilan at its discretion.
5.11 Health Club Membership

NLTRA will reimburse full-time employees for up to $25.00 per month for membership to
a health club. Requests for reimbursements can be submitted monthly or quarterly with

documentation to back up the expenditure.

January 2013 Page 22

4-2-22



5.12 Retirement Plan
NLTRA provides a retirement plan benefit to eligible employees, as set forth in the

Summary Plan Description of the North Lake Tahoe Resort Association 401(k) Profit Sharing
Plan available from the CFO.

January 2013 Page 23

4-2-23



CONFIRMATION OF RECEIPT OF EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK

| have received my copy of the North Lake Tahoe Resort Association's (NLTRA)
employee handbook. | understand and agree that it is my responsibility to read and familiarize
myself with the policies and procedures contained in the handbook. [ understand that except
for employment at-will status, any and all policies or practices can be changed at any time by
NLTRA. NLTRA reserves the right to change my hours, wages, and working conditions at any
time. [ understand and agree that other than the Board of Directors of NLTRA, no manager,
supervisor or representative of NLTRA has authority to enter into any agreement, express or
implied, for any specific period of time, or to make any agreement for employment other than
at-will; only the Board of Directors has the authority to make any such agreement, and then
only in writing, signed by the Board of Directors.

| understand and agree that nothing in the employee handbook creates, or is intended
to create, a promise or representation of continued employment and that employment at
NLTRA is employment at-will; employment may be terminated at the will of either NLTRA or
me. My signature below certifies that ! understand that the foregoing agreement on at-will
status is the sole and entire agreement hetween NLTRA and me concerning the duration of my
employment and the circumstances under which my employment may be terminated. [t
supersedes all prior agreements, understandings and representations concerning my
empioyment with NLTRA.

Employee’s Signature

Date

January 2013 Page 24

Y-2-24




ort iﬁakel toe

Chamber | CVB | Resort Association

Request: To Approve TOT Infrastructure funding in an amount of up $112,000.
These funds are to provide visitor information in Tahoe City, Truckee and
Auburn.

The purpose of the North Lake Tahoe Chamber|CVB|Resort Association’s Visitor
Information Centers and exhibits is to provide high quality, comprehensive and
convenient information services to welcome visitors to North Lake Tahoe and
provide them with helpful information to enhance their stay.

Tahoe City Visitor Center
The TC VIC is being relocated from its current location 380 North Lake Blvd., to a
new location, 100 North Lake Blvd.

This center is open year-round, week-days and week-ends and provides guests
with information concerning North Lake Tahoe. It also provides referral services
for North Lake Tahoe Chamber of Commerce members and lodging properties in
North Lake Tahoe.

Over the past three years the current Visitor Information Center has an average
of 14,611 visitors (walk-ins). The expansion will have a gift shop, sponsorship
opportunities, concierge services, library/book shop, local product sales, local
gatherings, agency sharing and private business kiosks/displays. This will allow
the NLTRA to better service visitors, the entire North Lake Tahoe local business
community/Chamber Members and lodging properties.

Construction is slated to start upon approval of this request. The opening date
of the new center is set for June 1, 2012. The total projected cost to remodel
the new center and provide additional equipment to better assist guests will not
exceed $82,000 (see attached estimate).

Displays in California Welcome Centers

Truckee California Welcome Center

The NLTRA is in the process of creating a North Lake Tahoe specific display in
the Truckee California Welcome Center. The display will have racks to distribute
the North Lake Tahoe Official Visitor Guide and the Neighborhood map.

Request for funds in the amount up to $15,000.

Auburn California Welcome Center

The NLTRA is in the process of creating a North Lake Tahoe specific display in
the Auburn California Welcome Center. The display will have racks to distribute
the North Lake Tahoe Official Visitor Guide and the Neighborhood map.

Request for funds in the amount up to $15,000 (see attached estimate).

¢4-3-\



Information Center - Tahoe City

Wall‘l-f-rérme arnd buiid

Door to Conference Room

Return Air

Thermostat move

Electric Outlets in floor

Paint

Carpet

ELO L B b - D

Track lighting for new wall

$ 400

Sandy

Slat wall removat (wall by side door and
front retall area stay)

d Conti

Grab Bars

Toilet

Sink

Flooring

o o - -

Door Signage

$ 25

Emily

Shelves/Cabinet

$ 150

Emily

Have already

Emily

TP/Hand Towel Dispensers

Solid Door

$ 400

Emily

_Shelving in former dressmg room

Is!and Counter $ 10,000 | Sandy/Emily
Building Signage $ 5,000 | Sandy/Emily
Computers - 4 $ 3,560 | Lisa
Printers - 2 $ 250 | Lisa
Phones - 3 Have already { Emily/Lisa
POS System for sales/inventory $ 2,700 | Emily/Lisa
Retail sales racks/shelves $ 4,000 | Emily
Music System $ 300 | Emily
Kiosks - 6 $ 6,000 | Sandy
Couches/Chairs - Library $ 3,000 | Emily/Kym
Chairs-Computer Station (3-Guests) $ 450 | Emily/Kym
Chairs - Computer Station (3-employees) $ 450 | Emily/Kym
Brochure Racks - 2 Have already | Emily/Kym
Conclerge Desk Have already | Kym
Internal Signage $ 450 | Emily/Kym
Touch Screen Technology $ 10,000 | Sandy
Flat Screen TVs - 2 $ 4,500 | Sandy
Outdoor tables and umbrellas $ 1,200 | Emily
Vacuum $ 300 | Emily
Qutside lighting S 6,000 | Ron
Way-finding signage $ 6,600 | Ron

1,100 | Ron

Bike Rack _

Sandy/ De'éhha

Tables/Chairs $ 3,300

Refrigerator $ 200 | Sandy/Deanna

Projector Have already | Sandy/Deanna

White Board/While Wall $ 700 | Sandy/Deanna

Coffee Maker $ 300 | Sandy/Deanna

Cabinets $ 630 | Sandy/Deanna
Total | $ 81,965

Y-3-a2




Information Center - Tahoe City

Original Infrastructure Funds Request Breakdown vs Incurred Expenses '

Original
Submission NLTRA
with Infra Actual

Building Finishes Landlord | Tenant Request Staff Responsilj Expenses | (Over)Under
Wall frame and build X $ 2724|% (2,724)
Door to Conference Room X $ -
Return Air X $ E
Thermostat move X 3 -
Electric X 3 1,585 | § (1,585)
Paint X $ - $  1270| % (1,270)
Carpet X X $0 3 1856 $  (1,855)
Track lighting for new wall X 3 400 |Sandy $ 107 | $ 293
Glass $ 121 $ (112)
Plumbing 3 20| % (20)
Slat wall removal (wall by side door and
front retail area stay) X $ =
Consulting Fees and Contingency $ 10,000 $ 3012|% 6,988
Bathroom
Grab Bars X $ -
Toilet X $ -
Sink Faucet X $ 148 | § (148)
Flooring ¥ $ -
Lighting $ 260 | $ (260)
Door Sighage X $ 25 [Emily $ 25
Shelves/Cabinet X $ 150 |Emily 3 150
TP/Hand Towel Dispensers X 0|Emily $ -

S "
Storage
Solid Door X $ -
Shelving in former dressing room % $ 400 |Emily 3 400

[ N
Visitor Center needs - Tenant
Island Counter $ 10,000 |Sandy/Emily $ 16178 | % (6,178)
Building Signage $ 5,000 [Sandy/Emily $ 9,728 [ § (4,728)
Computers - 4 $ 3,560 |Lisa $ 3941 ([ 8 (381)
Printers - 2 3 250 |Lisa $ 250
Phones - 3 - [Emily/Lisa $ 932 [ § (932)
POS System for sales/inventory $ 2,700 |Emily/Lisa $ 1,927 | § 773
Retail sales racks/shelves $ 4,000 |Emily $ 4080(8% (80)
Music System $ 300 [Emily $ 2911 % 9
Kiosks - 6 $ 6,000 [Sandy $ 15413 § (9,413)
Couches/Chairs - Library $ 3,000 [Emily/Kym $ 4078 | $ (1,078)
Chairs-Computer Station (3-Guests) 3 450 |Emily/Kym $ 6211 $ (171
Chairs - Computer Station (3-employees) $ 450 [Emily/Kym $ 129 | § 321
Brochure Racks - 2 0[Emily/Kym $ B
Concierge Desk, file cabinet, chair 0[Kym $ 1,001 [ § (1,011)
Internal Signage (outdoor banner) $ 450 |Emily/Kym $ 578 | § (128)
Touch Screen Technology 3 10,000 |Sandy $ 10,000
Flat Screen TVs - 2 3 4,500 |Sandy $ 1,144 | § 3,356
Qutdoor tables and umbrellas $ 1,200 [Emily 3 1659 | $ (459)
Vacuum $ 300 [Emily 3 130 | $ 170
Outside lighting $ 6,000 |Ron $ 6,000
| Signage $ 6,600 |Ron $ 463 | § 6,137
Bike Rack $ 1,100 |Ron $ 1,100
Pendant Lighting and new track § - 3 1,280 | § (1,280)
Picture Gallery Hardware $ - $ 390 | § (390)
Trash Cans $ 1,399 | $ (1,399)
Drink Dispenser $ - 3 159 | § (159)

$ »
Conf. Room needs - Tenant
Tables/Chairs 3 3,300 |Sandy/Deanna [ $ 4381 | § (1,081)
Refridgerator $ 200 |Sandy/Deanna $ 200
Projector $ - |Sandy/Deanna $ -
White Board/White Wall 5 700 |Sandy/Deanna $ 700
Coffee Maker 3 300 |Sandy/Deanna [ $ 444 | $ (144)
Cabinets 3 630 | Sandy/Deanna $ 630

$ -

Total| $ 81,965 $ 81,448 3 517

455



OFFICE OF

COUNTY OF PLACER '
: COUNTY EXECUTIVE
‘BOARD MEMBERS ‘ David Boesch, County Executive Officer
JACK DURAN M HOLMES . 175 FULWEILER AVENUE / AUBURN, CALIFORNIA 95603
TELEPHONE: 530/869-4030
ROBERT M. WEYGANDT KIRK UHLER FAX; 530/889-4023
District 2 District 4 www.placer.ca.gov
JENNIFER MONTGOMERY '
District 5

North Lake Tahoe Resort Association
Atin.: Sandy Evans Hall
PO Box 5459 o
Tahoe City, CA 96145 -

March 4, 2013

Dear Sandy:

| am writing to make you aware of some significant concerns the Placer County Executive Office has discovered
related to implementation of the Resort Association's Visitor Information Center, '

Specifically, in managing this project, it appears that provisions under the November 20, 2012 Contract Section 2.
B.), which require competitive bidding and procurement processes, development of and submittal to Placer County
scopes of work and contracts, and prevailing wages; and Section 5. E.) 2.), which requires the Resort Association to
submit project invoices, expenditures and balances, may have not been followed in ali circumstances.

Following a thorough review and several telephone conversations between County Executive Office fiscal staff and
the Resort Association's Chief Financial Officer Lisa DeRoulet, we have determined that the documentation provided
to date only sufficiently supports payment of $26,686.59 toward your total $81,447.92 in expenses. | have attached a
list of approved expenses for your review. Because this funding was advanced by the County to the Resort '
Association, as allowed in Contract Section G. Contract, it is possible that progress payments could be withheld in
order to remit any unsupported balance. It is certainly our preference to minimize or eliminate the withholding of any
progress payments. To that end, we ask that the Resort Association provide a written response that includes
contracts, scopes of work, invoices, receipts and other documentation necessary to back-up the total expense within
15 calendar days. We further extend an offer to coordinate a meeting of key members of our fiscal and management
team to work with your staff in reviewing data and documentation gaps.

As we have a shared interest is resolving this matter as soon as possible, | look forward to your response.

Sincerely,

CO Y OF PLACE

7 7 /7)?
David Boesch, |
Placer County Executive Officer




participating external jurisdictions.); 2) undertake its activities to implement in full the North
Lake Tahoe Tourism and Community Investment Master Plan; and, 3) assist with the planning,
development, and implementation of necessary public infrastructure improvements in the
Placer County portion of the North Lale Tahoe region.

The Scope of Work may be amended only upon written approval between the RESORT
ASSOCIATION and the County Executive Officer; provided, however, that no such

- amendment shall increase the compensation paid hereunder without execution of a written
amendment approved by the Board of Supervisors. '

. CONDUCT OF BUSINESS OF THE ASSOCIATION

A. All board meetings of the RESORT ASSOCIATION shall be conducted in such a manner
as to afford and encourage public attendance and participation. No later than two (2)
business days prior to the date of a meeting of the board, the agenda shall be posted at
the meeting place and at other appropriate locations in the North Lake Tahoe
community, and the RESORT ASSOCIATION'’S website. The public shall be given an
opportunity to attend each board meeting and to directly address the Board on any
item on the agenda and on the business of the RESORT ASSOCIATION generally.

B. The RESORT ASSOCIATION need not discuss confidential matters involving litigation;
attorney-client privileged matters, or personnel issues in public session. The RESORT
ASSOCIATION shall make every effort to maximize public input into its decision-
making process,

C. To the extent monies received for projects and programs are expended by the RESORT
ASSOCIATION or by a third party under grant from the RESORT ASSOCIATION for
service and support in any amount greater than $25,000, the RESORT ASSOCIATION
shall utilize and require any third party to utilize a competitive bidding or procurement
process, and in projects involving capital improvements, and shall be solely responsible
for compliance with applicable state and federal prevailing wage laws. This process will
ensure that the work is awarded in an impartial manner to the most responsive and best
qualified contractor making certain that the projects and programs are accomplished in
a cost-effective manner. This provision is not applicable to cooperative programs in
which the RESORT ASSOCIATION is not a primary partner. Primary partner is defined
as funding a 40 percent or greater share of service and support costs. This provision is
also not applicable when service and support is being provided by a non-profit public
benefit corporation that does not compete with other potential service providers. All
service and support including initial pre-project planning and feasibility phases in an
amount greater than $10,000 must be accompanied by a scope of work and contract
which is reviewed and approved by the Board of Directors. This includes funds granted
for cumulative or phased projects and programs. RESORT ASSOCIATION staff shall
within 29 days notify and provide supporting documentation in writing to the Board of
Directors for uhbudgeted project or program expenses of $2,500 or greater. Copies of
contracts for all services with a value of $25,000 or higher shall be provided to the

COUNTY.

D. The RESORT ASSOCIATION shall maintain updated bylaws that reflect current Board
composition and committee structures.

U-3-5




Lisa deRoulet

To: Jennifer Merchant

Cc: David Boesch; Holly Heinzen; Ron Treabess; Allison McCrossen; April Adams;
ronparson@granlibakken.com; phil@cbspizza.com; Bill Rock; Sandy Evans Hall

Subject: Response to County for Request for Additional Documentation and Clarification for VIC billing

Attachments: Response Dated 3.5.13 to County for Additional Clarification.xlsx

Jennifer,

Per the email below, attached are responses 1o the request for documentation.

Peryour direction during our telephone discussion yesterday afternoon, [ have not requested new invoices from
contractors but have sought to provide the needed clarity for each item highlighted. Some instances where the
comment “invoice altered” was noted from the County, the reference was driven by notes | made on an invoice but it
did not change the amount paid to a contractor. In other situations, adjustments were made on the documents to
reftect the proper amount due to a contractor. If you determine that you would prefer that | request the contractors to
prepare new invoices, | would be happy 1o do so. For ease of reference, | retained the original page number notations
but included a new pagination sequence in the upper left corner of each support document.

fn reviewing the action items, page 157 identified a discrepancy in which NLTRA paid for fabor that should have been
absorbed by the landlord as part of the tenant improvements for a total of $262.50, Additionally, a credit card charge
for $20.03 from Ferguson’s for a plumbing item should have been billed to the landlord and not included in the support
to the County.

I have also provided a reconciliation of the credit card statement totals identified on the summary sheet to the
individual credit card charges. The reconciliation did result in my identifying a $0.36 difference between the summary
total provided to the County of $21,376.55 versus a total of $21,376.91 when tallying the individual support documents.

The adjustments noted above result in a downward adjustment of $282.14 from the original summary amount of
$81,447.92 to $81,165.06.

Please let me know if you or one of your staff would like to review the additional information with me. | am certain that
we can resolve all concerns identified.

Regards,
Lisa

Lisa de Roulet

Chief Finaneial Officer

North Lake Tahoe Chamber/ CVB/Resort Association
Phong: 530-581-8726

Coll: 775-232-8906

Lisa@ puretahoenorth.com

www.gotahoenorth.com

orth Iaké téhc}é

Bbitebad | OV | Pounst Aoty

\

Y

50




$2J0AU] BPIAOI4FRI[ONU] OU - BlaLINES PRRY]00'D 00°58°E ZE0T UGN [TTOZ/V/S D10/ BUGHS BUIRY |68
(TE-0€ 3d 39s) '90)0nUl 51y SE JUBWINIOR |, B38WIST, BUL
PASN JOIDEAUOD 3L} “AA0GE PIILIS 3¢ “LIel a3 Buppays waly
suBlEIoY LA SWos STy 3| ", Palale, 10U Sem JUanoop Sy
2D{0AUL S PIRO. | 3310AUI O - 932ULRIR PaIady {00°0 00°002T 95071 2UON [TT0Z/3T7Y IO U015 FUIY |58
{sZ-57 53d pas) "o3pueld
10 sqe(s z aypsuede paypaln yuawied Pz TS 813 835 UED 1
noA g sfed up "je3su] Ay pAIRIdLCD 3Y UIYM ZTA/9 Lo Sulg
[eUl Y1 S D3UUNST, PUGDIS BYL “ZT/TT/G U pied 09713
511BYL "IUS JSUZOUE JOpJO 01 PAPAIU 210G JUARLNS 3q piiom
s3ueid jo gEjs BUB JINoYI AMSY AljRUISND "paindcid siam Asy)
uaym sjgualei Joj Aed sm pajsanbal J01I8U03 3] ADIeAL |
IFBY3 S JULLINIGR  BIRMRST, BUL PASN lom 2uels auld)y
]Bwasinguyas £5u38.35 Ang 000 6LEYET TLiy 102/9/9 ALDOYRL (S
(52-p 3d 835} "wuLTN 243 0 Msadosd Agm - susaog| ey pIg guewssaNqWIaY
3 a4z AdyL 4leysq no uo sussLss Ayl 3yBnog Aayy 535 40} AL B0Ye) asinglulay
SboAl] aplacld WBARALN000 EELVE BUCN|ZTREZ/OT/Y ATANN| P8
ue j0U 5] S1YY, s3tels Alea|y
(ET-6T 58d aas) "payaee aaoAU|
ZAqIam ©) panss T-M S[Qe66QT - J0RE[UOD | 0070 007002 BUCN [ZT0Z/TZ/S sodwe) 101718
(51-9758d 235} "sodute] JoIo|A 10} EEOT PRYDSHE 335 3583)d| S0 6EOT SeM-3010AU; FPIACIY Juapuadapu/aaioldur
Wuopes|ddy uBls 1eoejd, 3uypg wyeN oo S5'87T BUGN|TTOZ/L/L J0S5Y B JIRJU)IDI DY
- 5ZLT# F210AU] JIEJUEND] 10§ 305D - JUALIBSINGLYIY
Yo pred jou osje sem JLuad
(e5T-4T 53d 2as) -aey Jutiad [Buy s semaunawe sjy)| 483 URWRSINGLLIAL S3epIRA
82)0Au 3pinoad aseald|  anjoal] Ly Yo JmeeiueD[00D D065 BUON [ZTOT/TE/S Bl[RLIY [2Rie (6L
- ¢S310Mm O pBRSSI Z-M, 40 Juapuadapu {[otied)
B60T 5BM - 055 2010AUI LYY sshopduwy’
{2t UG 05]E JOqE| Awes sieaddy
TT 58 335) "G50T © NS5 10U PIP M 05 D0O% UEYJ 553] 2IdM 510D
~asUadKa YY1 IN 404 SEM LI B3 JO BILR|EG SU |, “BOUEIMA]R
|L4na sapun o 3)gisuedsad 245 A3L} JOGR] 104 09§ 2D10AU]
Auedwog usunsaau| uyey uo pRIRIdED UC SEM SN 5,21 WY |
ey Jo o yy LN Ag 1ou uyey edoy Ag pauielal sem (sepey
[oT-6 53d uoneue|dya| cc'0 00308 LT0Z Z0Z/1T/s Fuiuieg SIUICIT ALRN(SZ
[95) ‘asuUEMO|E |L 2} OB 30U SBAL SI | LIDCA BIUDILU0D appnod asead - projpus;
uf jjem.  PIEOGSIYAN,, 243 JUied 01 JOGR] [RUCIIPRE J0) SEM U | Aq o) pled 3g o3 Jujed
a3{enll] mal pUe Uoneue(dxa 2pa15anba1{06T S0 FET T €5ET ZT0Z/TE/S TR
{3-2 534 395) UL S43 C1 PIIEFIUN 3I0M SO} SEM apingid asenid - pajejal Jfrusufpiae 2aieu|
JUnclLe e aSNE03G 0SS AQ YHLTN O3 PASINGUU) 5q of sunowe| DA 30U SEI0m swes sizsddy)
BU3 PAINPGL BN 90 FR0'TS AU 5] YYLIN 03 pasinquial ag )
JUNTWE 3L 44@ABMOH "BII0AU] FUC UQ 53920ad 3)di3|nw pasioau;
UAIRQ "80"pET'TS 104 T124) UAIRG WICLL 32]0ALI UB S| PayoEny
@l0AUl MBU PUE UCREURIIXD épaysanbalinn o T99/8'T RLET AT IR UARQYS,
apwosd sszapd - payeal SIA-UCU/paIa)e 3310AU]
{55 58d 335} Ja3uag Y3 £} PSIE[SIUN JI0M 1O SEM JUnOLUE 1A 304 51 0m Stos sieaddy
JRy3 ISNESG O0ES AQ YHLLTN 03 PASINqUIA 3¢ 03 JunowWe
SU3 PIDNPI A TH'ILL'TS A0 51 WHLIN 03 PRSINGLD 3y of
JUNCIWIE U3 SIASMOH DIOAL 3U0 WS 593[0ld KW pasionus
uAleq TR9/5'TS 4o Teay UAIEQ tL04L 320AL) UE S} palERY
[t~ s8d @eg) -uoimuswnoap jRUSIIRRE 1o Yed 200AUl IpIGIY IVPOAU] ON|OO'0 i ZEL Y 6T¥995 AUONTIOT/IT/S DO53A|ZL
ke 19eUeD PINDEXE B PRPN[EUI 3ARY | JORINGY S} SPOUBIRNR
&4 3d uo pazdasoe ned asjoauwr ay) -AEiesedas pazioau)
30U PUE JRERU0D SL) U pspniou) sem udls sy3 10) jusuied
UMOP b/ 264 7S 3U L "UCKHEIUBLINDCE PayDenE 35 95eald
VHIIN Wosy asuodsay|  vHLTN WL pApasu uonaYy| smes|  pascaddy| peisenbay 3DI0ALT 1230 qof] 2300  JagunN ed Jopuap| Jaguiny
WNCWY wnowy| ©3 dnapeg D/aiewns aajonU adeq

paJtnbal dn=joeg fucipy - 3|qeAkd SjUROWY

NOILYDIHIHYI2 TYNOILIGAY Y04 1SINDIY V04 ALNNOD 01 €1°5°E d3LVd ISNOJSIY

0-3-71



A BOy-LOYBTS T
[05-T¥ 53d) *560T & 20551 10U PIp [wdd PJO|PUE] 513aden
3 05 YY1 AQ PIUIBSaI BY SEM JOU YELIN §0 99A0|dWa Uk 30| - FH1IN 03 padieys yadien
H shoy qUSWoasde |L NG JSpUn 1o} 3|qIsuodssl SEM Yy TN 10} auify- 309 o) Jo sy ]
-_DDW_ -_Dm mvm 004"2_.: .AEN&E“U JUALGSAALY LILEY LUO vﬁ.—:uﬂﬂu Vo
SEM DL 5,5ND YH1TN Aq 30U Lyey J=30y Aq patlela) SEM [[BH
ShY ||eIsu] 01 JoYE] [SUoiPRE PRlInbTl JeY; 511 19dIED € S5Ol
P ‘3edies woolpeolg € 4O 356D 3t JAACD oY paasde pIo|PUE] Ayl
e LP2eR 0070 oS TT0Z/08/F
{05-Ty 3d) 53503 B50\3 304 D3 PISINGUWIE. YULTN |EE) - JjzH Apues o3 33jaauy
243 ‘syuawnodw) uedn-paa.de SL3 JepUn PAJBAD J0U SEM| =~ J{2H SN + 3216AL) PAISYY|
S0 B4R IS YM SSIURISU] U] "IBUSD SUS U} Siuslencadul) Jusuay
PaIaA03-PJOjpUR] Jog Auede: Justuisendl ugey Ag Apoaaip paJy wm
SEM |IBH SN "SInoy Jadold eup33e|3as o} SA0AU Bl PATIRL0D o \WW«
105 J0AIT IBW 110y OM3 B 2p2IU uyey JeSoy ‘uoneuawnaop W%A,Mmﬂ@v
Buiptoddns aus uo dn sinoy ay) pIpERE | UM §I0Mm |1 Op o} [|BH wwﬁvmmwma %m S
SND paUlEIa] oy AUBdUIS IUSLSIAL| LYE) Wy 51 oA 2y [
s23ed Jay3o uo Jou MepiEA|RD'G 2TOZ/6L/Y
(ot-6£ 3d a2s) "s3suadxs pajefR: 100-pIRG 1310 PUR S3EEYD 3|qIS500-5381390. IPIADIG | - IN|EA FhUL IO JUSLLRES
25513 UaaMIaq UoResljdnp ou spaley) sidiasal 341 348 PIUDERY,
£53RUIqRa Bsa; 101 9 SIGY Z1e3yspEasds|oc o 0E 656 FE A2 2E) SIS BRIZ| PG
pING3 ‘0E/S palep adempley JPtpoue sialy) 5| YHEWw
(3e-pesid sey {26 3d) pei 3210au] | 30U S20p IRUMSY pAYDENY|
395 "IUAIRJJ 10} BIELLRSS [BUITUO I} ppnjoul pey; 3oefoud ‘ospy "DE'6E5'LS PAoAr| | 3FIyspeads paysene 2ag,
IURIILIP B 105 51 PR IDIOAU) SIDUIDJRL YIIUM L8 38TS EBIVLS OF'69H LS 0/ 1500 oL
4o junee Jadosd o je3ey sjuswad y33Y2 Jno pue aoddns| Papnod dn-yoeq yajew] auy| weN N wWawiediooe 00°005'C RUONIZTOT/ LT/ S19030:d Reid e
Y1 OEE9SLS §1 12303 33 Bupesipul pg s3ed uo odhl B 51 209U [ 30U S0P 3509 j2303 J0) BajOAL) UMOR ROS'ZS SeY SaI0AU]
PUOAL| BPInGLG ] 83(oAUL OU - BIBILNSD PASBIYIO0T 00°002°T BUONIZTOZ/E PoOMPUNCY|TE
"TL/ET/S Un plRd ‘DOTTS Sem [[E3SUL e JeloriteD
DY} 03 2NP JUNOWE JUlRWAL Y| “5010AU! SR ST JUBWMSOP
WIIBWINST, A3 PASN JOIDRALED AU, "LIeW 343 Juizoys woly
suopelou [puad 2e 223y °,PAIIYE, JOU SEM JUSWNIGR FYL

4-3-8



4-3-4

{05 8d 52s) ‘095 s2j0Aul Auedwo] JuaLIISaAY)
Uley uo patsy 5770 TS 243 40y Moddns s1get afed jRuiBg

ZELT

HeET

[£-T5 3d) ~aouemalye |1 543 AQ passaos

20U Jupoo)y 63 Pajefad jaam Joy asuadxa YH1TN 348 Ul sinoy
3y spoddns aTpe2y ydieoey souemaye |1 Y3 PUOAIL JUIMm 3l se
Apgisucdsal iy 1T S2a Joge] SWGS SI3URMO][B JUaWEA0IdL)
UBUEY 343 Ad P3JaA0S SEM JOGE] JU3 SI5E FLOS U} "plojpue] auy
404 s3R0p uLiogad 63 3|y Ad paiojduia sem [enpinpu; awes ay)
*PIPWANE B49M AUECLIOT JUSLISSAU]

uyEY AQ WY LTN 35Y3 03 pajjlg sanoy ay3 Jej poddns ayl WuiIN
Aq poAcdwa Jo PuAl 30U sEM 3y 35uls Bo| 2w & wieIuEW

10U PIR YHLIN [[BH Sha poany Auedwio] Jusiugsany) ugey

6., 98ed aes ~ Jojaenun))|
Rspusdapul/asicidg

9TPRTS

|[Fly 1aryey

CET

sng) Jey Bojaun |

{tL-18

s2d]'sn o} 3njeAul 1Y J5uiee £asUdX DICIRUR| ASAYL PRIINPSIP
AR 05 IWEY Yy [N Ul ApesJje 30aMm s3]
"23e0ed pue SaQIIN I8} 3]qIsuddssy sem PIOIPUZ] SU3 YIOE AN
03 T [Ley Jo popad uonanusuos a4y Sujing ‘poLRd JuswWeAcldw)
JuBURL 13 BULNp pUo|pLE| 24 4o ApgIsuodsal 3Ly ale

IBULS: N 10 347 09§ I2]0AU] WOIY SUOKRNPSP a4) rasuadxa
et pue aurEnaselu] 1o SuISURIWGY ou st ey ‘E0T079'5S|
40 unowe oyl |eI0) {BESESZS 40) 3G AU PUE S5 YBTES)

10 995 AUl AuRdLIE] USURSIAU] UYRY WAk S33|OAU] oM ] |

N 243 “LSASMOH |

RS
T

RIS

£aUas pue|
aunpnnseiul Su)Sunsa)
- pajsanbad unolue|

33 YIIEW 0 $36P dn-yzeg

TIraTs

0455

(0% 3d sas} -Ausduwiod JUSWISIAL] ULRY WG 9bS
B3J0AU] Uo IEJeYD BnjeA BT 2Y) Jof oddns 5t 57T ade- jeuBug

los-1t s8¢ '00"ES

Aq junowm Jadodus ue dn paxod Oy ey sieadde 3] pe'2ps
A0} 3Ua PUR G5 104 0L WOJ) SO BUG 1 3I2Y] Opg
alaau) s AuRdWIOD JUSUWNSIAL] UYEY UG papn|ow sedieyd Jaquin
IYBru) SoUR] UL £F'0SE Y o) poddns le gET pue zT seley

£8'05 30U
EB'E5S 4/5 voyel sayany

(05Tt 3d 295} 1y pasingquany
SEU VHLTN UDIYM SSTETES S04 Wiag] Sul| B SEY DI WO 1S adlonu)

ay3 suasaudal 977 a8ed [euAND eouBMO|(z |L B3 J3AD 350D
3% |ELISLEL U3 JO 51500 3UY 204 3{gIsucdsal SEm YU LN JaRaMaL
“A[RaaIp Jujed 243 40} pred pue 1oy pacIoAL; SeMm Auzdion

Wa)) PIIOALT ARSRUP JOU SEM WY LTN 6TT 28ed Uo gpg 3310aU
DIy uo s23Jey3 [euonippe 243 Woddns 03 sEM UL NIOP S{ 5|Y)

0% am pasude se | a0 3509 3y} o) Juslunzep Suuoddns|;

WIWISIAU] UYEY © 520[02 JUied [BUSIIPPE 3U} 10} SIYI0LE AR

32/0AUT OU - ATRWIRST

WAL Y21t U] 90°E9SS J0) WBY 3ul| B SeY D)t W} ag aateAu;
"I Y3 poaide se [ I5AC 3500 |BIBIEL ALY JO) S{e1a3etl
BunJoddns ayy Juasaidsl 21 pue pzT seded jewSup ‘asuemalie
|1 343 19AC ASOUD IM fRFEN SUT 10 51500 3y Jo) B|qisucdsal sem
VYLV Uanamoy Apoadip secizs a3 Jog pred pue o pasioay|
sem Auedine) JustIsIAL| uyey “1adies U3 Jog udissq [RuUOEIUN,
W04} PAJIOAUL AJISSLP 30U SEM WY IIN “5TT 28ed U6 gis B310AL
23 ue sagieys (e P2 243 Loddns o sEM JUBLINDOR 51 SIYL|

P2PAAM] OU 330ND
-$3s02 Qures); [BUomIPRY

(eST-+T pue ety 3d 8a5) “Pwlad 33 Joj8np sEMm
JELE JUNOWE |jeitt 81 S 51y, jualAed a3eafdip e gou s sy |

¢s3eat|dnp - ucuEuE:nEﬁE
Joy gg Ad 835 - Isuadia
143 40 UoyeULEdys apaclg

F3W S
Jo/e8ed uo pred voneayddy
uS|g Jaokyd SOTS Al 5

97LL

€ZT




(sz

3d 993) "poES 4o 12301 2 403 InoY Jad SZS @ SINOY § 343 pIpnpL
Ajuo DAey PINOYS | 10 U 05ZS0S $6 Junowe ||ny s dn pasyad
| “uawdzd BUN[Ino Ul 184913 $|U3 SPNPU} M parsanbay projpue] [

00°00Z$ 5134 5 3q pInays

TebeTs

smnoy sno

JBHwi) seyanl] soye]]|

papinoLd B1am pue §7'7 /¢ [e103 papiaoad sydiasal anjep anup st

Jaquing aaxena] soye)l Lo eran
*LOISNLICD SAYLIR; AUR PISAE 03 “UOHRIUALLNICP Y3 Joy BRIEA AL 9Ty
WAk} SnoWaL UED BAY "WAYY JO} JBWBSINGUIRI Sulsanbe jou
213/ BM PUE SJUNOLLE BST17] 40} FDI0AU| 10U PP JUBLUISIAL] ULEY
{p2-T5 #d) 095 2310AU] Ue AUEdWIOS JULIsBALY 51z
Uyjey woaz wy 1IN 01 PAdIoAU] JUnNCWe ays o3 dn yoeq se o

-TST so¥ed ym snipA ansy

FQUINT 9930 L 9aYE] |

2qITy 3N Laoue] ]

RN IBNLLROYE]

FET

[aapni voue[prT

IPANT SPP L SR

EVT

LA

SIS SR T 9ouE|

(443

(be-T553d) 68
50 50 03 Suliqaepun ue w1 BUnsed ARTR1163U] 535]0AU] A3 paitiel]

13qWNT @RI Boye ]

T

ISqUINTSTPLL sogE]]

0T

FIRqUIR 29 49NI L SOGEL

(333

LE'SOT

BET

Oy 3eu sieadde 3] "5 56¢ I} 095 S2t0AU] AuBdLIOT JUSULILEIAL]
uyey do adeyz au soy Yoddns st papicad sem Jje3ap siq)

TS[e3.03]
JBQIRT 233N doYe] |

BQLAT] 23T ) Soye )

LET

4-3-1D



syjunowse

Lo Suijjig Aue ysiew jou seog

¥ed|86T

T B e

AJEUIINS
iBpJ0 UR payIene 3aey | ng sSieys 3pan auyt sy 3dimoay

SIELYD { 930N - 3d)asay o

-5 Bd) povsene aas - Al Japlaq Joy sidisan, B paIapLoay |;

YmeLu 30U op sdisoay

@ B9"52665- PRAsINbal Junowelg') £zsexxxxlzroz/se/y
paysene ves - Ajuepe 129359 10 s1djadss s uu._mn._uwz P.W,ﬂﬂyﬂa%.w Hpasu30 op R,
]
snoma.d wouy panul

= 20 U0 JWE U3]BWI J0U 530p

oy 83500 dn 1035 1B PRPNRY) A4 3dIaa) Aw 5| 931eyD pies -3djo004 U0 Aue |ejoigng
UpBId BY) *umouy jeu e sadiels Buiddiys 3ome ayy pue aujjue
paskd 51 JBpIe UE UBUM SISIE SIY] "PLED NP U3 03 padieys
WNOWE YL PUE [B)0) JARIC USAMIDY SIUTIBLIP BE' LTS B 5] 3434

5T BSING IR 6] Spoal

1280y, ~3di@08d Uo sajegs|
passdy

SIT 3d a5

“PRUDERE 3TUaDI] PROUMEE J0 Ad0D “IFURD ULt
21esada 0} pepeau BMm PAIBARILUE 3M JUNOWE {2307 243 Jo Hed se
PORNY sem Welshs 2es Jo Juied aseyand 03 ualiannbal syl :
[FZ EES" 1E39WL333Us = NS
LOEE a.m.s“cms Emuc:a_z
085445000 LZSEXXAKIZTOZ/RT/S
lsET - paysanbal Junowe

Y-5- 1



J1ea11dnp Jo) 10puaa JuioeiuaD Rieyd pres eyl Jylo 3djEdel Fulssit

passa0.d JUNOLWe pIEs 1P 03 pappe 1dieoal ou

Melag Juswisnipe ‘o) JUBWISIAL| uyey 01 paSIeyYD pue papnpXE 8q PINCYs S14L AJUnc: yym 2518y

25UadxXs JBIUBY §| WRN2EA 343 AJUO ING £07TLTS 51 3di@22d 10 Junowe |jny

L6°TLYTS 40 30j0au] [BuiFL0 DY) uEy] 553 0T pES sem 882U paed JpaUd [ense

S5Jeyd PaID 2YY 51 4012092 Y] BU| UC PALSPIS SEM SILY

9TZrs’E

5eetg’ 5
99°¢7 S anjea anJL
YEITIS J2qug) udis uelsy|
TreQl SqouUY AN
BELT Buiddiys wey u3goy
09°E¥9'T wey Uagoy
£6°602 XXBIA| [L
9" 966 uleg Aanog
EE'ELY Ja1us) uBls eisu;
19°g¢E SIBMPIBH LIRIUNOA
£0'0¢2 5,uosniiag
ST'16E $21U0.125]3 SUOSHED
14802 51895
06°8pS sudissq plejjeg
S9' LTy uleg Alaneg
rE9Z S3M07
£E'TE9 HOJU0T UIBIUNOA
16'50€E Wielen)
00008 J2IUST SWOH UIRIUNOA
98't9r $Od AN
YTEES [BIZIA 183YS INSIA
BIBMPUEH UIRILNON

Lo'sT
4 90 - 21/82/S:T1-62/Y.

maw_nmﬁ 1Y WBYSAS AJ3([BS

reEst $

66677 5 Banjep snUY
88LYT S 1= 1e0ne - Worping
15785°C S ABojoulpa] iandwos
Ty 5 llled eep)
L8°8EY'T g SINpold BSIBA
88657 g BIEMPIEH UOIIEIO1SAY
02°0L1T g 3|paBuARY
92'9L8T $ AI03818A0
78769 s wied 2ap|
06'¥21 s

3ol [enpralpul Aq saSieya pies Mpasd

§S9/£17 g 199USHIoM AMELILIAS ub 210
58°85¢ $ 19|nCy Bp - 152 841 40 Yueg Jequsidasg
£L°0LT'T $ 19N0Y 2P - ISR BUI JOdUEg ISNINY
159127 g 12|N0Y P - 153 BUY JO Rueg Anf
5970S S TIEH SUBAZ - I1S2AA BU JO Yued aunr
TTS06'L § 15|NCY 2P - 153/ AU JO yueg Bunf
ST08T0T S 19[NOY 8P - 353/ 241 40 Yueg Aajy

Alung 01 129ys ALBWIWNS LD Juncwe [ewSl0
Hoddng af1ey?) jenpiajpu| 03 UORE(IZUEIIY AZBWIWNS PIED APBID WHLTN

LRV




UUER 03 PR|IIQ 29 Pnoys JusWasIngiural AJUNOD 104 pIRMDU; USSE 2ABY JOU PNCYs

apel3dn

9suBDl| JBUOILPPE

D T ——

90°S9T 18
9€°C
ooz
0529
TELPV'ES

o

l

W W U W

(r9°6T)
0002
9g0

4

vy 1)

16°9/6TT

LU U AR A0 A e

Aunog o3 pajiig 2q 03 (2301 AsBliwng pajiation
AlpwWNg sa |1le1sp paes JIpass ul 2ouslayIp Supeuodsy
Auedwo) Juswisaau] uyey 03 pajig Bg 03 B2J0AUI S,ucsndleS
IUNCooe WY UG Jou Joge papn|au /ST 98ed U0 10U WY1 TN
Auno) o3 pajig je10), Alewwng

SISA|BUE pa2D 3pss0 woly A3unoy o3 ang
5U0SN3284 1ssa

Hoddns pajlelap pUB AleWwng Usamiag JUNOIWE Sulpuotay

SBIL0AUL [ENPIAIPUT 3O |B30]

susis ssuendwos

suss asueydwon
u21S Bupiieg A
usis Buppied AW

nigoqIBRIE o0
,moa Hnu|

85'79¢
ir'es
8CV0T
LSEFY
95°08
00621

£9'05"
1908
78028
5TE6

shejdsig uy wWasAS ALs|eo
UOINPOId %2840 JIOM

oul Alddng 82110
jodsg awoy
snluing Aepp aun
zr/ez/e-T1/6e/s

' 0o pjood 15910

WeH u8gqoy

wep Waqoy

VIeH suen3 - T1/ge/9-T1/62/5

s/

T1/8e/4T /6t

$0d Hnu}

U-3-13



i 2N
e

O

@

TRANSIENT OCCUPANCY TAX
UPDATE

O

Jerry Gamez, Director
April 3, 2013

TRANSIENT
OCCUPANCY TAX
AGENDA

+ Introductions
- Background
» Ordinance Amending Article 4.16 of the
Transient Occupancy Tax Code being
presented to the Board of Supervisor’s
during the April 23'1 Meeting
* Questions?




TRANSIENT
OCCUPANCY TAX
BACKGROUND

« Last updated in June 2007

&
&

©

=

‘ (} - Exemptions from Tax, Penalties, and Definitions

TRANSIENT
OCCUPANCY TAX
BACKGROUND

- April 23" Board of Supervisor’s Meeting
+ Introducing an Ordinance Amending Article 4.16 of
the Transient Occupancy Tax Code

(-—-\ + Primarily for housekeeping purposes only
| @

( } « Extend the TOT sunset date from Sept 2012 to
@ \"-s._.j-""

Sept 2022 as a result of the voter approved
Measure F

@

R~71




TRANSIENT
OCCUPANCY TAX
BACKGROUND

| + Updates to Improve or Streamline TOT
Operations
and/or Functions
: i ( ) + Definitions including:
(/ : Rent
@ ‘
¢

3]

) Transient
g Exemptions
N Registration Certificates

Reports and Remittance Waiver & Appeal Process
Duty to Keep Records — Right of Inspection
Violations

TRANSIENT
OCCUPANCY TAX

+ Questions?

5-3




% &
'la
3

north lake tahoe

Chamber | CVB | Resort Association

NLTRA Special Event Grant Funding Summary and Recommendations
Round Two Fiscal 2012/2013

The following recommendations were made by the Special Events Task force in
a vote of 4 in favor and one abstension.

Tahoe Fat Tire Festival, September 14-15, 2013
Requested Amount: $2,200
Recommended $1,500

The 2012 race generated 225 registered riders and approximately 1,000
spectators per day. 75% of the riders were local and 25% were from Reno,
Foothills, Sacramento, Bay Area, California & Wisconsin. The 2013 race will be
produced by TAMBA and the goal is 500 registered riders. Producers will create
a 2013 lodging package to track room nights. This was not possible in 2012 due
to being on the same weekend as Tough Mudder and there was no flexibility in
lodging rates. This event encourages mountain bikers of all ages and abilities to
attend and participate.

North Tahoe ARTour, July 12-14 and July 19-21, 2013
Requested Amount: $4,000
Recommended: $3,000

ARTour has hired a new event producer, Carla Beebe whose passion for this
event was obvious. To date she has 40 artists signed up for open studio tours, a
40% increase over last year. She is developing a survey to track guests. She is
also partnering with Nevada Arts, Placer Arts, North Tahoe Arts and San
Francisco Magazine to generate pr. San Francisco Magazine has agreed to give
them significant editorial with an ad buy. This event has been revitalized through
Carla’s efforts and she is looking at a possible second tour in the shoulder
season. Funds will be used for marketing campaign.

North Lake Tahoe Bridal Faire, NLTChamber of Commerce, April 13, 2013
Requested Amount: $5,000
Recommended $2,500

The bridal faire is designed to market to future brides who are planning their
weddings in Lake Tahoe. Included in the faire are wedding vendors, a cake dive,
fashion show and each bride will receive a bridal guide to vendors, services,
lodging, etc. The requested funds are to offset the cost of printing the guide.
There was an expense budget submitted with the application, but no revenue
budget. Staff felt the vendor revenues would offset part of the cost of printing the
guide.

Squaw Valley Institute 2013 Luminary Speaker Series, Squaw Valley
Requested Amount: $5,000

lo- |



Recommended: $3,000

The grant request is to help offset the costs of the Luminary Speaker Series.
The complete 2013 lectures/speakers are included in the event packet. The
Executive Director of SVI will send resulis of her zip code survey for 2012. Staff
will work with her to develop a room tracking mechanism.

Humane Society of Tahoe/Truckee Peaks & Paws Festival, Squaw Valley
August 24-25, 2012

Requested Amount: $2,500

Recommended $1,500

Grant funds will be used for an expanded Facebook campaign reaching into the
San Jose, Oakland and Bay Area region with an expected 150,000 impressions.
The campaign will be for four months leading up to the festival. Eventis a fund

raiser for the Humane Society.

NLT Historical Society Weaver’s Gathering, August 17, 2013, Tahoe City
Requested Amount: $2,500
Recommended: $1,500

Producer wants to expand the vendor marketplace to include classes and

demonstrations and educational components. Event saw 200 attendees in 2012.

Showcasing our indigenous Washoe Indian culture attracts the Cultural &
Heritage enthusiasts to Tahoe. Producer has a strong marketing plan in place.

Kings Beach Passport to Dining, October 3, 2013, Kings Beach
Requested Amount: $2,000
Recommended: $1,000

The event is mainly local based but produced 12 tracked room nights for 2012.
Director had three properties offering packages for the event. In 2013 Director
will utilize NLTRA Cool Deals to offer lodging and ticket packages. Eventis held
on a Thursday night in the strike zone. This event generates 13% of the annual
income for the NTBA.

Total Amount Requested: $23,200
Total Recommended: $14,000

-2




RESERVATIONS ACTIVITY REPORT
North Lake Tahoe

Destination: North Lake Tahoe Period: Bookings as of Feb 28, 2013
CONFIDENTIAL: Reproduction or further distribution prohibited

Executive Summary

Data based on a sample of up to 11 properties in the North Lake Tahoe destination, representing up to 1,703 Units ('MTRiP Census'#)

Year over
a. Last Month Performance: Current YTD vs. Previous YTD 2012/13 201112 vear% Diff
North Lake Tahoe Occupancy for last month (February) changed by (23.7%) Occupancy (February) : 58.8% 47.5% 23.7%
North Lake Tahoe Average Daily Rate for last month (February) changed b
¢ g Y v ADR (February) : $279 $260 7.0%
(7.0%)
North Lake Tahoe RevPAR for last month (February) changed by (32.4%) RevPAR (February) : $164 $124 32.4%
b. Next Month Performance: Current YTD vs, Previous YTD
Narth Lake Tahoe Occupancy for next month (March) changed by (12.0%) Occupancy (March) 42.2% 37.6% 12.0%
North Lake Tahoe Average Daily Rate for next month (March) changed by (6.6%) |ADR (March) : $240 5225 6.6%
North Lake Tahoe RevPAR for next month (March) changed by (19.4%) RevPAR (March): $101 $85 19.4%
¢. Historical 6 Month Actual Performance: Current YTD vs. Previous YTD
North Lake Tahoe Occupancy for the prior 6 months changed by (14.1%) Occupancy 43.2% 37.9% 14.1%
North Lake Tahoe Average Daily Rate for the prior 6 months changed by (8.1%) |ADR $233 $215 8.1%
North Lake Tahoe RevPAR for the prior 6 months changed by (23.4%) RevPAR $101 $82| 23.4%
d. Future 6 Month On The Books Performance: Current YTD vs, Previous YTD
North Lake Tahoe Occupancy for the upcoming 6 months changed by (26.1%) Occupancy 23.3% 18.5% 26.1%
North Lake Tahoe Average Daily Rate for the upcoming 6 months changed by
: bBERal, ADR $221 $207 7.0%
(7.0%)
North Lake Tahoe RevPAR for the upcoming 6 months changed by (34.9%) RevPAR §52 $38 34.9%
e. Incremental Pacing - % Change in Rooms Booked last Calendar Month: Feb. 28, 2013 vs. Previous Year
Rooms Booked during last month (February, 2013) compared to Reoms Booked
during the same period last year (February, 2012) for all arrival dates has changed by [Booking Pace (February) 4,7% 4.9% -4.0%
(-4.0%)
* MTRIP Census: Total number of rooms reparted by participating MTRIP properties as available for short-term rental in the reporting month. This number can vary monthly as inventories and
report participants change over time.

DESCRIPTION: The Reservation Activity Outloak Report tracks occupancy, average daily rate {ADR), and revenue per available room (RevPAR); the key metrics most of interest to lodging
properties. The report combines the data sets of participating properties into a destination wide view that features three data sets (providing that sufficient information is available) including: i)
current YTD occupancy, ii) last YTD occupancy, Til) last season's ending occupancy.

The Reservation Activity Outlook Report is generated on a monthly basis, usually for a 12 month subscription peried, and is created from data provided by a group of properties participating in a
cooperative manner, and representing a valid set of data as a result.

Report results are provided only to those properties who participate by submitting their data. Additionally, participating properties can order {on an a-la-carte basis) an individual report which
shows the reservation activity of their property, measured against an aggregated set of competitive properties that they choose from amongst MTRiP's other participants.

Asis the case in all MTRIP data, all information provided by individual praperties s strictly confidential, except when aggregated with other data and indistinguishable as a result.

Capyrlght 2006 - 2013 MTRiP, LLC. All Rights Reserved. Information provided here Is CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION and is the exclusive property of MTRIP LLC. Itis expressly not for
reproduction, distribution publication or any other dissemination without the express written permission of MTRIP, LLC. Sample reports may be provided to interested persons, specifically for
purposes of their evaluation of a potential subscription and are subject to Copyrights of this product. Data and Metrics represented on this report are representative of the Sample Properties
only and may not be representative of the entire Community or Industry. Persons using this data for strategic purposes do so at their own risk and hold MTRIP harmless,

Copyright () 2006 - 2013, MTRIP, LLG Al Rights Reserved.
31972013 Confidential Information not for reproduction and protected by law. Info@mtrip.org  www.mirip.org

-



RESERVATIONS ACTIVITY REPORT
SECTION 1 - 12 MONTH ROLLING SUMMARY GRAPHS

2012/13 YTD (as of Feb 28, 2013) vs. 2011/12 YTD (as of Feb 29, 2012) vs. 2011/12 Historical
NOTE: Thisis not a forecast of bookings. Data represent transactions on the books as of the date noted above

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION: Reproduction or Further Distribution Prohibited

CFRETR |

A Historic Actual (2011712 season) B Data as of February 28, 2013 (2012/13 season) E

B Data as of February 29, 2012 (2011/12 season) iy Percent Change 1

Chart 1a - Occupancy Rate

£ 100% 100%
&
g eo% 80%
<]
£ 60% 4978w 1 60%
o o
® 40% 40%
5 20% 20%
o il
s
o
T 0% 0%
c
8
3 -20% -20%
o
40% -40%
September  October  November December  January February March April May June July August  On the Books
months total
+— Historic IO the Brioks s s e s smerlmiemimim i =imi ot o i e -
Chart 1b - Average Daily Rate
$350 16%
$300 G 14%
o 12% f.-%‘
B $250 o
@
£ s200 % @
A o &
Eﬂ 5150 s ‘_-63
Z 100 g
2 B
S5 - 0%
50 2 -2%
September  October  November December  January February March April May June July August  Onthe Books
months total
< Historic |Onthe Books — == == === === =armmm-e - ————— >
Chart 1¢,- Revenue Per Available Room
$180 i 100%
E $160
E -
2 5140 o
] 60% <
5 5120 £
= o
B $100 40% @
< 2
E 580 20% Y
1
g %60 0% 8
S ]
g g
© $20 -20%
0 40%
September  October January February March August  On the Books
months total
<+ Eiste [Onthe Bogks s o s S s i e e e e >
Chart 1d - % Change in YTD Occupancy and ADR: 2012/13 vs 2011/12
80.0% T— ® . S
B Percent Change in YTD Occ. Rate E o @
5
60.0% B Percent Change in YTD ADR
2 = g
< 400% < e
~ ~ S 4
=3 i
g 200% £t
]
@
2 00%
o
£
=
© -20.0%
-40.0% -
Sep-12 vs. Oct-12 vs, Mov-12vs. Dec-12vs. Jan-13vs, Jan- Feb-13vs. | Mar-13vs, Aﬂ»ﬁ vs.  May-13vs. Jun-13vs. Jul-i3vs Jul- Aug-13vs. Onthe Books
Sep-11 Oct-11 Nov-11 Dec-11 12 Feb-12 Mar-12 Epr-12 May-12 Jun-12 12 Aug-12  months total
< Historiclon the Bopks === RsEoREsmtasnraSSsTmmRT A
Copyright (c) 2006 - 2013, MTRIP, LLC All Rights Reserved.
31912013 Confidential Information not for reproduction and protected by law. info@mtrip.org  www.mlrip.org




Average Daily Rate § Occupancy Rate & % Chgin Occup Rate

Revenue Per Available Room $

% Change in Occupancy [ ADR

3/9/2013

MOUMIAIN TEANE MEFIANCH FRAIAN

RESERVATIONS ACTIVITY REPORT
SECTION 2 - WINTER SEASON SUMMARY GRAPHS

2012/13 YTD (as of Feb 28, 2013) vs. 2011/12 YTD (as of Feb 29, 2012) vs. 2011/12 Historical
NOTE: This is not a forecast of bookings. Data represent transactions on the books as of the date noted above

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION: Reproduction or Further Distribution Prohibited

|

= Historic Actual (2011/12 season)

EEEEN Data 25 of February 29, 2012 (2011/12 season) === Percent Change

Chart 2a - Occupancy Rate

= Data as of February 28, 2013 (2012/13 season)

59%

November

March
On the books

December February

Historic

January

Chart 2b - Average Daily Rate

Winter Total

March
On the books

February
Historic

Chart2¢ - Rg,)venue Per Available Room

e 52%

4

101
S118

I 19%
E3
December January February March
Historic On the books

100%

80%

60%

40%

Percent Change in

Percent Change in RevPAR

27.4%

m

BPercent Change In YTD Occ, Rate
1 BPercent Change In YTD ADR

2'3.7"

4.8%

e
o
]

Nov 12 vs Nov 11

Confidential Information nol for reproduction and protected by law.

Mar 13 vs Mar 12
On the books

Dec12vs Dec1l Jan13wvsJan12 Feb 13 vs Feb 12

Historic

Copyright (c) 2006 - 2013, MTRIP, LLC All Rights Reserved.

aﬂ
.l\pr;il1 vs Apr 12

____________________ >

Winter Total

info@mtrip.org  www.mtrip.org

1-3



3/9/2013

Occupancy Rate & % Chg in Occup Rate

Average Daily Rate $

Revenue Per Available Room $

% Change in Occupancy / ADR

100% -

2013 YTD (as of Feb 28, 2013) vs. 2012 YTD (as of Feb 29, 2012} vs. 2012 Historical

RESERVATIONS ACTIVITY REPORT
SECTION 3 - SUMMER SEASON SUMMARY GRAPHS

NOTE: This is not a forecast of bookings. Data represent transactions on the books as of the date noted above

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION: Reproduction or Further Distribution Prohibited

|

3 Historic Actual (2012 Season)
B Data as of February 29, 2012 (2012 Season)

=—p==Percent Change

Chart 3a - Occupancy Rate

E===m Data as of February 28, 2013 (2013 Season)

BO%

65%

a8,

60%

56%

49%

22%

May

June

July August

5236

September

October

Summer Total

$250

$200

$150

$100

$50

30

| $204

June

9% _

Chsrt 3b- %eragje Daﬂly Rate
o ~

$217

July August

September

Chgrt 3¢ - Revenue Per Available Room
o =

October

Summer Total

$160

o prs

T1%

June

July

August

1

September

October

Summer Total

2
r~
n

Char?d - % Change in D Occupancy and ADR: 2013 vs 2012

¥ ]
r~
i

HEPercent Change in YTD Occ. Rate

BPercent Change YTD ADR

48.0%

2

May 13 vs May 12

Confidential Information not for reproduction and protected by law.

Jun13vslun12

Jul 13 vsjul 12 Aug 13 vs Aug 12

Sept 13 vs Sept 12

Copyright {c) 2006 - 2013, MTRIP, LLC All Rights Reserved.

Oct13vs Oct 12

Summer Total

info@mfrip.org  www.mirip.org

100%

80%

60%

40%

20%

0%

-20%

-40%

10%

8%

6%

90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20
10%
0%

Percent Change in ADR

Percent Change in RevPAR

14



MTRIP

Heuim siecs nunancn fi02010 1 9 13 Occupancy Pace (as of Feb 28, 2013) vs. 2011/12 Pace (as of Feb 29, 2012) vs. same period 2011/12
NOTE: This is not a forecast of bookings. Data represent transactions on the books as of the date noted above

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION: Reproduction or Further Distribution Prohibited

RESERVATIONS ACTIVITY REPORT

SECTION 4 -

FILL ANALYSIS

Chart 4 - Year over Year Fill Analysis

E—3 Occupancy as of 02/28/13
A Occupancy as of 02/29/12
=W Occupancy as of 01/31/13

80% 1 — — I Occupancy as of 01/31/12 Fr 80%
—d&— 2012 Historic actual occupancy |
70% 41— e T e e = 64.6% — | 70%
; 60% | 60% |
E 50% 50%
E‘ i
& 40% 40%
=
g
© 0% 30%
20% 20%
10% 10%
0% 0% |
February March April May June July |
Month of Occupancy
+——— Historic Actual O B T T T T T T T e Y 2
Supporting Table for Chart 4 & Change in Incremental Fill
INCREMENTAL OCCUP. BOOKED CHG IN INCREMENTAL OCCUP.
OCCUPANCY AS OF FEB 28 OCCUPANCYAS OF JAN31 | (i.e. FILL DURING MONTH JUST ENDED) |  BOOKED {I.e CHANGE IN FILL)
Occupancy | Occupancy Occupancy | Occupancy Incremental Incremental Absolute Percent 2012
as of asof [Absolutd asof asof |Absolutd occupancy booked | occupancy booked Change in Change in Historic actual
Month of Occupancy: | 02/28/13 | 02/29/12 |Change] 01/31/13 | 01/31/12 | Change| duringFeb. 2013 | during Feb. 2012 | Incremental Fill | Incremental Fill** | occupancy
February 58.8% 47.5% |11.3%| 49.8% 39.7% | 10.1% 9.0% 7.8% 1.1% 14.7% 47.5%
March 42.2% 37.6% | 45% | 32.5% 27.2% | 5.2% 9.7% 10.4% 0.7% -7.0% 51.5%
April 11.3% 17.1% | -5.8% 9.0% 12.5% | -3.5% 2.3% 4.6% -2.3% -50.2% 41.9%
May 12.6% 11.4% 1.2% | 10.6% 9.3% 1.3% 2.0% 2.2% -0.1% -5.4% 27.7%
June 22.9% 14.6% | 83% | 20.4% 12.0% | 84% 2.5% 2.6% -0.1% -2.6% 44,6%
July 27.9% 17.7% |[10.1%| 25.2% 154% | 9.8% 2.7% 2.4% 0.3% 13.0% 64.6%
Total 28.9% 23.9% | 50% | 24.2% 19.0% | 5.2% 4.7% 4.9% -0.2% -4.0% 46.3%

“*Based on providing complete pacing data within a given month of occupancy only. Results may differ from those presented elsewhere in report if property set differs.”

*+#Results for "percent change in incremental fill" indlicate how room nights booked during the month just ended compare to room nights booked during the same month in the prior year,
for occupancy in the menth just ended and for the upcoming five months {as well as the six-manth period in total). These results provide an indication of the degree te which booking activ
occurring during the month just ended was greater or less than booking activity occurring in the same month a year ago - l.e. a measure of the strength of booking activity occurring during

month just ended.

31912013

Copyright () 2006 - 2013, MTRIP, LLC All Rights Reserved.
Confidential Informaticn not for reproduction and protected by law.

info@mtrip.org  www.mirip.org

T-5




3/9/2013

CENTAIN T2A91 NENNARCE FRoESaM

RESERVATIONS ACTIVITY REPORT

SECTION 5A - SUPPORTING DATA TABLES

Bookings as of Feb 28, 2013

NOTE: This is not a forecast of bookings. Data represent transactions on the books as of the date noted above

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION: Reproduction or Further Distribution Prohibited

OCCUPANCY RATE OCCUPANCY RATE: YTD 2012/13 VS, YTD 2011/12
Occup. Rate as of:  Occup. Rate as of: Percent Historic Actual i of
February 28, 2013  February 29, 2012 Change in Qccup. Rate | Properties|
Month of Occupancy (2012/13 & 2011/12) | (2012/13 season)  (2011/12 season)  YTD Occ. Ratg(2011/12 season)| in Sample
September 48.8% 48.4% 0.8% 11
October 33.2% 32.6% 2.1% 11
November 24.8% 19.5% 27.0% 11
December 43.2% 40.5% 6.6% 11
January 51.5% 39.1% 31,8% 11
February Historic Actual 58.8% 47.5% 23.7% 11
March On the Books 42.2% 37.6% 12.0% 51.5% 11
April : 11.3% 17.1% -34.0% 41,9% 11
May : 12.6% 11.4% 10.4% 27.7% 11
June : 22.9% 14.6% 57.3% 44.6% 11
luly : 27.9% 17.7% 57.2% 64.6% 11
August v 22.9% 14.0% 62.9% 65.0% 11
Grand total 33.2% 28.2% 17.6% 43.6% 11
Historic months total 43.2% 37.9% 14.1% 37.9% 11
On the Books manths total 23.3% 18.5% 26.1% 49.3% 11
AVERAGE DAILY RATE ADR: YTD 2012/13 VS, YTD 2011/12
ADR as of: ADR as of; Percent Historic Actual it of
February 28, 2013  February 29, 2012 Change ADR Properties|
Month of Occupancy (2012/13 & 2011/12) | (2012/13 season)  {2011/12 season) in YTD ADR |(2011/12 season)| in Sample
September $184 $179 2.9% 11
October $149 $140 6.6% 11
November $154 $150 2.9% 11
December $306 $292 5.0% 11
January $262 $227 15.2% 11
February Historic Actual $279 $260 7.0% 11
March On the Books $240 4225 6.6% $220 11
April : $182 $180 1.1% 5172 11
May i $164 $165 -0.8% $153 11
June : $204 $188 8.8% $189 1
July ! $236 $229 3.1% 5227 11
August v $236 $217 9.0% $222 11
Grand total 5229 $213 7.6% 5209 11
Historic months total $233 5215 8.1% $215 11
On the Books months total 5221 5207 7.0% $204 11
REVENUE PER AVAILABLE ROOM REVPAR: YTD 2012/13 VS. YTD 2011/12
RevPAR as of: RevPAR as of: Percent Historic Actual # of
February 28, 2013  February 29, 2012 Change in RevPAR Properties
Month of Occupancy (2012/13 & 2011/12) | (2012/13 season)  (2011/12 season) YTD RevPAR |(2011/12 season)| in Sample
September $90 $86 3.7% 11
October $49 $45 8.8% 11
November $38 $29 30.6% 11
December $132 5118 12.0% 11
lanuary 5135 $89 51.8% 11
February Historic Actual $164 $124 32.4% 11
March On the Books $101 585 19.4% $113 11
April ! $21 $31 -33.3% $72 1
May i $21 $19 9.6% $42 1
June : $47 $27 71.2% $84 1
July i $66 $41 62.1% $147 11
August v 554 530 77.4% $144 11
Grand total $76 $60 26.5% $91 11
Historic months total $101 382 23.4% 582 11
On the Books manths total $52 $38 34.9% $101 11

Copyright (c) 2006 - 2013, MTRIP, LLC All Rights Reserved.

Conlidential Information not for reproduction and protected by law.

info@mlrip.org  www.mlrip.org




M TRIP

MOUMTAIN TRAVEY RESEARCH Pabbnam

RESERVATIONS ACTIVITY REPORT
SECTION 5b - SUPPORTING WINTER DATA TABLES
Winter Bookings as of Feb 28, 2013

NOTE: This is not a forecast of bookings. Data represent transactions on the books as of the date noted above

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION: Reproduction or Further Distribution Prohibited

OCCUPANCY RATE OCCUPANCY RATE: YTD 2012/13 VS. YTD 2011/12
Occup. Rate as of:  Occup. Rate as of: Percent Historic Actual
February 28,2013  February 29, 2012 Change in Occup. Rate
Month of Occupancy (2012/13 & 2011/12) | (2012/13 season) (2011/12 season) YTD Occ. Rate|(2011/12 season)
November 24.8% 19.5% 27.0%
December 43.2% 40.5% 6.6%
January 51.5% 39.1% 31.8%
February Historic Actual 58.8% 47.5% 23.7%
March On the Books 42.2% 37.6% 12.0% 51.5%
April 11.3% 17.1% -34.0% 41.9%
Winter Total 38.5% 33.7% 14.4% 39.8%
AVERAGE DAILY RATE ADR: YTD 2012/13 V/S. YTD 2011/12
ADR as of: ADR as of: Percent Historic Actual
February 28,2013 February 29, 2012 Change in ADR
Month of Occupancy (2012/13 & 2011/12) | (2012/13 season) (2011/12 season) YTD ADR |(2011/12 season)
November 5154 $150 2.9%
December $306 $292 5.0%
January $262 $227 15.2%
February Historic Actual 5279 $260 7.0%
March On the Books $240 $225 6.6% $220
April 5182 5180 1.1% $172
Winter Total 5255 $236 7.8% $228

REVENUE PER AVAILABLE ROOM

REVPAR: YTD 2012/13 VS. YTD 2011/12

RevPAR as of: RevPAR as of: Percent Historic Actual
February 28, 2013  February 29, 2012 Change in RevPAR

Month of Occupancy (2012/13 & 2011/12) | (2012/13 season) (2011/12 season) YTD ADR |(2011/12 season)

November $38 $29 30.6%

December 5132 $118 12.0%

January $135 $89 51.8%

February Historic Actual 5164 $124 32.4%

March On the Books $101 $85 19.4% $113

April s21 $31 -33.3% 572

Winter Total 598 $80 23.3% 591

Copyright (c) 2006 - 2013, MTRIP, LLC All Rights Reserved.

3/9/2013 Confidential Information not for reproduction and protected by law. info@mitrip.org  www.mtrip.org T

7-1




&

AN/ RESERVATIONS ACTIVITY REPORT
| " SECTION 5c - SUPPORTING SUMMER DATA TABLES
BN L Summer Bookings as of Feb 28, 2013

NOTE: This is not a forecast of bookings. Data represent transactions on the books as of the date noted above

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION: Reproduction or Further Distribution Prohibited

OCCUPANCY RATE OCCUPANCY RATE: YTD 2013 VS. YTD 2012
Occup. Rate as of:  Occup. Rate as of: Percent Historic Actual
February 28,2013  February 29, 2012 Change in Occup. Rate
Month of Occupancy (2013 & 2012) (2013 Season) (2012 Season) YTD Occ. Rate| (2012 Season)
May 12.6% 11.4% 10.4% 27.7%
June 22.9% 14.6% 57.3% 44.6%
July 27.9% 17.7% 57.2% 64.6%
August 22.9% 14.0% 62.9% 65.0%
September
October
Summer Total 21.5% 14.5% 49.0% 50.5%
AVERAGE DAILY RATE AVERAGE DAILY RATE: YTD 2013 VS. YTD 2012
ADR as of: ADR as of: Percent Historic Actual
February 28, 2013  February 29, 2012 Change ADR
Month of Occupancy (2013 & 2012) (2013 Season) (2012 Season) YTDADR | (2012 Season)
May 5164 $165 -0.8% $153
June $204 $188 8.8% 5189
July $236 $229 3.1% 5227
August $236 $217 9.0% 5222
September
October
Summer Total §217 $203 6.8% 5207
REVENUE PER AVAILABLE ROOM RevPAR: YTD 2013 VS. YTD 2012
RevPAR as of: RevPAR as of: Percent Historic Actual
February 28,2013  February 29, 2012 Change in RevPAR
Month of Occupancy (2013 & 2012) (2013 Season) (2012 Season)  YTD RevPAR | (2012 Season)
May $21 519 9.6% S42
June $47 $27 71.2% S84
July $66 $41 62.1% $147
August §54 $30 77.4% $144
September
October
Summer Total s47 $29 59.2% 5104
Copyright (c) 2006 - 2013, MTRIP, LLC All Rights Reserved.
8

31912013 Confidential Information not for reproduction and protected by law. info@mtrip.org  www.mtrip.org

18




E@
—e
@ﬁ

north lake tahoe

Chamber | CVB | Resort Association

April 3, 2013

Subject: Resort Triangle Transportation Vision Coalition Update
From: Ron Treabess, Director of Community Partnerships and Planning

Resort Triangle Transportation Vision Coalition (RTTVC) Update:
o Staff will give a verbal update

Decision Considerations:
e Attached is LSC report evaluating implications of three regional transit scenarios

Tourism Master Plan/Strategic Goals:

By 2016, a fully integrated transportation system within the North Lake Tahoe area will
effectively link visitor destinations, recreation and lodging products with increased
ridership on service on recreational routes of 20% (3% per year).

By 2016, the organization will have provided advocacy for all project and program
development that aligned with our mission.

Staff Recommendation:
e No decision is being requested by the Board

10\




TRANSPORTATION PLANNING AND
TRAFFIC ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS

=R 2690 Lake Forest Road, Suite C
2l Post Office Box 5875
Tahoe City, California 96145

(530) 583-4053 FAX: (530) 583-5066
info@Isctahoe.com

E%%"‘s"“ﬂ?rﬁﬁ‘%ﬂﬁc. www.lsctrans.com
MEMORANDUM
To: North Tahoe Transit Vision Service/Cost Committee
From: Gordon Shaw, PE, AICP, LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.
Date: March 13, 2013
RE: North Tahoe Truckee Transportation Vision Service Scenarios
INTRODUCTION

This memo presents an evaluation of the operational, capital and cost implications of the
following three regional scenarios for the North Tahoe / Truckee region:

e Low Alternative — This would effectively take existing transit services and combine
them into a single regional service. No major changes in service levels are included,
though some of the spans of service change in order to provide more consistent service.

e Medium Alternative — This is a middle ground, which provides some expansion in
transit services, focusing on visitor-oriented service enhancements.

e High Alternative — This reflects the transit vision as developed in a series of committee
meetings.

Table 1 presents a summary of the various alternatives and their implications. All alternatives
have the following common characteristics:

» No local services are provided within the resorts.

o Shuttle services solely connecting ski parking areas with nearby base areas, or between
base areas, are excluded from the regional service.

e The length of the winter service period is assumed to be identical (116 days, from
approximately December 13 through the first full week of April).

e The hours of service (for those services provided) are assumed to be the same, with 12
hours of daytime service in all season (approximately 6:30 AM to 6:30 PM), 6 hours of

10-Z



North Tahoe Truckee Transit Vision Page 2 March 29, 2013
Service Scenarios

evening service in the summer and winter {(approximately 6:30 PM to 1:30 AM) and 3
hours of evening service in the off seasons (approximately 6:30 PM to 9:30 PM).

» The North Lake Tahoe Express is included in the regional plan.

The key assumptions that are used in this analysis are presented in Table 2. Unless noted, the
same assumptions are used in all three scenarlos. Operating costs are based upon the
following:

s Some ongoing costs are relatively fixed, such as facliity maintenance costs, marketing
costs, and administrative staff costs. For the Low Alternative, these costs are assumed
to be equal to the annual fixed operating costs of the existing TART program, the Town
of Truckee program, and the NLTRA marketing costs.

» Other operating costs (such as fuel, driver wages/benefits, and vehicle maintenance
costs) vary directly with the quantity of transit service providers. This “marginal®
operating costs is estimated using a unit cost per hour of service.

o For buses, the 2012/13 budgeted TART costs and quantities were used.
Dividing $2,255,624 in annual marginal operating costs by 25,796 total vehicle
service hours yields a unit cost of $87.44 per vehicle service hour. It is important
to note that this rate reflects the current proportion of non-setvice (“deadhead”) to
service hours of existing TART services. As TART has a relatively high
proportion of non-service to service hours (reflecting the deadhead time needed
for the long routes), applying this rate to other services yields conservatively high
estimates of overall costs.

o Vans have a lower matginal unit operating costs than do buses. As TART does
not operate vans, a factor was determined based upon the contactor costs for the
BlueGO transit program In South Lake Tahoe, which operates both buses and
vans. A review of vehicle operating costs and vehicle-hours of service indicates
that vans required 18 percent less expenditure per hour of service than do full-
sized buses. Applying this factor to the TART bus rate, a marginal unit cost of
$71.40 per vehicle-hour of van service was used.

« Some alternatives would require additional dispatch hours, for expanded Dial-A-Ride
services and/or to support additional hours of operations. A figure of $60 per additional
dispatcher hour is assumed, reflecting salaries, benefits and additional utility costs.

« Even if transit services are provided by other organizations, the regionat transit entity
would require staffing for other functions, including contract management, grants
administration, marketing, etcetera. While this will depend on decisions regarding
governance of the program, as a “placeholder”, the following Is assumed to be
necessary to fulfill these functions:

Chief Executive
Planner

Administrative Staff
Accountant/bookkeeper

Oo0co0Q0




North Tahoe Truckee Transit Vision Page 3 March 29, 2013
Service Scenarios

Contracted legal and [T services

Office space and costs

Communications

Instirance

Incidental expenses (travel, memberships, Board expenses, etc.)

00000

A reasonable estimate of the annual costs of these administrative functions, based on a
review of existing costs for similar programs, is $500,000 per year.

There are, of course, a myriad of permutations that can be considered in future planning,
reflecting differences between routes/service in terms of length of season, span of service,
specific routes. These scenarios should be considered reasonable examples of potential service
levels and costs, which could be further refined in subsequent planning.

It should be emphasized that there are a wide range of scenarios for the actual provision of
services, This could include one single organization providing all services. Alternatively,
several organizations (including Placer County, the Town of Truckee and/for private firms) could
operate elements of the service, marketed and managed as a unified whole. As differing
organizations would have differing unit costs, institutional arrangements would affect operating
(as well as capital) costs.

Tables 3, 4, and 5 present analyses of operating hours for the Low, Medium, and High
Scenarios, respectively. For each season, the number of vehicle-hours and buses in oparation
are estimated, by route/service and for day versus evening services. Figures 1, 2, and 3 also
summarize service levels on each route/service. ‘

LOW SCENARIO
Services

This scenario reflects provision of existing TART, Town of Truckee, and TTD services, with
several expansions:

s Daytime service is provided throughout the year on SR 267 between Truckee and North
Stateline {along with evening service in winter and summer). This addresses the long-
term desire to provide year-round service on this key regional corridor.

s Consistent local service Is provided in Truckee throughout tha year, along with winter
service between Truckee and Donner Summit. This eliminates the existing setvice plan
that reduces service within Truckee during the winter.

Existing Dial-A-Ride service in Truckee would remain. Complementary paratransit Americans
with Disabilities Act service in Placer and Washoe Counties would be provided, as at present,
by a subsidized taxi program. The current Skier Shuttle program would remain, expanded from
the existing five buses to a six-bus program that also serves the Incline Village — Northstar
corridor.

1o -4




North Tahoe Truckee Transit Vision Page 4 March 29, 2013
Service Scenarios

Under this scenario, existing fares would remain in place. In addition, existing tripper runs
operated by resorts during winter peak periods, to address overcrowding, are assumed o
continue.

As shown in Table 3, the annual marginal operating costs for this service are estimated to equal
$5,423,000. Beyond the administrative costs associated with the program management
discussed above, costs would not vary significantly from current fixed operating costs for the
TART, Town of Truckee and TNT/TMA program management/marketing budgets, as this
scenario would not increase dispatching requirements or hours of systemwide operation. These
existing costs are as follows:

TART fixed annual operating costs $ 791,000
Truckes fixed annua! operating costs $ 84,000
TMA annual program management costs $ 75,000
TOTAL $ 950,000

Adding the fixed operating costs 1o the marginal operating costs, the total annual operating
costs of this alternative would be $7,034,000.

Capital Costs
Capital costs for the Low Scenario are summarized in Table 6:

» The number of buses and vans are calculated by summing the requirements of the
individual routes {from Table 3) and identifying the peak requirements of the three
operating seasons. A 20 percent space ratio (proportion of spare vehicles to vehicles
required in peak operation} or a minimum of two vehicles of each type (whichever is
greater) is then added. Average annual capital costs are then calculated by multiplying
by the unit costs and dividing by the useful life, as presented in Table 2. While in the
short-run the remaining useful life of the existing fleets can be used to put off vehicle
costs, in the long run these costs (totaling $429,000 per year) would be incurred.

+ No new passenger facilities would be constructed under this scenario.

» Administrative/Operations facilities under this alternative would be modest, as existing
facilites (TART and/or Town) would be adequate.

» If consolidated into a single fleet, it would be appropriate to expand the current TART
electronic farebox program to encompass the entire fleet. At a unit cost of approximately
$15,000 per bus, this would total $150,000.

On an annual basis, assuming that all improvements are funded for full implementation in 10
years, this option would incur an average capital cost of $780,000 per year.

10-5



North Tahoe Truckee Transit Vision Page 5 March 29, 2013
Service Scenarios

MEDIUM SCENARIO
Services

Building from the Low Scenario services, the Medium Scenario would add the following key
services:

« Winter daytime and evening services every 30 minutes around the Resort Triangle (88,
267 and 28) as well as on the West Shore.

o Summer evening hourly service between Squaw Valley, Truckee, and Norihstar, to
complete Resort Triangle evening service.

s Provision of summer daytime and winter evening service between Truckee and Donner
Sumnit,

« Offseason evening service around the Resort Triangle and along the West Shore.

« Conversion of the paratransit program in Placer County (and the Incline Village portion
of Washoe County) from a taxi subsidy program to a more traditional Dial-A-Ride
program. This Is expected to be necessary to address the increase in demand for
complementary paratransit service under the Americans with Disabilities Act that would
accompany an expansion of the overall public transportation program.

» Expansion of the North Lake Tahoe Express by 50 percent, from the current 8 runs per
day on each route to 12 runs per day.

» Paricipation in a summer daytime regional program to corinect the Tahoe City Wye area
with the South Tahoe Y, via the West Shore, Emerald Bay, and Camp Richardson. Half
the costs and vehicle responsibilities of this program are assumed in this program.

One factor considered for this scenario was elimination of existing transit fares. An important
considaration regarding elimination of fares Is whether the resulting increase in ridership would
result in peak passenger loads that would exceed avallable transit capacity, resulting in turn in
the need for additional transit services and operating costs. As discussed in Transit
Cooperative Research Project Report 95! Traveler Responses to Transporiation System
Changes, "research regarding elimination of fares indicates that a 50 percent in ridership can be
expected to occur, This in turn indicates that, barring expansion of capacity {such as through
increased service frequency), a transit service that currently has passenger loads exceeding 66
percent of capacity would, with elimination of fares, result in passenger loads exceeding
capacity (as a 50 percent increase in 66 percent equals 100 percent). At present, there are
times (particularly in winter commute periods) when existing transit loads already reach or
exceed capacity of existing services.

Table 7 takes this analysis one step further, by considering the ridership and capacity
associated with a change in service frequency as well as with elimination of fares. Using
standard elasticity analyses procedures, converting an existing service with hourly service to 30
minute headways while also eliminating fares would increase capacity by 100 percent, but
would increase ridership by 124 percent (a 49 percent increase associated with the increased

W0~y




North Tahoe Truckee Transit Vision Page 6 March 29, 2013
Service Scenarios

frequency, compounded by a 50 percent increase associated with the elimination of fares). As
a result, existing services currently with ridership exceeding roughly 80 percent of capacity
would generate overcrowded conditions with these changes. However, conversion from 60
minute to 20 minute headways accompanied with elimination of fares yields an increase in
capacity that exceeds the increase in ridership. Based on this analysis, the elimination of fares
is not included under this Medium Scenario, and is tied to the provision of 20-minute headways,
in the High Scenario.

As shown in Table 4, this scenario would incur an annual operating cost of $9,037,000. In
addition to the current fixed operational costs, fixed costs would be incurred for the following:

Dispatching for the dial-a-ride program

Supervision for the additional off-season evening services

Management of the new transit organization,

Expansion of supervisor and maintenance staff, beyond the current level of these
services. These costs are assumed to increase 20 percent.

* Marketing costs would be expanded. Based on transit industry standards, ongoing
marketing costs are assumed to equal 3 percent of operating costs.

a & & &

In total, administrative/marketing costs under this alternative would equal $2,265,000 per year.
Total annual operating costs would equal on the order of $11,302,000

Capital Costs

Total fleet requirements under this scenario would consist of 26 buses and 7 vans, resulting in
an annual capital cost averaging $1,163,000 per year,

Passenger facility improvements under this scenario are assumed to consist of the following:

¢ North Stateline Transit Center — Improvements to existing bus stops at North Stateline. This
location make for a better transit center/transfer location than Kings Beach as it provides
direct access to North Stateline from the North Shore and 267 corridor, without the need to
transfer in Kings Beach, it provides direct service across Kings Beach without the need to
transfer, it works well with running times for North Shore, Incline Village, and SR267 routes,
and it provides a good location to turn buses around, on streets without residences, which
could be a problem in Kings Beach. In addition to enhanced shelters, the bus bays would
need to be lengthened to accommodate two buses at a time, on both sides of the highway.

« Improvements to Truckee Train Depot Bus Bays —~ At this service level, there is the potential
need for passengers to transfer between up to four transit buses in downtown Truckee
(Truckee — Tahoe City, Truckee — North Stateline, Truckee — Donner Summit, and Truckee
Local), Combined with the need to accommodate Greyhound and Amtrak Thruway buses,
there is not adequate existing capacity at the Truckee Train Depat to park four buses ata
time. Either modifications to the driveways and/or adjacent parking areas would be needed
to provide adequate bus capacity, or an entirely new site for a transit center would be
required.

* |mproved bus stops. Key locations for enhanced bus stops would include:

-1




North Tahoe Truckee Transit Vision Page 7 March 29, 2013
Service Scenarios

0000 O0OCOD

East end of Tahoe City

Other locations along SR 28 in Kings Beach

Entrance to Squaw Valley

Truckee Senior Center

Replacement of existing shelter on Donner Pass Road across from Gateway Genter
Replacement of existing shelter at West End of Donner Lake

Bus pullouts on Brockway Road at Cedar House and the Regional Park

In addition, other bus stop improvements would occur as part of developments, over time.
Expansion of CNG fueling capacity would be needed at the Cabin Creek facility.

Under this scenario, Advanced Public Transit Systems (APTS) technologies would be
implemented. This would include Automatic Vehicle Location (AVL) tracking on ali vehicles,
Automatic Passenger Counters (APCs), and real-time traveler information distributed over the
internet and at key bus stops. Total average annual capltal costs under this scenarlo, assuming
implementation of all long-term capital items over ten years, would equal $1,420,600 annually.

HIGH SCENARIO

This scenario represents the ultimate transit vision that has been developed through the
workshop and subseguent committee meetings, including the following:

Provision of daytime winter and summer service avery 20 minutes around the Resort
Triangle, along the West Shore and into Incline Village.

Service every 30 minutes between Truckee and Donner Summit during summer and
winter days, and every 90 minutes In summer and winter evenings.

Evening service throughout the year around the Resort Trlangle, in Incline Village and
along the West Shore.

Provision of a Kings Beach / Tahoe Vista local route. One small bus would be used to
operate a half-hour-long route between Tahoe Vista and Kings Beach. Key stops would
include North Tahoe Recreation Area {and nearby residential areas), Boys & Girls Club,
Speckied Avenue, State Recreation Area. This route, at 5.3 miles round-trip length,
could be operated on a 30-minute cycle length,

Provision of a Tahoe City local route. One small bus would be used to operate a half-
hourly route stretching from Granlibakken Resort through downtown Tahoe City to Lake
Forest, Dollar Hill, and the North Tahoe High School/Middle School. This route is 11.8
miles in length, round trip, and would need to be scheduled for 60-minute cycle length.
Provision of regional connections to Sand Harbor and South Lake Tahoe.

Provision of complementary paratransit Dial-A-Ride service throughout the area.

Provision of express winter service connecting ski base areas.

\D- 8



North Tahoe Truckee Transit Vision Page 8 March 29, 2013
Service Scenatrios

¢ Expanded North Lake Tahoe Express service, consisting of hourly service on all routes
over the majority of the day (16 runs per day in total).

This scenarlo would incur a marginal operating cost of $13,917,000 per year. Fixed operating
costs would equal $1,448,100 (including a 40% increase in supetvisor/mechanic costs over
current service levels). In total, annual operating costs would equal $2,536,000.

Capital Costs

As summarized in Table 6, the operating plan would require a total of 46 vehicles (35 buses
plus 11 vans, including spares). This would require annualized costs of $1,458,000 per year.

in addition to the passenger facility improvements discussed above regarding the Middle
Scenario, the following would be constructed:

« Kings Beach Transit Hub — Enhanced stops on SR 28 would serve as the transfer point
between the Kings Beach/Tahoe Vista Local Route and the North Shore and SR 267 routes.
This would need to accommodate up to two buses at a time, in both directions. 1t is
assumed that this occurs on public right-of-way, and no land acquisition s required.

¢ Bus pullouts would be constructed along Donner Pass Road near Donner Lake and over
Donner Summit (total of five). An additional sight shelters are included in this scenario,
along with additional benches.

Considering the existing parking capacity of the Cabin Creek facility, and that this facility Is
shared with other Public Works vehicle needs, accommodating a 49-vehicle public transit fleet
woutld require provision of approximately 30 additional bus parking spaces, at a cost (including
construction, design, permitting and contingency) of approximately $129,000.

Advanced Public Transit Systems technologies would be the same as discussed under the
Middie Scenario, though the expanded bus fleet would result in increased overall costs.

In total, annual average capital costs under this High Scenario would equal $2,033,00.
SUMMARY
Table 8 presents the summary of all costs associated with the thrae alternatives. These totals

range from $7,814,000 for the Low Scenario, through $12,723,000 for the Medium Scenario, to
$18,487,000 for the High Scenario.

\0-9




TABLE 1: Summary of Alternatives

Low Scenaro Medium Scenarlo High Scenario
Image Single Regional "Brand"
Fares Existing Existing Free
Marketing Existing Increased 95% Increased 190%

Summer Daytime

Add Truckee -- North Stateline

Add Service Between Truckee and

20 Minute Service Around Resort
Triangle, in Incline Village and On

Regional Service

Summit and Truckee-Northstar

Regional Service Hourly Service Donner Summit Waest Shore, 30 Minute Service
Truckee -- Donner Summit
30 Minute Service Around Resort
Summer Evening Existin ﬁ:ﬁ:e{.‘: lf:ks:‘:v::%igxz‘:’_ Trlangle, in Incline Village and On
Regional Service 9 t Norihstar Woest Shore, 80 Minute Service
Truckee -- Donner Summit
20 Minute Service Around Resort
Winter Daytime 30 Minute Service Around Resort | Trlangle, in Incline Village and On
Regional Service Triangle and On West Shore Wast Shore, 30 Minute Servica
Truckes -~ Donner Summit
30 Minute Service Around Resori
Add Service Between Squaw "
Winter Evening Existing Valley-Truckee, Truckee-Donner Triangle, in Incline Village and On

Woest Shore, 90 Minute Service
Truckee -- Donner Summit

Technolegies

Electronic Fareboxes on All Buses

Time Information, Automatic
Passenger Counters

Ofiseason Add Truckes - North Siateline Add Truckee -- North Statelina Add Truckee -- North Stateling
Daytime Regional Hourly Service Hourly Service Hourly Service
Offseason Around Resort Triangle, on West
Around Resort Triangle and on H .
Evening Reglonal None West Share Unlil 9:30 Shore and In Inc?!lne Vilage Until
Service 9:30
Add Truckee Local Winter Service,
Truckee Local | Add Truckee Local Winter Service Adﬂ;{\;‘:ﬁ:ﬁ d"gfl?:‘:;rr“;:;::lce’ Operate every 30 Minutes Year-
Service (Conslstent Year-Round) 9 Round, Winter and Summer
Service
Evening Service
Kings Beach / 30 Minute Service Year Round
‘Tahoe Vista Local Nong None Daytime and Winter / Summer
Service Evening
40 Minute Service Year Round
T:;E;’ foiti’é:(’!: None None Daytime and Hourly Winter /
i Summer Evening
Placer/Washoe ;
ADA Service Taxl Subsidy Dial-A-Ride Dial-A-Ride
Em;;:‘l:licgay - Summer Daytime Hourly Service | Summer Daytime Hourly Service
Incline Village - {g, oo Daytime 20 Minute Service|Summer Daylime 20 Minute Servics|Sumpmer Daytime 20 Minute Service
Sand Harbor
Skier Shuttle 6 Bus System 6 Bus System 6 Bus System
NorthEI;'a:::;ahoa 8 Runs/Day per Route 12 Runs/Day per Route 16 Runs/Day per Route
. Transit Genter In North Stateline,
Passenger Transit Center n North Statalins, improvements to Truckee Train
o Existing Improvements to Truckee Traln -
Facilities Station. Improvad Bus Stons Statlon, Kings Beach Transit Hub,
1P P Improved Bus Stops
Advanced Automatic Vehicle Location, Real | Automatic Vehlcle Location, Real-

Time Information, Automatic
Passenger Countars

Operations
Facilities

Adminlistrative Space

Adminlstrative Space, Expand
CNG Fueling Capaclty

Administrative Space, Additional
Bus Parking, Expand CNG Fueling

Capacity

01D



TABLE 2: Key Analysis Assumptions

Variable Cost per Bus Service Hour

Variable Cost per Small Bus/Van Service Hour

$87.44 Per TART 12-13 Cost Mode!
$71.70 Based on BlueGO Relative Costs

Dispatch Cost per Additional Hr $60.00
Flest spare ratio 20%
Cost per Bus $500,000
Useful Life of Bus 12 Years
Cost per Van $80,000
Useful Life of Van 7 Years
Unit Cost of Shelter $55,000
Unit Cost of Pullout $25,000
Unit Cost of Bench $800
Days per Month/Season

Low Medium High
Dec 19 19 19
Jan 3 31 31
Feb 28 28 28
March 31 31 31
April 7 7 7
Total Winter 116 116 116
May 0 c 7
June 3 16 a0
July 31 31 31
August 3 31 31
September 3 15 30 Medium = June 15 to Sept 15

68 03 129

Offseason 181 156 120
Service Hoursper Day All
Summer Peak 12
Summer Evening 7
Winter Peak 12
Winter Evening 7
Offseason Peak 12
Oftseason Evening 3
Total Annual Taxi Paratransit Cost (Low Only) $30,000




TABLE 3: NORTH TAHOE REGIONAL TRANSIT VISION —~ Low Scenario

Veh-Hrs _ Peak Vehicles = Marginal
Season/Service Period/Service Area Frequency RAuns/Hr InService  Vans Buses Operaling§
Day: 6:30 AM - 6:30 PM TOTAL Peak Vehicles Marginat
Tahoa Clty — Truckee Hourly 1,00 1,632 - 2 $143,000 Vans Buses Operaling §
Truckes - Crystal Bay Hourly 1.00 1,632 - 2 §143,000 |Summaer 3 10 51,056,000
J| Tahoa City — Crystal Bay 30 Min 2.00 1,632 - 2 $143,000 Winler 3 14 $1,853,000
u Wasl Share Hourly 1.00 B16 - 1 $71,000 Spring/Fall 3 7 $1,812,000
n| Truekee ~ Donner Summit - 0.00 0 - 0 S0 Year-Round Norih Lake Tahos Express $702,000
8 Cryslal Bay — Incline Viilage 30 Min 2.00 816 - 1 §71,000 TOTAL ] 14 55,423,000
Truckea Local Hourly 1.00 B16 1 - $59,000
§| 2| Kings Beach/Tahoa Vista Local - 0.00 0 1] = 50
ul7 Tahoa Cily Local - 0.00 0 0 = 50
Complementary Paratransit DAR/Taxi - - 1,632 2 - $123,000 Includes seasonal TART complementary taxi cosls
M t| Tahoe City -- Emerald Bay — South Y - 0.00 0 = 0 50
M o Incline Village - East Shota Exprass 20 Min 3.00 1.546 2 $135.000
E Evening: 6:30 PM - 12:30 PM
Rls Tahos Cily ~ Squaw Vallay Hourly 1.00 476 - 1 542,000
o| MNorthstar -- Crystal Bay Hourly 1.00 476 - 1 $42,000
p| Tahoe City - Crystal Bay Hourly 1.00 476 - 1 $42,000
i Wast Shore Hourly 1.00 476 - 1 $42,000
Truckee — Donner Summit = .00 0 - 0 50
a| Crystal Bay -- Incline Village - Q.00 0 - 0 50
Truckea Lacal - .00 0 o = 50
Kings Beach/Taehoa Vista Local - 0.00 0 0 - 50
Tahos City Local - 0.00 0 1] - 50
Complementary Paratransit DAR/Taxi - = 1] - = 50
Day: 6:30 AM - 6:30 PM
Tahoe Clly - Truckee Hourly 1.00 2,784 - 2 $243,000
Truckes -- Crystal Bay Houtly 1.00 2,784 - 2 $243,000
Tahoa Cily — Crystal Bay Hourly 1.00 1,392 - 1 $122,000
| Was! Shore Hourly 1.00 1,392 - 1 §122,000
Truckee -- Donner Summit 90 Min 0.67 1,389 - 1 §121,000
Crystal Bay - Inciine Village 30 Min 2.00 1,392 - 1 §122,000
Al Truckes Local Hourly 1.00 1,392 1 - §100,000
W| 1| Kings Beach/Tahos Vista Lacal - 0.00 0 0 s 50
13| Tahoe Cily Local - 0.00 1] 0 - 50
NI Complementary Paratransit DAR/Taxi - & 2,784 2 e $209,000 Includes seasona!l TART complemenlary laxi costs
T Skler Shullle Express 2AM 2 PM 21.31 2472 - [ $216,000 6 Bus Program: 2013 + Hyalt-Northstar
21 oi|Evening: 6:30 PM - 12:30 PM
E Tahoa Cily -- Squaw Valley Hourly 1.00 B12 - 1 $71,000
R|A|| Nornhstar - Cryslal Bay Hourly 1.00 B12 - 1 $71,000
" |p!| Tahoas Clly-- Crystal Bay Hourly 1.00 812 - 1 $71,000
‘7] Waest Shore Hourly 1.00 B12 - 1 $71,000
Truckea -- Donnar Summit - 0.00 0 = 0 50
| 7| Crystal Bay - Incline Vilage 30 Min 2.00 812 - 1 $71,000
Truckes Local - 0.00 0 1] - 50
Kings Beach/Tahoa Vista Local - 0.00 0 0 - §0
Tahoe Clly Local - 0.00 0 1] - $0
Complementary Paratranstt DAR/Taxi = = 0 - = $0
Day: 6:30 AM - 6:30 PM
Tahoe City - Truckee Hourly 1.00 4,344 - 2 $380,000
Truckee -~ Cryslal Bay Hourly 1.00 4,344 - 2 $380,000
s Tahoe City — Crystal Bay Hourly 1.00 2,172 - 1 $190,000
[ Woesl Shore Hourly 1.00 2,172 - 1 $180,000
Truckea — Donner Summit % 0.00 1] = 0 S0
A Cryslal Bay -- Inclina Village 30 Min 2.00 2,172 - 1 §190,000
| Truckea Local Hourly 1.00 2,172 1 ~ 5156000
N Kings Beach/Tahoa Vista Local - 0.00 1] 0 - 50
G Tahoa Cily Local - 0.00 1] 0 - $0
Complamantary Paratransit DAR/Tax| ad = 4,344 2 - §326,000 Includes seasonal TART complementary taxi cosls
{Evoning: 6:30 PM - 8:30 FM
/ Tahoa Clly — Squaw Vallay - 0.00 0 - 0 50
Norihslar — Crystal Bay - 0.00 0 - 0 50
F Tahoe City —- Crystal Bay - 0.00 0 - 0 §0
A Woesl Shore - 0.00 0 - 0 S0
L Truckea ~ Donner Summit . 0.00 0 - 0 S0
Cryslal Bay -- Incline Village - 0.00 0 - 0 50
L Truckee Local - 0.00 0 0 - S0
Kings Beach/Tahoe Vista Local % 0.00 0 1] * S0
Tahos Cily Local - 0.00 0 0 - $0
Complemantary Paratransii DAR/Tax| - - 0 - - S0

10- 12




TABLE 4: NORTH TAHOE REGIONAL TRANSIT VISION -- Medium Scenario

Veh-Hrs Peak Vehicles Marginal
Spason/Service Period/Sarvica Area Fraquency  Runs/Hr  In Sarvice Vans Buses  Oporaling §
Day: 6:30 AM - 6:30 PM
Tahoa City -- Truckes Houry 1.00 2,232 2 §185,000 YOTAL
J Truckee ~ Cryslal Bay Hourly 1.00 2,232 2 $195,000 Summer $2,155,000
Tahoa City -- Crysial Bay 30 Min 2.00 2,232 2 $185,000 Winter 5 21 $5,719,000
o Wast Shora Hourly 1.00 1,116 1 $98,000 Spring/Fall 5 7 $2.171,000
Rl Truekaa — Donner Summit 80 Min 0.67 1,113 1 §97,000 Year-Round North Lake Tahoe Express §092,000
‘ Crystal Bay - Incline Village 30 Min 2.00 1116 1 $98,000 TOTAL & 21 $9,037,000
Truckas Local Hourly 1.00 1,118 1 $80,000
g|1| Hings Beach/Tahoa Vista Local == 0.00 0 0 s0
u 5|  Tahos Clty Local - 0.00 0 0 $0
Complementary Paralransit DAR - - 4,484 4 $320,000
MIt]  Tahoo Clty - Emerald Bay -- South Y Houry 1.00 1674 1.5 $148,000 Note: Allocaling hall to North Tahoe/Truckee
M|o incline Vilage - Easl Shore Express 20 Min 3.00 1,548 2 $135,000
E| [Evening: 6:30 PM-12:30 PM
A 8| Tahos City - Truckes Houry 1.00 1,302 2 $114,000
8| Trckes - Cryslal Bay Houry 1.00 1,302 2 $114,000
P Tahos City — Crystal Bay 30 Min 200 1,302 2 $114,000
t Waesl Shere Hourly 1.00 651 1 $57,000
Truckes -~ Donner Summit - 0.00 0 a $0
1 Crystal Bay — Inclne Vifage 30 Min 2.00 651 1 $57,000
5| Truckes Local Hourly 1.00 651 1 $47,000
Kings Beach/Tahos Visla Local - 0.00 1] L] 50
Tahoa Clty Local - 0.00 0 0 50
Complementary Paralransit DAR = - 1,302 2 $93,000
Day: 6:30 AM - 6:30 PM
Tahoa Cily — Truckee 30 Min 200 5568 4 $487,000
Truckes = Cryslal Bay 30 Min 200 5,560 4 $487,000
Tahoe Cily — Cryslal Bay 30 Min 200 2,784 2 $243,000
D Waesl Shore 30 Min 200 2,784 2 §243,000
e Truckee -- Donner Summit Hourly 1.00 2,088 15 £183,000
L Crystal Bay - Incline Village 30 Min 200 1,392 1 $122,000
Truckes Local Hourly 1.00 1,392 1 $100,000
W] 1| Kings Beach/Tahoe Visia Lacal - 0.00 0 0 §0
1| 8| Tahoa Chy Local - 0.00 0 0 $0
N Complementary Paratransit DAR - - 5,668 4 §399,000
T t| Sker Shutlle Express 2AM, 2PM 21.91 2472 ] $216,000 6 Bus Program: 2013 + Hyali-Norihstar
o |Evenlng: 6:30 PM- 12:30 FM
E Tahos Clty ~ Truckea 30 Min 200 3,248 4 $284,000
R|A| Truckas - Crystal Bay 30 Min 200 8,248 4 $284,000
p| Tahoe City - Cryslal Bay 30 Min 200 1624 2 $142,000
‘v| WaeslShore 30 Min 200 1,624 2 $142,000
Truckee — Donner Summit 45 Min 1.33 1,624 2 5142,000
7| Crystal Bay — Incline Village 30 Min 2,00 812 1 $71,000
Truckes Local Haurly 1.00 B12 1 $58,000
Kings Beach/Tahoe Vista Local - 0.00 1] 0 $0
Tahae City Local - 0.00 0 0 $0
Complemenlary Paralransit DAR - - 1.624 2 $118.000
Day: 6:30 AM - 5:30 PM
Tehoe Clty - Truckee Houry 1.00 3,744 2 $327,000
Truckae ~ Cryslal Bay Hourly 1.00 3,744 2 $327,000
s Tahoe City - Cryslal Bay Houy 1.00 1,872 1 $164,000
P Waost Shore Hourly 1.00 1872 1 $164,000
Truckee — Donner Summit - 0.00 0 [1] S0
R Crystal Bay - Incline Village 30 Min 2.00 1,872 1 $184,000
| Truckee Local Hourdy 1.00 1,872 1 $134,000
N Kings Beach/Tahos Vista Local - 0.00 0 0 80
G Tahoe City Local - 0.00 (1] 0 $0
Complamentary Paratransil DAR - - 7,468 4 §537,000
Evening: 6:30 PM - 8:30 PM
! Tahoe Clty - Truckes Hourly 1.00 036 2 $62,000
Truckae — Cryslal Bay Hourly 1.00 836 2 §62,000
F Tahoe City ~ Cryslal Bay Hourly 1.00 468 1 $41,000
A Wast Shore Hourly 1.00 468 1 $41,000
L Truckee - Donner Summit - 0.00 0 0 $0
Crystal Bay - Incline Village 30 Min 2.00 468 1 $41,000
L Truckee Local - 0.00 0 0 $0
Kings Beach/Tahoa Vista Local = 0.00 0 0 S0
Tahoe City Local - 0.00 0 0 $0
Complemanlary Paralransil DAR s 3= 936 2 567,000

\0-\3




TABLE 5: NORTH TAHOE REGIONAL TRANSIT VISION -- High Scenario

Veh-Hrs _Peak Vehiclas . Marglnal
Season/Servica Period/Service Area Frequency PRuns/Hr InService Vans Buses Operaling$
M [Day: 8:30 AM - 6:30 PM TOTAL Peak Vehicles Marginal
o| Tahos Cily - Truckee 20 Min 3.00 8,288 6 $812,000 Vans Buses | Operaling$
m| Truckee - Crystal Bay 20 Min 3.00 9,288 [ $812,000 Summaer 9 27 $5,878,000
o/ Tahoa Clty - Crystal Bay 20 Min 3.00 4,644 3 §406,000 Winler B 28 $4,812,000
r Wes! Shore 20 Min 3.00 4,644 3 $406,000 Spring/Fall T 7 $1,944,000
1 Truckes — Donnar Summit 30 Min 2,00 4,644 <] 5406,000 Year-Round North Lake Tahoe Express  $1,282,000
'3 Crystal Bay -~ Incline Village 20 Min .00 3,083 2 $270,000 TOTAL ] 29 §13,817,000
I Truckes Local 30 Min 2.00 3,096 2 §222,000
Kings BeactvTahose Visla Local 30 Min 200 1,548 1 §111,000
§1p| Tahos City Local 30Min 200 3,006 2 §222,000
UlS| Complementary Paralransit DAR - - 6,102 4 $§444,000
M ¥y Tahoa Cily ~ Emerald Bay -- South Y Hourly 1.00 2,322 15 §203,000 Nole: Aliocaling half ta North Tahoe/Truckes
M Inclina Village - East Shora Express 20 Min 3.00 1,546 2 §135.000
E | ; [Evening: 6:30 PM - 12:30 PM
Rl | Tahoe City - Truckes 30 Min 2.00 3612 4 §316,000
Truckae -~ Cryslal Bay 30Min 2.00 3612 4 §316,000
g| Tahoe City-- Cryslal Bay 30 Min 200 1,806 2 $156,000
° West Shore 30 Min 200 1.806 2 $168,000
p Truckee ~ Donner Summit 80 Min 0867 801 1 §79,000
t Cryslal Bay - Incline Village 30Min 2.00 803 1 $76,000
Truckes Local Hourly 1.00 803 1 $65,000
3| Kings BeachvTahos Visla Local 30 Min 200 903 1 $65,000
o| Tahoe City Local Hourly 1.00 803 1 $65,000
Complementary Paralransit DAR - - 1.806 2 $129,000
Day: 6:30 AM - 6:30 PM
Tahoe City — Truckea 20 Min 3.00 8,352 B $730,000
Truckee -- Cryslal Bay 20Min 3.00 8,352 6 $730,000
Tahoe Clty - Crystal Bay 20 Min 3.00 4,176 3 §365,000
D| West Shore 20 Min 300 4,176 3 §365,000
.@| Truckee -- Donner Summil 30 Min 2,00 4,176 3 $365,000
ic| Crystal Bay - Incllne Villaga 20 Min 3.00 2,781 2 $243,000
Truckee Local 30 Min 200 2,784 2 §200,000
W 1| Kings BeaclvTahoe Visla Local 30 Min 2.00 1,392 1 §100,000
l. m‘ Tahoe City Local 30 Min 2.00 2,784 2 $200,000
N[ Complemenlary Paratransit DAR - - 196 4 $14,000
IT ‘t{|__Sidar Shutile Express 2AM,2PM 2131 2472 6 §216,000 6 Bus Program: 2013 + Hyatt-Northstar
el® Evenlng: 6:30 PM - 12:30 PM
Rl Tahos City -- Truckee 30 Min 2.00 3,248 4 §284,000
‘Al Truckea -~ Crystal Bay 30Min 2.00 3,248 4 $284,000
\p/| Tahoa City - Crystal Bay 30Min 200 1.624 2 §142,000
ri| Waesl Shore 30 Min 200 1,624 2 $142,000
2 Truckee — Donnar Summit 80 Min 0.67 810 1 $71,000
‘7| Crystal Bay - Incline Villaga 30 Min 200 B12 1 $71,000
Truckee Local Hourly 1.00 B12 1 $50,000
Kings Beach/Tahoe Vista Local 30 Min 200 812 1 $56,000
Tahoa Gity Local Haurly 1.00 B12 1 $58,000
Complemantary Paralransit DAR - - 1,624 2 $116.000
Day: 6:30 AM - 6:30 PM
Tahoe City — Truckee Hourly 1.00 2,880 2 §252,000
Truckae —~ Cryslal Bay Hourly 1.00 2,880 2 $262,000
Tahos Clty = Cryslal Bay Hourly 1.00 1,440 1 §126,000
s Waesl Shore Hourly 1.00 1,440 1 §126,000
P Truckee - Donner SummR - 0.00 0 0 50
R Crystal Bay — [ncfine Vilags 30 Min 2.00 1.440 1 §126,000
1 Truckee Local Hourly 1.00 1,440 1 $126,000
N Kings Beach/Tehoa Vista Local 30 Min 2.00 1,440 1 §126,000
a Tahoae Cily Local Hourly 1.00 1,440 1 $126,000
Complemenlary Paralransit DAR - - 6,760 4 $413,000
! Evenling: 6:30 PM - 8:30 PM
Tahoae Cily - Truckea Hourly 1.00 720 2 $63,000
F Truckee -- Cryslal Bay Hourly 1.00 720 2 $63,000
A Tahog Cily - Cryslal Bay Hourly 1.00 360 1 $31,000
L Wast Shore Hourly 1.00 360 1 $31,000
L Truckea -- Donnar Summit = 0.00 0 0 S0
Cryslal Bay - Incline Village 30 Min 2.00 360 1 $31,000
Truckas Local - 0.00 1] 0 so
Kings Beach/Tahoe Vista Local - 0.00 0 0 §0
Tahoa City Local - 0.00 0 Q S0
Complemantary Paratransit DAR - - 720 2 §52.000

Lo~ 14




TABLE 6: Capital Costs

Scenario
Low Meadium High
Vehicles
Buses
Peak in Service 14 21 29
Spares 3 5 6
Total 17 26 35
Annualized Cost $708,000 $1,083,000 $1,458,000
Vans
Peak in Service 3 5 9
Spares 2 2 2
Total 5 7 11
Annualized Cost $57,000 $80,000 $126,000
Passenger Facilities
North Stateline Transit Hub - $300,000 $300,000
Kings Beach Transit Hub - - $300,000
Truckee Train Depot Improvements $200,000 $200,000
Key Transit Stop improvements $0 $468,000 $1,045,000
Shelters g 7 15
Pullouts o 3 8
Benches 0 10 25
Subtotal $0 $968,000 $1,845,000
Annual over 10 years $0 $96,800 $184,500
Operations/Administrative Facilities
30 additional bus parking spaces $0 $0 $129,000
Additional CNG Fueling Capacity $0 $100,000 $200,000
Subtotal $0 $100,000 $329,000
Annual over 10 years $0 $10,000 $32,900
Advanced Public Transit Systems
Automatic Vehicle Location on All Vehicles $0 $315,000 $510,000
Security Cameras on All Vehicles $0 $83,000 $115,000
Electronic Fareboxes on All Vehicles $150,000 $315,000 $510,000
Automatic Passenger Counters $0 $495,000 $690,000
Real-time Traveler Information at Key Stops $0 $100,000 $300,000
Enhanced Communication System $0 $200,000 $200,000
Subtotal $150,000 $1,508,000 $2,325,000
Annual over 10 years $15,000 $150,800 $232,500
TOTAL ANNUAL AVERAGE CAPITAL COSTS $780,000 $1,420,600 $2,033,900

\0-15



TABLE 7: Evaluation of Overall Impact on Ridership vs. Capacily

Existing Headway (min) 60 60 30

Future Leve! 30 20 20

Elasticlty Factor -0.58 -0.58 -0.48
Impact of Reduction in Headways 1.49 1.89 1.21
Impact of Eliminating Fares 1.60 1.50 1.50
% Change in Psgrs 124% 184% 82%
% Change in Capacity 100%  200% 50%
Ratio of Ridership increase to Capacity Increase 1.24 0.92 1.64

Source: Transit Cooperative Research Project Haport 95: Travelsr Responses 1o Transportation Sysiem Changes

\0-1



TABLE 8: Summary of Total Costs

Service Scenario

Low Medium High

Marginal Operating Costs $5,423,000 $9,037,000 $13,917,000
Administrative/Marketing Costs

Existing Costs $950,000 $950,000 $950,000

Additional Dial-A-Ride Dispatch Costs $0 $370,000 $379,000

Additional Supervisor/Mechanic Costs $0 $121,000 $242,000

New Organization Administrative Costs $500,000 $500,000 $500,000

Marketing Costs $161,000 $315,000 $465,000

Subtotal $1,611,000 $2,265,000 $2,536,000
Total Annual Operating Costs $7,034,000 $11,302,000 $16,453,000
Capital Costs $780,000 $1,421,000 $2,034,000
TOTAL AVERAGE ANNUAL COSTS $7,814,000 $12,723,000 $18,487,000

\0-171



AUQ JEISUMON -
Hﬁnbuw wog

S QOOM3WOH

saNid
, SOHVL

(Ao Aajjop menbs)
-Aj1D Soye]) wgs
{AluQ Aajjep menbg
Rt ie] un.._u..._..._ wpg

“ONI "SINYLINSNOD
NOLLVLHOdSNYEL

21dxg aoye], axe] yoN Bugsixz

Sale] bupsixg

ssaldx3 Japjg sng-9
Vay Ixel 1adejd
SpRy-v-{e1q a9)oniL

SIJIAHIS ¥3HLO
(sasnq usamjaq sapnuip)
Asuanbaiq ao1nsag  wigg

anNnao3il

-5
440
o

OHEUS2S MO

I ainbi4

- UOISIA }isued] 29yonJ]-aoye] YHON

10-18



g GOYEL e LPnog ROV
( (—eg presawz o}
i} e3ueg awpleg
B <l 43NS jo jleH
/.rﬂf QOOMIWOH
salej Bugsixg §-
saNd juaaiad gg Aq papuedxg -
o] NOSV3S , SOHVL ssaidxg a2oyel aye] ypoN Bugsixg
B == ssaldxg Janjg sng-9
il woe |8 wos REEFENTA apry-y-jelg 43oe|d
N E E NELT OPRI-V-1elq 933Nl
5 Bujuaag Aeq S3IIAG3S 43HLO
7 TP (sesnq u2amyaq sanuipy)
3 7
m, aoye| aye] n Rouenbaig asinvieg wpg
' h e\ EREN]

|
|

L

E HIWWNS

Aeq

E Ezomqmm

440
E Exmpzma
E mezssm

Bujuoag Aeg

TN 29vTA
| 3NITONI

Bujuaag Aeg

MVYNos
Ava
VLSAMO

B I s

BuludAg Aeg

NOSYIS
440

SMOQVIN 292/
E B YSINIM d " 3ANIdTY v%(\\
E Exmsz:m & i

oLIeU29S WNIP3A - UOISIA }isuel] aaxonij-aoye] YyHUoN
Z @24nb14

10-14



T J ,
7 ES—— B ST
M plesewg ay
sojmeg awpAeq

JaLuwing 4o jjeH salej oN

. GOOM3WOH juaosad o} Aq pepuedxzy
: fssaldx3 soye] aye] yuoN bupsixg
- caNd ssaudxz Jopjs sng-9

, SOHVL epry-v-jeiq 49e|d

o SPRy-V-lelg 33)onJL
. Ezoumu_mmm S3IJINYTS ¥3IHLO
| E E (sasnq usamyaq saynuip)
! Y3LNIM Aousnbaiq asiateg wigg
2; mE Emms_z:m e ERER
i uiaAg Aeg
y

- Ezowqmm
440
e - e
Bujuaag Aeg
E Exm_s:z:m R

Buiuanz ifeg

Ava
NVITINIVO

n NOSY3S ]
440 i

L E Emm»z% g

| {

b E E UIWWNS \

n EZOw(mm ‘ “ m_._ ra>m .Ann_

E Emmssnm f

buiuaag “Aeg

m_.::..;m_ Mﬂn_

wog

. ﬂ HIWIWNS S

Buiuaaz Aeg

OLIeuadS _.—m_—._ - UOISIA }isuel] aa)onij-aoye] YuonN
¢ ainBi4

\0-2D



.
@ E—

horth lake tahoe

Chamber | CVB | Resort Association

April 3, 2013

Subject: Free Skier Shuttle Update
From: Ron Treabess, Director of Community Partnerships and Planning

Resort Triangle Transportation Vision Coalition (RTTVC) Update:
e Staff will give a verbal update

Decision Considerations:
e Attached is the March 24" Passenger Log Counts

Tourism Master Plan/Strategic Goals:

By 2016, a fully integrated transportation system within the North Lake Tahoe area will
effectively link visitor destinations, recreation and lodging products with increased
ridership on service on recreational routes of 20% (3% per year).

By 2016, the organization will have provided advocacy for all project and program
development that aligned with our mission.

Staff Recommendation:
e No decision is being requested by the Board

-\




freeskishuttie

NORTH TAHOE-TRUCKEE

Final Passenger Count Overview - All Routes
December 22, 2012 - March 24, 2013

| AM Passengers - All Routes | | PM Passengers - All Routes | | Total All Passengers - All Routes |
1054 2101 3155

Overall Ridership Productivity:

Days of Service: 12/24/13 - 3/24/13 = 42 days
Overall AM Ridership Per Day: 25.10 passengers
Overall PM Ridership Per Day. 50.02 passengers

Total Overall Ridership Per Day AM & PM passengers: 75.12

[Average Ridership Per Bus/Day | [AM Ridership | [PMRidership |
Incline - Squaw Bus #1 11.1 25.74

Incline - Squaw Bus #2 4.21 16.24

Homewood - Squaw 5.26 5.09

Squaw - Northstar - Squaw 1.98 2.43

Northstar - Squaw » Northstar: ) 2.65 0.52

-2




B\
=6

freeskishuttie

NMORTH TAHOE-TRUCKEE

December 22, 2012 - March 24, 2013

TMA Program Management Overview:

1.) Ambassadors on busses
2.) Ski Shuttle collateral distributed upon receipt to our partners, lodging properties, and business partners - 2 Rounds
3.) Ski Shuttle signage on TART stops/Combo Signs with Night Rider

4.) Park & Ride coordination done with TTUSD — TTD oversight for lot to avold cost to the program. TMA overseelng Snow Removal
with TTUSD. Signage (4) sandwich boards 7-10 AM with parking coordinator on site.

5.) Northstar donated their Blue Lot for our Park & Ride guests

6.) Passenger logs reviewed with continuous weekly reporting

7.) Work with operator regarding service interruptions and notify lodging on any route effected via emall blast & follow up phone
calls.

8.) Ambasadors on board collecting feedback and asking passengers to complete survey.

=%




Hyatt - Squaw Bus #1 AM Runs

Skier Shuttle Passenger Counts
Days of Service:

December 24, 25, 26, 27, 28, 29, 30, 31
January 1, 2, 3, 4,5, 6,12, 13, 18, 20, 21, 26, 27
Fabruary 2, 3, 9, 10, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24
March 2,3, 9, 10, 16, 17,23, 24

Squaw - Hyatt Bus #1 PM Runs

Service Tlme Passengers

Sto Scheduled Boardin, Departin
2top g Jeparing __J
Hyatt Dep 745 AM 54
Crystal Bay Dep 5:00 AM 7
Kings Beach East{Cafiente) Dep 8,06 AM 104
Kings Beach Central (Daves ski Shop) Dap 807 AM 50 1
Kings Beach West {Safeway TART Stop) Dep 8:08 AM kil 2
Tahoe Vista East (Firefite Ladge) DOap 8:09 AM 21 18
Tahaoe Vista Central (TART Stop after Dep £:10 AM 5

Rd) -
Tahoe Visla Wast {Cedar Glen Ladga) Dep 8:11 AM 3B Z
Camelfian Bay (TART Stop at 7-11/CB's De: 5:15 AM a5 8
Pieza) » g
Drollar Hill (TART Stop - across from 7-11) Dep B:18 AM 28 5
Pepparires inn Dep B:21 AM 25 45
Americas Best Vake Inn Dep 8:22 AM B 2
Bank of America - TART Stop just bsfore Dep 823 AM 7 1
Tahoe City Transit Center {Bay 5) Arr 24
Tahoe City Transit Center Dep 8:32 AM 10
River Ranch Dep 8:40 AM 1 5
Deer Park (Alpine Meadows) Dap 8:41 AM o3
Squaw Valey Arr 8:52 AM 260
Totals: 466 466

Service Time Passengers
Sto Scheduled Hoarding Departing
Squaw Valley Deop 4:00 PM T34
Dear Park (Alpina Maadows} Dep 410 PM 147 1
River Ranch Parking Lot Dep 411 PM 8 4
Tahae City Transit Cenler (Bay 4) Are 1 17
[ Tahae City Transit Center Dep £20PM 46
gz:;s)s City - Tahoe Marina Lodge (TART Dep 4:22 PM 82 54
L::::::I"Cri.ly- Across from Americas Best Dep 4:23 PM 9
Tzhoe City - Across from Pepper Tree Dep 4:24 PM 65 108
Doliar Hill {7-11) Dep 429 PM § 54
Camelian Bay (Garwoods) Dep 4:33 PM 84
| Tahoe Vista West {Tahoe Sands) Dep 4:36 PM &7
Tehos Vista Cenlral (Mourslatos} Dep 4:37 PM 4 17
m.ﬂa Easl (TART Slop - E. of Dep 438 PM A 49
Kings Beach West (Red Welf Lodge) Dep 440 PM 1 58
Kings Beach Central {Ferrari Crowm} Dep 4:45 PM 79
Kings Beach East {TART slop - Across frof Dep 4:46 PM 2 121
Crystal Bay (VART Stop) Dep 4:50 PM 2 55
Hyalt Dep 5.10PM 105
Totals: 1081 109

-4




Hyatft - Squaw Bus #2 AM Runs

Skier Shuttle Passenger Counts
Days of Service:

December 24, 25, 26, 27, 28, 29, 30, 31
January 1, 2,3, 4,5, 6,12, 13, 19, 20, 21, 26, 27
February 2, 3, 9, 16, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24
March 2, 3, 9, 10, 16, 17, 23, 24

Squaw - Hyatt Bus #2 PM Runs

Service Time Passengers
Stop Schaduled Boarding Deparling
Hyatt Dep 8:18 AM 7%
Grystal Bay Dap 8:33 AM 3
Kings Beach East{Calfante) Dep 8:39 AM 22
Kings Beach Cenfral {(Daves ski Shop} Dep 8:40 AM 1
Kings Beach West (Safeway TART Stop) Dep 8:41 AM 4
Tahoe Visla East (Firelite Lodge) Dep §:42 AM 5
';:?;(;res\;'ri‘s:d?entral (TART Stop after Dep 843 AM 6
Tahve Vista West (Cedar Glen Lodge) Dep B:44 AM 9
|?iallzl'l:)ﬁ\fm Bay {TART Stop at 7-11/CB's Dep 8:48 AM 8
Doflar Hill (TART Stop - across from 7-11) Dep 8:51 AM 1
Peppertree Inn Cep 8:54 AM 16
Amaricas Best Value Inn Cep 8:55 AM 10
Bank of America - TART Siop just before Dap 8:56 AM 10
Tahos CRy Transit Center (Bay 5) AT ]
Fahoe City Transit Center Dep 9:05 AM. 7
River Ranch Dep 210 AM
Deer Park (Alpine Meadows) Dep it AM as
Squaw Vabey AT .25 AM 11
Tolals: 177 177

Service Time Passengers
Stop Schedulad Boarding Departing
Squaw Valley Dep 4:53 PM 615
Deer Park (Alpine Maadows) Dep 5:03 PM 3 4
River Ranch Parking Lot Dep 504 PM 7
Tahoe City Transil Center {Bay 4} At 3 63
Tahoe City Transil Center Dep 513 PM B
;::1:)& City - Tahee Marina Lodge {TART Dep 515 PM 24
Tahoe City - Across from Americas Best Dep 5:16 PM 27
Value Inn
Tahae City - Across from Peppar Traa Dep 517 PM 16 92
Oollar Hill {7-11} Dep 5:22 PM 73
Camelian Bay (Garwoods) Dep 5:26 PM 50
Tahoe Vista Wesl (Tahae Sands) Dep 5:20 PM 1 75
Tahoe Vista Central (Mourelalos) Dep 530 PM i}
Tah_oe Vista East {TART Stop- E, of Dep 531 PM 2%
National)
Kings Beach West {Red Walf Lodge) Dep 5:35 PM 5 33
Kings Beach Ceatral {Ferrari Crown} Dep 5:38 PM 67
Kings Beach East (TART stop - Across friDep 539 PM 78
Crystal Bay {TART $lop) Dep 543 PM 1 ]
Hyait A 6:00 PM 53
Tolals: 662 682




Skier Shuttle Passenger Counts

Days of Service:

December 24, 26, 26, 27, 28, 29, 30, 1

January 1,2, 3, 4, 8,6, 12, 13,19, 20, 21, 26, 27

February 2, 3, 9, 10, 15, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24
March 2, 3, %, 10, 16, 17,23, 24

Homewood - Squaw AW Runs Squaw - Homewood PM Runs

Servica Fime Passengers Sesvica Tima Passengers
[Stop Scheduled Boarding Daparing Stop Schaduled Boarding Depatling
[Tahoma Post Offico Dep 7:50 AM 7 |Squaw Valloy Dep 3:36 PRt &1
[TART Slop - Across from Tahoma MeadoyDep 7:61 AM 4 Deer Park (Alpine Meadaws) Dep 350 PM 15 1
[Homevood ML Resort - TART Stop Cep B30 AM 4 iver Ranch Parking Lot Dep 361 P
[Sunnyside - TART Stop Dep 8:10 AM 13 [Tahee City Transit Center Arr 1 28
‘Granlivakken - Parta Cochere Dep 815 AM B0 iTahes City Transit Center (Bay 5) Dep 403 PM 14
ITahoe City Transit Canter (Bay 5) A 2 3 Granlibakian Dep 408 PM 5
Tahoe Cily Transit Canter Dep 8:25 AM 7 Sunnysica Dep 413 PN ic
River Ranch Dep B£:30 AM 3 2 Homewood Dop 428 PN 38 2
Daar Park (Alplne Maadaws) Dap 831 AW 2 13 Tehoma Dap 438 PM 24
Squaw Valley A 74 Homowwod Dap 4:48 PM 25 5
Squaw Valley Dep 8:45 AM 5 Sunnyside Dep 458 PM t 4§
Daor Park {Alplne Maadaws) Dap 249 AM 1 Grandibakkon Dep 503 PM 17
Rivar Ranch Dep 8:50 AM 4 Tahoe City Transit Centar At 2
Tahoe Gity Transit Cantar (Bay 4) G 5 [Tahaa City Transit Centar {Bay 5) Dap 512 PM 2
Tahoe City Transit Cantar Dep 8:16 AM ] Dear Park {(fpina Meadows) Dap 520 PM 1
Graniibakken Dop 8:20 AN i River Ranch Parking Lot Dep 521 PM
Sunnysida Dep 8:26 AM 3 1 Squaw Vallay J AT 4
Homevood Dep .30 AM 42 Squaw Vallay Dap 533PH 55
Tahama Dep 240 AM 1 [Daar Park (Alpine Meadows) Dap 540 M 1
Homeveod Dep B.ED AL f 1 River Ranch Parking 1ot Dep 541 PM
Sunnysde Dap 10.05 AM 9 Tahoe City Transit Genlar At 2
Grankbakken Dsp 10-10 AM 4 Tahos City Transit Cendsr (Bay 5} Dap 553 PM 2
Tahoa City Transit Genter (Bay 5) Are (Granlibakken Dap 558 PM a4
Tahoe Cily Transit Centar Dap 1015 AM, 8 Sunnyside iap 6.03PM
River Ranch Dap _10:20 AM 3 Hameawood Dep 616 PM.
Daar Park (Alpina Meadows) Dep $0.21 AM B & Tehoma EA 628 PM
Squaw Valley e 0,35 AM 7 Totats: 214 214
Folals: 221 221

W-0




Squaw - Northstar - Squaw AM Runs

Skier Shutile Passenger Counts
Days of Service:

December 24, 25, 26, 27, 28, 29, 30, 1

January 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 8, 12, 13, 19, 20, 21, 26, 27
February 2, 3, 9, 10, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24
March 2, 3, 8,10, 16,17, 23, 24

Squaw - Northstar - Squaw PM Runs

Service Time Passengers
Stop heduled Boarding Departing
Squaw Vallay (Villags East) Dep 7:45 AM 5
Truckes Middle School Dep 063 AM 2
Truckee Train Depot Dep £:08 AM 14 1
Cedar House Sporl Hotel Dep &10 AM 5
Larkspur Hotel Dep 811 AM 4
Hampton Inn Dep 8:12 AM 2
Truckea Tahoe Airport Dep B:13 AM 1
Northslar Castle Peak Lot Arr 30
Northslar Castle Peak Lot Dep 8:32 AM 16
Rilz Carlton Dep 8:39 AM
Northstar Castle Peak Lot Arr
Northstar Caslle Peak Lot Dep 8:46 AM
Truckee Tahoe Airport Dep 8:51 AM
Hampion Inn Dep 8:52 AM
Larkspur Hotel Dep 8:53 AM 7
Cedar House Sport Hotel Dep 8:54 AM
Teuckee Train Depot Dep 9:11 AM 13 13
Teuckee Middle School Dep 9:20 AM 6 1
Squaw Valley AT 9:38 AM 38
Tolals: 83 B3

Service Time Passengers
Slop Scheduled Boarding Departing
Squaw Valley Dap 4:46 PM 87
Truckee Middle School Dep 510 PM 6 50
Truckee Train Dapot Dep 5:15 PM 1 21
Cedar Houlse Sport Holel Dep 517 PM 5
Larkspur Hotel Dep 5:18 PM 1
Hampten Inn Dep 519 PM 1
Truckee Tahoa Airport Dep 5:20 PM
Northstar Castle Peak Lot AT 4
Northstar Caslle Peak Lot Dep 5:30 PM 4
Rilz Carlton Dep 5:37 PM
Norihstar Caslle Peak Lot | Arr
Norihstar Caslle Paak Lot Cep 844 PM
Truckee Tahos Airport Dep 5:50 PM
Hamptan Inn Dep 5:62 PM
Larkspur Hotel Bep 5:53 PM 4
‘Cedar House Sport Hotel Bep 5:54 PM
Truckee Train Depol Dep 6:04 PM
Truckee Middle School Dep 6:09 PM
Squaw Valley Art 6:27 PM
Totals: 102 102

=1



Northstar - Squaw - Northstar AM Runs

Skier Shuttle Passenger Counts
Days of Service:

December 24, 25, 26, 27, 28, 29, 30, 31
January 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 8, 12, 13, 18, 20, 21, 26, 27
February 2, 3, 9, 10,16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24
March 2, 3,9, 10, 16, 17,23, 24

Northstar - Squaw - Northstar PM Runs

Service Time Passengers Servica Time Passengers

Slop Scheduled Boarding Depariing |Stop Scheduled Boarding Daparing
Rilz Carlton Dep 800 AM Northstar Castle Peak Lol Dep 4:44 PM 16

Northstar Caslle Peak Lot Arr Fruckee Tahoe Alrporl Dep 4:50 PM

Nerihstar Caslle Peak Lot Dap 8:07 AM 4 Hampton fnn Dep 4:52 PM 1

Truckee Tahoe Alrport Dap 812 AM Larkspur Holel Dep 4:54 PM 1
Hamgplon Inn Dep 813 AM 10 Cedar House Sport Holel Dep 4:56 PM

Larkspur Hotel Dep 814 AM 6 Truckee Train Depot Dep 5:04 PM 1 1
Cedar House Sports Hotel Dep 8:15 AM Truckee Middle Schocl Dep 5110 PM 1
Truckee Train Depol Dep 8:30 AM 24 Squaw Valley Arr 15
Truckee Middle School Dep 8:35 AM 22 Squaw Valley Dep 5:33 PM 4

Squaw Valiey Arr 56 Tiuckee Middle Schaat Arr
[Squavr Valley Dep 06:58 AM 18 Truckes Middle Schoo! Dep 5:51 PM

Truckee Middie Schoot Arr & Teuckee Train Depot Dep 5:56 PM 2
Truckee Middle School Dap 9:16 AM 1 Cedar House Spoert Hotal Dep 6:00 PM

Truckee Train Depat Dep 9:25 AM 4 Larkspur Hotel Dep 6:02 PM

Cedar House Sports Hatel Dep 9:27 AM Hamgpton Inn Dep 6:04 PM

Larkspur Hotel Dep 9:28 A 4 Truckee Tahoe Airport Dep 6:.05 PM

Hampion Inn Dep 9:29 AM 12 Norihslar Castle Peak Lot Arr 2
Truckee Tahoe Airport Dep 9:30 AM 2 Norihsiar Castle Peak Lol Cep 6:16 PM

Northstar Gastle Peak Lot A 9:50 AM 45 Ritz Cariton At 6:23 PM

Tofals: 107 107 Tolals: 22 22

\I- &




frees

HOITH TAHO E-TRUCKEE

MNorth Tahoe - Truckee Skier Shuttle Dally Ridership
12122112 - 3124113

**No Service 12/22 & 12/23 due lo wealher and safety issues.
Incline-Squaw 1 Incline-Squaw 2 Wes! Shore - Squaw uavs - Northstar MNorthstar-Squaw Dally Total - All Routes

Date AM i Totsl | AM | PM [Total | AM | PM [Total | AM | PM [Total | AM | PM [Total | AM | PM [Tolal
Monday 12724 8 20 28 1 11 12 0 6 6 2 1 3 2 0 2 13 38 51
Tuasday 12125 2 8 10 9 13 22 2 2 4 2 2 4 0 0 0 15 25 40
Wednesday 12726 4 16 20 11 19 30 2 0 2 ] 1 1 0 0 0 17 36 53
Thursday 12727 16 17 33 5 11 16 3 3 6 1 0 1 1 0 1 26 31 57
Fiiday 12728 10 21 37 13 23 36 8 6 14 8 1 9 1 0 1 40 57 o7
Saturday 12/29 7 12 20 8 8 16 1 7 8 4 3 7 5 0 5 25 3H 56
Sunday 12/30 7 25 32 4 10 14 6 6 12 0 4 4 8 0 8 25 45 70
Manday 12731 18 27 45 10 17 27 9 12 21 2 4 1 11 6 17 50 66 116
Tuasday 111 19 31 50 1 17 18 1 6 7 0 0 0 6 0 6 27 54 81
Wednesday 172 15 28 43 4 21 26 1 12 24 2 13 15 8 1 9 40 76 116
Thursday 113 13 31 44 4 21 25 17 16 33 4 13 17 8 0 8 46 81 127
Fiiday 1/4 14 24 38 11 21 a2 10 1z 22 1 4 5 9 1 10 45 62 107
Saturday /5 21 44 65 12 14 26 3 11 14 5 0 5 o 0 0 41 69 110
Sunday 1/6 22 34 56 3 23 26 4 6 10 0 4 4 2 0 2 31 67 98
Saturday 1712 i0 21 3 2 20 22 1] 0 [1] 6 2 8 2 2 4 20 45 65
sunday 113 10 41 51 3 19 22 2 3 5 1 2 3 4 4 8 20 69 89
Saturday 119 12 25 37 5 22 27 5 6 1 0 0 0 1 0 1 23 53 76
Sunday 1720 9 17 26 5 18 23 4 1 5 1 3 4 3 0 3 22 39 61
Monday 1121 17 41 58 2 25 27 0 6 5 0 1 1 2 0 2 21 72 93
Saturday 1126 13 39 52 3 21 24 i 0 11 0 0 0 0 ] 0 27 60 87
ISunday 1727 5 36 41 0 25 25 0 3 3 0 1 1 0 1 1 5 66 "
| Saturday 272 5 28 33 1} 6 6 3 2 5 2 1 3 0 0 0 10 7 47
Sunday 243 10 15 26 7 8 15 2 0 2 1 0 1 1 2 3 21 25 46
ISaturday 2/9 19 16 35 0 18 18 7 4 1 3 2 5 0 0 0 29 40 69
Sunday 210 13 34 47 3 18 21 2 7 8 o 1 1 0 0 0 18 60 78
Saturday 2116 12 37 49 6 3 9 6 1 7 2 3 5 2 0 2 28 44 72
[Sunday 2117 5 17 22 8 25 33 1 ] 1 0 3 3 3 1 4 17 46 63
Monday 2/18 12 35 47 4 32 35 5 0 5 0 0 0 1 0 1 22 67 89
Tuesday 2/19 12 36 48 5 21 26 1 2 3 2 1 3 2 0 2 22 60 az

220 9 27 36 0 18 18 9 8 17 0 0 [} 4 4 8 22 57 79
Thursday 2121 9 27 36 5 23 28 i 3 14 1" 3 14 1 0 1 37 56 93
Friday 2722 16 45 61 9 13 22 6 3 ] 1 0 1 1 0 1 33 61 94
Saturday 2123 17 36 53 1 20 21 7 13 20 2 3 5 1 0 1 28 72 100
Sunday 2724 17 35 52 3 30 33 ] 4 4 2 4 6 5 0 5 27 73 100
Saturday 372 9 12 21 4 14 18 4 9 13 15 1 16 1 0 1 33 36 69
Sunday 33 7 19 26 0 14 14 7 10 17 2 4 3 2 0 2 18 47 65
Saturday 39 i1 30 41 0 0 0 19 3 22 1] 4 4 4 0 4 34 37 m
Sunday 310 14 21 35 3 6 9 13 10 23 1 10 i 3 0 3 34 47 81
Saturday 316 7 9 16 2 10 12 4 3 7 0 2 2 1 0 1 14 24 a8
Sunday 317 1 10 11 1 15 16 4 4 8 0 1 1 1 0 1 7 30 k14
Saturday 323 2 12 14 0 6 6 9 3 12 0 0 0 0 0 0 11 21 32
Sunday 324 7 15 22 0 3 3 2 1 3 0 0 0 1 0 1 10 19 29
PM_|TOTAL] AM PHM_|TOTAL| AM PM

Sublotal: Saturday 162 205 79| 62| 141 39| 21
Subtofal: Sunday 214|254 47 55| 102 8| 37
Sublatal: Weekday 1 306 400 95/ 97 192 36 44
ToTAL 466] 1081| 1547 177 €82] 859] 221 214/ 435 83 102




e\
=0

freeskishuttle

MORTH TAHOE-TRUCKEE

Summary Report December 22, 2012 - March 24, 2013

Route: Hyatt to Squaw - Bus #1

Ridership | # Days Runs |Veh. Srvc. Hrs | Ridership/Day | Ridership/Run| Ridership/VSH |*Cost/Passenger
Weekday 634 16 32 35.68 39.63 19.81 17.77 $12.38
Saturday 467 13 26 28.99 35.92 17.96 16.11 $13.65
Sunday 446 13 26 28.99 34.31 17.15 15.38 $14.30
rTOTAL 1547 42 84 93.66 36.83 18.42 16.52 $13.32
Route: Hyatt to Squaw - Bus #2
Ridership | # Days Runs _[Veh. Srvc. Hrs [ Ridership/Day | Ridership/Run| Ridership/VSH |*Cost/Passenger|
Weekday 400 16 32 36.48 25.00 12.50 10.96 $20.06
Saturday 205 13 26 29.64 15.77 7.88 6.92 $31.80
Sunday 254 13 26 29.64 19.54 9.77 8.57 $25.67
|TOTAL 859 42 84 95.76 20.45 10.23 8.97 $24.52
Route: West Shore - Squaw
Ridership | # Days Runs [Veh. Srvc. Hrs | Ridership/Day [ Ridership/Run| Ridership/\VSH |*Cost/Passenger|
Weekday 192 16 96 89.28 12.00 2.00 2.15 $102.28
Saturday 141 13 78 72.54 10.85 1.81 1.94 $113.16
Sunday 102 13 78 72.54 7.85 1.31 1.41 $156.43
|TOTAL 435 42 252 234.36 10.36 1.73 1.86 $118.51
Route: Squaw to Northstar
Ridership | # Days Runs [Veh. Srvc. Hrs | Ridership/Day | Ridership/Run| Ridership/VSH |*Cost/Passenger
Weekday 80 16 64 57.12 5.00 1.25 1.40 $157.05
Saturday 60 13 52 46.41 4.62 1.15 1.29 $170.14
Sunday 45 13 52 46.41 3.46 0.87 0.97 $226.85
TOTAL 185 42 168 149.94 4.40 1.10 1.23 $178.27
Route: Northstar to Squaw
Ridership | # Days Runs [Veh. Srve. Hrs | Ridership/Day | Ridership/Run| Ridership/\VVSH | *Cost/Passenger
Weekday 69 16 64 55.68 4.31 1.08 1.24 $177.50
Saturday 19 13 52 45.24 1.46 0.37 0.42 $523.74
Sunday 41 13 52 45.24 3.15 0.79 0.91 $242.71
TOTAL 129 42 168 146.16 3.07 0.77 0.88 $249.22
ALL ROUTES
Ridership | # Days Runs |Veh. Srvc. Hrs | Ridership/Day | Ridership/Run| Ridership/VSH |*Cost/Passenger
Weekday 1375 16 288 2744 85.94 4.77 5.01 $43.90
Saturday 892 13 234 222.95 68.62 3.81 4.00 $54.98
Sunday 888 13 234 222.95 68.31 3.79 3.98 $55.23|
[TOTAL 3155 42 756 720.3 75.12 4.17 4.38 $50.22]
Page 9 *Cost per passenger based on operator cost only

I-\0




4 ———
@ =—

north lake tahoe

Chamber | CVB | Resort Association
April 3, 2013

Subject: Review and Possible Recommendation of Draft FY 2013/14 Integrated Work Plan
From:  Ron Treabess, Director of Community Partnerships and Planning

Backqround
Based on the input received at the February Joint Committee Planning Workshop, the Board

approved Strategic Goals, and at other group presentations, staff has prepared a draft
Integrated Work Plan (IWP) for the Committee’s review and recommendation. With the
recommendation of the Committee on March 25th, staff will present same, with Committee
comments, to the NLTRA Board in order to proceed with the preparation of the draft 2013 /14
Infrastructure and Transportation budget. Realizing that some additional project modifications
will occur based on further input on the draft IWP, staff will present the full WP and budget to
the Committee at its April meeting and to the Board in May. If acceptable, the budget will be
included in the overall NLTRA 2013/14 budget process. The IWP will then be available to the
Committee, the Board, and partner organizations to use as a planning tool to help determine
infrastructure and transportation priorities for 2013 through 2022.

Decision Considerations
Attached for your review and discussion is the FY 2013/14 draft Integrated Work Plan
containing:
e Introduction-- Highlighting Criteria and Strategy for Projects and Programs
Selection
Capital Investment Projects—Infrastructure
Capital Investment Projects—Transportation Services
2013—2022 Project Funding Needs
Capital Investment Projects 5-year Cash Flow—based on anticipated invoice timing
Revised Infrastructure Funding Application

The draft has been highlighted (yellow) to emphasize additions, revisions, and improvements to the
current IWP.

The Joint Committee unanimously recommended approval by the Board, with comments as to the
maintenance/operation funding, and clarifications to the Infrastructure Funding Applications having
been inserted.

Staff Recommendation

After review, discussion, and revisions, staff recommends that the Board accepts and
recommends the draft IWP for the purpose of enabling the preparation of a draft 2013/14
Infrastructure and Transportation budget. It is understood that: 1) Some modifications will
continue to be made during the review of the draft, and 2) the complete IWP, including the
2013//14 proposed budget will be presented to the Joint Committee for recommendation at its
April meeting and to the Board at its May meeting

S




U ee—_
g S

north lake tahoe

Chamber | CVB | Resort Association

Serving our Members, our Community and Placer County
Since 1996

Draft

Infrastructure and Transportation Development
Integrated Work Plan
and
Long Range Funding Plan
2013-2022

March 2013

100 North Lake Blvd. e 2" Floor e Tahoe City
Phone 530.581.8700 e Fax 530.581.1686
www.PureTahoeNorth.com
www.nltra.org



Draft
Infrastructure and Transportation Development
Integrated Work Plan and Long Range Funding Plan
F.Y. 2013 - 2022

Mission

Consistent with the NLTRA Master Plan, to Improve Visitor
And Community Infrastructure Facilities & Transportation
Services for the Benefit of North Lake Tahoe’s
Tourism-based Economy

The Integrated Work Plan (IWP) is prepared annually to update the North Lake
Tahoe Tourism Investment Master Plan, insuring that the master plan remains
current as the guiding document for infrastructure and transportation capital
investment strategies. These investment strategies must continue to be designed
to help achieve economic and environmental sustainability. The Master Plan
states that “a healthy, well-balanced economy creates the financial mechanisms
that pay for needed environmental restoration and ongoing protection”. Capital
investment project design and program development that meets the current
economic needs while minimizing impacts to the natural resources and
environment will be encouraged.

The FY 2013-22 Integrated Work Plan and Long Range Funding Plan is based on
review, discussion, and updates of the FY 2012-13 IWP. Input by the Joint
Infrastructure and Transportation Committee, the NLTRA Board of Directors,
community partners, and the public has provided guidance toward the
development of the Draft of the FY 2013-22 Plan. This document or “action plan”
summarizes the status of the infrastructure and transportation capital investment
projects that are ongoing and those projected for the 2013-2022 time period. The
Long Range Funding Plan is based on the premise that the 2% Transient
Occupancy Tax has been renewed in June, 2012 for an additional 10 years.

Each year there are greater demands on the ways that the Board of Supervisor
authorized TOT funds for North Lake Tahoe are requested to be used. Originally, it
was determined that 47% of total TOT funds would be used for capital investments
(infrastructure), and 11% would go toward transportation services and programs.
This was with the understanding that the Board could approve an additional
amount of the 47% to be used to support appropriate increases for transportation
services. The remaining 42% has been allocated to marketing the North Lake
Tahoe area.

Through the years, transportation services have proven to be a high priority
needing more funding each year. Transportation services are now receiving
approximately the same funding amount that is directed to infrastructure projects,
and will continue to require additional funds.

Y-S




Also needing consideration is funding for maintenance and operation of
infrastructure projects that TOT helped to create. Most notable are the many miles
of trails that have been constructed that require funding to be kept in good repair.
An increasing need is to keep certain trails open in the winter for safe and
enjoyable alternatives for pedestrians now walking on roadways. Pedestrian
crosswalks and radar speed signs require funding to stay operational. In the past,
the limited funding necessary has been provided by others, but now that these
visitor oriented facilities are in need of more support, the agencies that have been
taking care of operation and maintenance are requesting assistance.

In addition to the above, the NLTRA Strategic Goals state that funding to support
regional special events should be considered. Many of these events, which bring
economic sustainability to North Lake Tahoe, require infrastructure and/or
transportation projects to allow for and provide for more efficient production of an
event.

While TOT provides solid funding, it is limited and cannot provide the entire
funding for all of the potential needs. NLTRA must have meaningful criteria to help
determine the appropriate allocation of TOT funds. This Integrated Work Plan
provides those criteria.

This work plan:

Establishes Areas Of Highest Priorities

Provides Criteria for Project Consideration

Provides Project Descriptions

Identifies NLTRA Role: Leadership; Funding; Advocacy
Identifies Project Partners

Estimates Funding Requirements

Suggests Time Frames For Completion

Helps Evaluate New Proposed Projects

Shows Relationships Between NLTRA Projects And Programs
Identifies Appropriate Level Of NLTRA Funding Involvement
Assists In Budgeting Of Anticipated Funding (5-year Cash Flow)
Does Not Preclude New Project Proposals At Any Time

The work plan is developed as a “planning tool” to help assist in identifying and
evaluating additional proposed projects, setting priorities, and for budgeting of
anticipated funding. It is not all-inclusive, and does not preclude an agency or
organization request for TOT funding for a new project at any time. In fact, the
process is in place to encourage those requests and the work plan assists the
Board’s decision making. For this Integrated Work Plan and Long Range Funding
Plan to remain a useful tool, we must review it on a regular basis to insure it is up
to date and providing the proper direction for implementation of the Master Plans
and the NLTRA Strategic Goals 2012-2013.

Many of the projects listed are specifically stated in the NLTRA’s adopted 7995
North Lake Tahoe Tourism Development Master Plan and its update, The 2004
North Lake Tahoe Tourism and Community Investment Master Plan. Others, not

V-4



specifically identified in the Master Plans, are included as necessary to achieve
the objectives of the plans and those in the following NLTRA 5-year Strategic
Goals.

Strategic Goals 2012 - 2016

Develop across all core function areas in addition to existing initiatives of
downhill skiing, boating, culinary arts, music, and hiking:

» Biking

> Paddle boarding/kayaking

» Nordic Skiing

Marketing/Sales
Conduct a Sales Department review and strategic plan
Dominate the California market as a destination for alpine and Nordic
skiing, biking and paddle sports
Develop a clear marketing brand for North Lake Tahoe
Increase TOT by 15%
Increase occupancy during strike zones by 20% and annual occupancy by
10%
B Grow conference revenue and attendance by 25%
Infrastructure/Transportation
B Increase ridership on service and recreational routes by 20%
B Review criteria and priorities for infrastructure projects
| Increase lift into regional airports by 200,000 seats per year with a focus on
North and Southeast markets
B Upgrade lodging and commercial environment on the North and West
Shore with 3 new or re-developed projects
B Complete all trail systems in the basin including signage for biking, hiking,
paddling and Nordic skiing
B Install 50 way-finding signs in the Tahoe basin

Membership Services/[Economic Development/Business

Advocacy

Evaluate cost benefit of Chamber business model

Be the recognized business leader in the regulatory environment

Be the recognized business leader for legislative issues impacting tourism
Take the lead on Economic Development plans that align with tourism
development

B Provide advocacy for all project and programs that align with our mission
® Increase dues and non-dues revenue by 50%

Visitor Information
m Develop and execute a customer service training strategy
m Assess regional needs for Visitor Information distribution and execute plan
M Increase net promoter scores by 20% over 2011/12 or up to 85

Community Relations
®m Have a comprehensive communication plan through all mediums
® Build trust, confidence and leadership with key partners
B Be a recognized voice of community in all core function areas
B Have a recognized brand message of “Who we are and what we do”

\L-S




From these Strategic Goals, infrastructure/transportation core project groupings
have been developed as key project criteria. The current project groupings
include:

Wayfinding Signage

Trail Systems

Visitor Centers

Museums/Cultural Centers

Parklands

Recreation Amenities

Tourism Based Redevelopment
Transportation Infrastructure
Services to Reduce Traffic Congestion
Transit and Transportation Services

® © @ o e o ©° @ o o

In addition to each project being attributable to a Strategic Goal core project
grouping, other NLTRA criteria are also used to further determine appropriateness
and priority of proposals. These criteria include but are not limited to:

Placing more “heads in beds”

Strengthening the tourism economy

Providing a better visitor experience

Supporting overall core function areas of North Lake Tahoe-

downhill skiing, boating, culinary arts, music, hiking, biking,

non-motor water sports, and Nordic skiing

» Integration of capital investment projects, programs, events,
and marketing

e Supporting appropriate level of maintenance/operation
funding for TOT capital investment projects and/or programs

¢ [Improving environmental quality, as well as the quality of life

for visitors and residents

Approval of the Integrated Work Plan and Long Range funding Plan does not give
approval to any NLTRA proposed budgets nor does it approve any individual
project. Each capital investment infrastructure project requires a specific
Infrastructure Funding Application (IFA) to be submitted to the NLTRA,
recommended by the Joint Infrastructure/Transportation Committee, approved
and recommended by the NLTRA Board of Directors, and, lastly, receive final
approval by the Placer County Board of Supervisors. One time capital investment
requests for Special Event infrastructure or transit needs must utilize this same
approval process to determine appropriateness of the request.

Annual transportation services and programs described in the IWP are reviewed
each year and receive one approval by the NLTRA Board and the Board of
Supervisors as part of the annual budget approval process.

Funding requests for maintenance/operation needs of tourist-serving
Infrastructure projects envisioned in the Master Plans and Strategic Goals require

\2- L




an IFA submittal, with recommendation by the Committee and the NLTRA Board,
and approval by Placer CEO. Initially, a maximum of $150,000 of Infrastructure
funds will continue to be allocated each year to a maintenance reserve account. In
order to assist the Committee and the Board in the review of an IFA requesting
maintenance/operation funding, a working group will be formed to further define
this process and possible limitations. The working group will consist of NLTRA
Committee representation and that of Agencies and Organizations that maintain
and/or operate visitor facilities as previously defined. Things to be considered, but
not limited to, are identification of eligible project criteria, quantification and
source of funds now being spent, percentage of TOT, if any, used for original
funding of a capital investment project needing assistance, and recommendation
for size of maintenance reserve account to be available.

The Draft Work Plan and the Draft Funding Summary, when completed, will
determine whether there is potential funding for full accomplishment of the many
projects that have a high priority in helping to meet the overall goals and visions
of the NLTRA Master Plan.

127




DRAFT
North Lake Tahoe Resort Association

Infrastructure and Transportation Development
Integrated Work Plan
2013-2022

March 2013

CAPITAL INVESTMENT PROJECTS - INFRASTRUCTURE
Projects Sorted by Strategic Goal Project Groupings

A. Wayfinding Signage (Hwy, Class 1 Trails, Facility and Area Entrance)
A-1. Regional Wayfinding Signage Design Manual

Lead Agency: NLTRA/TRPA/Placer County/Caltrans

Project Status: The Wayfinding Signage Manual was completed in fall, 2012, It proposes
the permitting of signage to be done under existing TRPA and County regulations and
not by a single entity, which was the original process discussed.

The Manual’s final review by TRPA, Placer County, and Caltrans to assure compliance
with each agency’s guidelines will be completed in conjunction with the Master Site Plan
project.

NLTRA funds committed to date: $183,255 Funds expended to date: $182,641

A-2, Wayfinding Signage Master Site Plan

Lead Agency: NLTRA

Project Status: The next step in the process to provide wayfinding signage throughout
the resort triangle is the preparation of a site specific plan showing location of needed
signage. This plan, now under contract, will identify location, property ownership,
necessary permitting, which design, wording, responsibility, and existing signing to be
removed and/or consolidated. The anticipated completion date for the Master Site Plan
is summer, 2013.

NLTRA funds committed to date: $55,000 Funds expended to date: $5,030

A-3. Installation of Wayfinding Signage throughout Resort Triangle

Lead Agency: NLTRA/Others to be Determined

Project Status: This project will take several years to install the wayfinding signage
system as defined in A-2. The initial group of signs to be produced and installed will
include the previously referred to Pilot Sign Program in the Lake Forest area. These 4-6
pilot signs will be used to further demonstrate and critique actual signage in place and
the efficiency of the permitting approval process.

NLTRA anticipated funding: $550,000

- 6




A-4. Signage-Snow Creek Wetlands Restoration Project

Lead Agency: Placer County DPW

Project Status: Elements of this project include water quality improvement, pollutant
load reduction, erosion control, restoration of riparian habitat, and habitat construction.
The completed project will provide public access and interpretive opportunities through
construction of a Class I trail connection. Funding is requested from the NLTRA
specifically for two Wayfinding signs, constructed consistent with the design guidelines
provided in the Regional Wayfinding Signage Manual. The project should be completed
in fall, 2013. The total Snow Creek restoration project cost is $4,564,000.

NLTRA anticipated funding: $12,000

A-5. Signage - Roadside Mile Markers

Lead Agency: NLTRA

Project Status: After the installation of the mile marker signs was completed, $25,000
was approved to provide for ongoing maintenance of the markers located along
Highways 28 and 89 within Placer County. Each year the markers are inspected and the
necessary repairs are made.

NLTRA funds committed to date: $25,000 Funds expended to date: $8,588

A-6. Transit Center Wayfinding Signage

Lead Agency: Placer County DPW

Project Status: This proposed Community Wayfinding Signage Demonstration Project
consists of various signs at the Transit Center. The signs demonstrate the standards set
forth in the North Lake Tahoe Wayfinding Signage Standards. Some revisions may be
made as a result of the demonstration signage now being in place. This signage project
will be completed in FY-2012/13.

NLTRA funds committed to date; $68,000 Funds expended to date: $45,283

A-7. Gateway Lighting and Landscaping

Lead Agency: NLTRA/Business Associations

Project Status: There is a need to provide welcoming/holiday lighting infrastructure at
points of entrance to the North Lake Tahoe area. This will include Northstar, Kings
Beach, Tahoe City, West Shore, and Squaw Valley. To date the first phase of this total
lighting project has been completed. Total anticipated funding is $60,000.

NLTRA funds committee to date: $18,000 Funds expended to date: $17,579

B. Trail Systems (Pedestrian, Biking, Nordic, Multi-use)
B-1. Lakeside Multi-purpose Trail

Lead Agency: Tahoe City Public Utility District

Project Status: With the completion of project phases 5 and 6 in 2012, this lakefront trail
is now open from the Truckee River Outlet, across the dam, through the Commons
Beach, Tahoe City Marina, Lighthouse property, and through the State campground
connecting to the existing North Shore trail. The entire project, with the exception of the
Tahoe Marina Lodge, is now open for public use. After final billing is received from
TCPUD, the remaining funding will be applied to the Board of Supervisors recently
approved funding for Homewood Bike Trail construction.

NLTRA funds committed to date: $1,384,663 Funds expended to date: $870,499

Q-




B-2. Dollar Hill/Tahoe Vista Class 1 Bicycle Trail

Lead Agency: Placer County Department of Public Works

Project Status: The Placer County DPW has become the lead agency for planning,
preparation of the environmental document, and project development. DPW is now
looking at doing this project in a series of stages, with the first being from Dollar Hill
through Carnelian Bay, i.e. Dollar Creek project. A request for $200,000 was approved in
the spring, 2009, to keep the project on track while the CTC state funding was frozen.
An additional TOT request is anticipated.

NLTRA funds committed to date: $200,000 Funds expended to date: $100,000

B-3. Northstar/Martis Valley Community Multi-Purpose Trail

Lead Agency: Northstar Community Services District

Project Status: The Northstar Community Services District has initiated the project for
planning and construction of this roughly seven mile paved recreation trail running
through Martis Valley from the Placer County/Nevada County border near Highway 267,
through the Northstar community up to the Basin rim at Four Corners. While this is a
necessary trail for visitor recreation and circulation within Northstar, it will also provide a
future link in the Tahoe Vista-Northstar Bike Trail connecting Lake Tahoe with the Martis
Valley and Truckee. The total project cost for all planning, environmental, permitting,
and construction is expected to be approximately $12 million. The NLTRA has
committed $1,000,000 in TOT funds to conduct planning and environmental work in
advance of detailed project design. The first phase was the preparation of an economic
feasibility analysis and community survey. This has been completed. NCSD has now
moved forward with work necessary for the environmental documentation of the first
trail section to be constructed in Martis Valley to Northstar Village. This work was
completed during 2012 and design is underway for Phase 1 starting at the Placer
Nevada Counties border. Future requests for funding are anticipated.

NLTRA funds committed to date: $1,000,000 Funds expended to date: $834,889

B-4. Squaw Valley-Truckee Bike Trail/Truckee River Corridor Access Plan

Lead Agency: Placer County Planning Department

Project Status: This access plan will coordinate efforts for recreational access and
environmental protection along the Truckee River Corridor to the Placer/Nevada County
border. The Plan is to restore and enhance the ecological, water quality, recreation and
non-motorized transportation values for the benefit visitors and residents. This is the
necessary first step toward development of the bike trail linking the existing Lake to
Squaw Valley trail with the Truckee trail segments continuing on to Martis Valley and
Northstar. The benefits that the trail will provide are measured in terms of reducing auto
use as well as providing a recreational amenity to visitors and residents. Extension of
this trail for the 8 miles between Squaw Valley and the Nevada County line is very
important toward the attainment of the Resort Triangle Class I trail system. The NLTRA
has provided Placer County an infrastructure grant to complete the corridor plan and
environmental documents which will allow the more specific bike trail planning to occur.
The environment documentation underway is scheduled for June, 2014 completion.

NLTRA funds committed to date: $265,000 Funds expended to date: $28.226

-0




B-5. Homewood Class 1 Bicycle Trail Environmental Design

Lead Agency: Tahoe City PUD

Project Status: With advocacy support from the NLTRA, TCPUD is working with
California Tahoe Conservancy, TRPA, and Caltrans to ensure that this section of Class I
trail be incorporated into the planning and construction of a Caltrans highway/water
quality improvement project on Highway 89 in Homewood. Caltrans has made some
adjustments to their project to accommodate the trail, but recommends that the TCPUD
do the design, any additional environment analysis, if necessary, and construction of the
trail. NLTRA funding will be required to assist with this environmental work, design and
construction. NLTRA and CTC have partnered to provide the initial $330,000 necessary
to complete the environmental work. Additional funding will be requested as Caltrans
moves ahead with the project.

NLTRA funds committed to date: $309,500 Funds expended to date: $165,000

B-6, Homewood Class 1 Bicycle Trail Construction

Lead Agency: Tahoe City PUD

In order to partner with Caltrans in efficiently constructing their road and drainage
project with the bike trail project, TCPUD must have the $1.560 million in place when
Caltrans begins road work, which is anticipated for 2014/15. Completing this 1 mile
section of the trail would provide visitors and residents uninhibited access to over 20
miles of trails connecting commercial centers, public facilities and neighborhoods from
Tahoma to Tahoe City and down the Truckee River corridor to Squaw Valley, and on to
Truckee. The project dramatically improves public safety by providing a safe, off road
alternative through the Homewood area. The Board of Supervisors has approved
$600,000 toward this necessary funding with the understanding that at least $300,000
would be available from the efficient completion of the Lakeside Trail (A-1).

NLTRA funds committed to date: $600,000 Funds expended to date: -0-

B-7. Tahoe Vista Recreation Area Access and Bike Trail

Lead Agency: North Tahoe Public Utility District

Project Status: The Tahoe Vista Recreation Area is a comprehensive recreational
development: area located within the North Tahoe Public Utility District (NTPUD). It
consists of 800 feet of lakeshore frontage and 6.3 acres of property near the intersection
of State Route 28 and National Avenue. When complete, the 2-phase project will
include lake access recreation, boat launching, picnicking, parking, pedestrian
circulation, bike trail, restrooms, transportation shelters, storm water treatment, and
other amenities. The first phase was completed in 2007.

Phase II, now under construction will provide recreational amenities and support
facilities primarily on the 3.6 non-lakeside acres necessary to insure completion of the
Tahoe Vista Recreation Area. The facilities include vehicle and boat trailer parking, bike
trail, bus shelter, wayfinding signage, site preparation for concession/warming structure,
and restrooms. The remainder of the necessary funding has been committed by the
Department of Boating and Waterways and the California Tahoe Conservancy, as well as
from the North Tahoe Public Utility District. Completion of the project is scheduled for
2013.

NLTRA funds committed to date: $500,000 Funds expended to date: $385,900

(PR



B-8. Tahoe Vista to Northstar Multi-Use Trail

Lead Agency: To Be Determined

Project Status: This trail is proposed to begin at the Regional Park in Tahoe Vista,
traverse the mountains and connect to the Northstar Community Multi-Purpose Trail,
providing a link between Lake Tahoe and the trail systems of Northstar, Martis Valley
and Truckee. While, preliminary route investigation may proceed, it is anticipated that
the real effort to pursue this trail will begin during 2015-16. It is anticipated that the
California Tahoe Conservancy wilt be the primary funding agency for project planning
and construction within the Tahoe Basin, but at this time no funding is available.

NLTRA anticipated funding: $1,000,000

B-9. Bike Trail Restrooms (West Shore, Truckee River Access Park, Truckee
River)

Lead Agency: Tahoe City PUD

Project status: The bike trail system continues to become a more heavily used recreation
opportunity for visitors to the North Lake Tahoe area. One reason visitors actually come
to the Lake is to use this well known system. These trails will be even more enjoyable
for the user with the addition of strategically placed restrooms. The TCPUD has
identified three locations for restrooms within the District’s portion of the bike trail
system.

NLTRA anticipated funding: $800,000

B-10. Bike Trail Coordinated Signage Plan

lL.ead Agency: NLTRA/Others to be Determined

Project Status: A signage plan is proposed to locate coordinated signage for the Class I
trails as well as backcountry trails as necessary and appropriate. The wayfinding design
manual guidelines will be used for this signage system. Fabrication and installation
projects will be determined as part of the plan development.

NLTRA anticipated funding: $40,000

B-11. Nordic Trail Signage

Lead Agency: NLTRA/Others to be Determined

Project Status: In support of the 5-year strategic plan goal to increase awareness of
Nordic skiing as a major recreation opportunity at North Lake Tahoe, ski area operators
will be encouraged to provide signage throughout Nordic trail systems utilizing the
guidelines of the wayfinding design manual guidelines.

NLTRA anticipated funding: possibly

B-12. North Tahoe Regional Park Nature Trail

Lead Agency: North Tahoe PUD

Project Status: This nature trail renovation and expansion will include ADA trail
accessibility and signage.

NLTRA anticipated funding: $75,000

V-t




B-13. Lakeside Multi-Purpose Trail 2-C/Tahoe Marina Lodge

Lead Agency: Tahoe City PUD, Placer County

Project Status: This remaining link in the Lakeside Trail will require some difficult land
use decisions and/or agreements to be made in order to complete this very necessary
trail segment.

NLTRA anticipated funding: Possibly

B-14. Squaw Valley Trail Snow Removal Pilot Project

Lead Agency: Squaw Valley PSD

Project Status: A 2-year pilot program is underway to provide an off road pedestrian trail to
eliminate the need for visitors to walk on Squaw Valley Road with the multitude of auto
traffic. The program is being monitored to provide information as to the pros and cons of
this type of winter visitor/pedestrian service on appropriate trails in North Lake Tahoe.
NLTRA funds committed to date: $140,000 Funds expended to date: $63,064

B-15, Winter Trail Snow Removal

Lead Agency: NLTRA and Various

Project Status: Based on the results of the Squaw Valley pilot program and priority
discussions of TOT expenditures, various trails could become desirable options for winter
snow removal. This would enable visitors an safe and recreational alternative to driving or
walking on roadways in high traffic and visitor serving facility areas.

NLTRA anticipated funding: Possibly

C. Visitor Centers (Providing Information and Interpretation Services
C-1. North Lake Tahoe Visitor Information Center

Lead Agency: NLTRA

Project Status: The need has been to relocate the existing visitor information center to a
more visible, larger facility, which would better serve visitor and community needs for
information. An immediate opportunity to serve this need became available in the street
level space of the NLTRA office building in Tahoe City. The center has now been
relocated and the exhibits and visitor service furnishings will all be in place early 2013.
NLTRA funding committed to date: $82,000 Funds expended to date: $80,000

C-2. Kings Beach Visitor Information Center

Lead Agency: NLTRA/TBD

Project Status: The vision and potential location for this project, while still at the
preliminary discussion stage, are once again being considered as the commercial core
project moves forward. One opportunity is to combine this VIC with a transit/trolley
stop and parking facility to form a Welcoming Center at the bottom of Brockway Hill.
Another alternative is to incorporate the VIC near or within the North Tahoe Event
Center. A request for Infrastructure funding is anticipated when the KBCCIP is nearing
completion.

NLTRA anticipated funding: $200,000

C-3. Sacramento International Airport Information Center

Lead Agency: NLTRA, Placer County Transportation Planning Agency

Project Status: With the assistance of PCTPA, staff will investigate the opportunities for
and the value of providing information to visitors arriving at the Sacramento Airport, If

\1-13%




feasible, this facility would probably be similar to but smaller than the Reno-Tahoe info

center.
NLTRA anticipated funding: Possibly

C-4. Squaw Valley Information Center

Lead Agency: NLTRA

Project Status: The NLTRA, utilizing appropriate professional services and community-
based committees, has taken the lead in the planning, design, and construction process
to develop a visitor information center, outdoor exhibit area, restrooms, parking, and
transit stop shelter at the entrance to Squaw Valley. It has been intended that the
NLTRA will be responsible for the operation and maintenance of the facility, much as is
being done at the Tahoe City Visitor Information Center. The initial amount committed
was $17,000 to accomplish the first two phases of the project, which determined
programming, site feasibility, schematic design, and preliminary cost estimates for
design, construction and operation of the facility. The project is currently on hold as it
could be heavily influenced by the possible site selection for the proposed Olympic Ski
Museum. If located nearby or on the same proposed site, the visitor information center
would operate more efficiently and economically if planned and constructed as part of
the museum project. The site selection for the museum is expected to take place in
summer 2013, At that time a decision will be made as to how to continue with the
planning for visitor information services at the entrance to Squaw Valley. Total additional
unallocated funds shown in the Integrated Work Plan are $540,000.

NLTRA funds committed to date: $17,000 Funds expended to date: $16,936

D. Museums/Cultural Centers
D-1. Olympic Museum

Lead Agency: Squaw Valley Olympic Museum Board of Directors/NLTRA
Project Status: This project is to combine the existing Western Ski Museum, now located
at Boreal, with a new world class Olympic Ski Museum to commemorate and preserve

the heritage of the 1960 Olympic Winter Games. The new facility will be located in

Squaw Valley. As this project progresses, the NLTRA is partnering in the planning
funding. The Olympic Museum Board is a 501 (c) 3 non-profit corporation with the
assistance of an initial $12,000 TOT grant. The Board was then granted $200,000, which
was approved by the Board of Supervisors, to complete the feasibility study and
business plan. Consultants have been retained to define the museum space and
functions, select a site, and develop a capital campaign. The Board, County, and the
community are working through alternative site locations, hoping to make an acceptable
selection during 2013. NLTRA has taken a larger role in the process by attending the
Board meetings and participating in the planning discussions. Additional TOT funding
requests of $648,000 can be anticipated as the project progresses, but no new funding
until the future site receives approval.

NLTRA funds committed to date: $212,000 Funds expended to date: $212,000

D-2. Historic Walking Tour

Lead Agency: North Lake Tahoe Historical Society/Tahoe City Downtown Association
Project Status: Tahoe City's history is now being interpreted in segments in several
disconnected locations (Gatekeepers Museum, Truckee River Qutlet, Commons Beach,
Watson Cabin, and Heritage Plaza). A Historic Walking Tour will tie the area’s events,

13-4




places, and people together as it would connect the exiting interpretive features with
many that, at this time, are not being interpreted at all. This self-guiding tour will
require a place of beginning, a guide and map, directional aids, and interpretive stops
throughout Tahoe City. Funding was approved for the first phase of planning and
production of a self-guiding walking map, which has been completed. Additional funding
will be requested to move ahead with future phases.

NLTRA anticipated funding: $85,000

D-3. Performing Arts Center

lLead Agency: TBD

Project Status: There has continued to be discussions by interested parties throughout
the Resort Triangle to explore the scope of facilities needed to accommodate the cultural
and performing arts. The NLTRA has participated as one of the lead agencies in this
process to help determine the need for providing programs and facilities to support the
performing arts and other arts and cultural enhancements. The NLTRA has partnered
with the Arts & Cultural Council Truckee-Tahoe, and the Incline Vision Arts Cultural and
Heritage Committee, and others to fund a strategic feasibility plan. This plan, which was
completed in spring, 2009, has defined the role of the Truckee/North Lake Tahoe region
in creating a thriving arts and culture community. It has inventoried what programs and
facilities exist, what programs and facilities are necessary, where they should be located,
and how they should be managed, operated, and maintained. Future NLTRA funding will
be necessary to support the development of recommended facilities. The main
performing arts facility has been recommended at Northstar which will provide an
indoor/outdoor year round theater. The management change at Northstar has delayed
this project moving forward.

NLTRA anticipated funding: $300,000

E. Parks

E-1. Truckee River Outlet Winter Plaza Operation Maintenance

Lead Agency: Tahoe City PUD

Project Status: The recent completion of the multi-purpose trail paralleling the Truckee
River Dam and the plazas on both sides of the river has presented visitors with an
outstanding initial view of Lake Tahoe upon their arrival. There are also many historic
and natural features now being interpreted at this, the only outlet of Lake Tahoe. Many
visitors have been stopping and walking this area each day, including during the winter.
It is obvious that this will be a priority attraction for visitors year round. The TCPUD will
provide winter, as well as summer, daily operational maintenance, but to keep this
desired point of visitation open and operating in a safe manner will require the TOT
funding partnership of the NLTRA. This funding will be part of the priorities discussion as
described in B-14.

NLTRA anticipated annual funding: $10,000

E-2. Commons Beach Sand Improvements

Lead Agency: Tahoe City PUD

Project Status: Commons Beach in Tahoe City is one of the most popular visitor beaches
on the North Shore for events and general beach recreation. There is a need for sand
replenishment to revitalize this sandy beach.

NLTRA anticipated funding: $60,000

|-\S




